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Chairman’s Statement

WA

I am pleased to present the 2008 annual results of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa” or the “Company” and,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”).

Xingfa is one of the leading aluminium profiles manufacturers
in the PRC and principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of aluminium profiles which are applied as construction
and industrial materials. Leveraging on our advanced R&D
capability and commitment to quality, our Group has established
extensive and stable sales networks in the PRC and overseas for
the past 20 years. Our Group was awarded as the No.l of the
Top-Ten National Aluminium Profiles Enterprises by the China
Non-Ferrous Metals Fabrication Industrial Association (“CNFA”)
in 2003, and such status was re-confirmed by CNFA in February
2008.

Xingfa’s successful listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on 31
March 2008 marked a critical milestone for our Group. This
move has not only brought us to the international financial
platform, but also widened our exposure in the international
market, thus, encouraging our step forward to the market
worldwide.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, our Group continued
to deliver positive performance. Turnover maintained at
RMB2,136.37 million in 2008 (2007: RMB2,148.67 million). The
slowdown of sales in the second half of the year due to global
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Chairman’s Statement

BV 24

financial turmoil has caused the slight drop of the equipment
utilisation rate and hence the gross profit. Gross profit for the
year was RMBI175.26 million (2007: RMB199.18 million). Net
profit attributable to equity holders of our Company recorded
RMB29.31 million compared with RMB291.80 million in 2007.
The difference was mainly attributable to the one-off gain on
disposal of lease prepayments of RMB172.86 million recorded
in 2007. Our Directors of the Company recommended the
payment of a special dividend of RMB0.029 per ordinary share
and subject to the approval by the Shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, a final dividend of
RMBO0.021 per ordinary share, totally RMBO0.05 per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: nil). The pay-
out ratio is about 70% based on net profit in 2008.

In line with the expansion plan set out during Xingfa’s listing,
on 19 June 2008, Xingfa entered into an agreement with the
shareholders of Foshan Xinggao Aluminium Co., Ltd. (“Xinggao
Aluminium”), to acquire 100% equity interest in Xinggao
Aluminium. The acquisition has given Xingfa’s ownership of the
land and premises of the Sanshui factory and certain machinery
and equipment that our Group formerly leased from related
parties. The Sanshui production base is more than 3.5 times
of the size of our Group’s existing factory in Chancheng and
will be equipped with numerous production lines and facilities.
Since the commencement of construction of the Sanshui factory
in 2007, Xingfa has been gradually re-locating its production
facilities to the new Sanshui production base. Currently, there
are a total of 5 extruders and 10 smelters housed in Sanshui
plant. The entire relocation project is expected to be completed
by late 2009 and it is expected to increase our Group’s annual
designed production capacity to 150,000 tonnes of aluminium
profiles in 2010.

2009 is a year with both challenges and opportunities for our
Group. Xingfa, on the one hand, is prudently reviewing the
impacts brought forth by the global financial turmoil, with

careful consideration on adjusting marketing strategy as well as
strengthening internal cost control. On the other hand, our Group

NI
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is ready and well-equipped to capture the market opportunities
ahead, with the stimulating economic policies launched by the
Central Government of the PRC. It is believed that the demand
for aluminium profiles is going to maintain its growth given the
national policies to boost infrastructure and railway development
in 20009.

Looking forward, our Group will continue to relocate and
integrate its new production equipments, gradually enhancing
the production capacity of aluminium profiles throughout the
year. Coupled with our commitment to achieve better economic
of scales and lower production cost, our Group is going to install
the Asia-largest surface anodising machines in Sanshui factory
in mid-2009 to enhance our surface finishing capability, as
well as to improve the aluminium ingots smelting and extrusion
processes to enhance the production efficiency.

"With our ultimate goal to improve the gross profit margin and
h§ ce the bottom line growth, Xingfa has investigated its product
mixing strategy to enhance the sales of higher margin products.
Together with our advanced R&D capability, commitment to
quality, established extensive and stable sales networks in the
PRC and overseas, we are confident to capture more market
ishares both in the PRC and the globe, bringing in greater returns
to our shareholders.

behalf of Xingfa, I would like to take this opportunity to
k every member of the Board of Directors, management and
for contributing the success of our Group. Furthermore,
1d like to express my appreciation to the customers and
siness partners and shareholders for their continuing support.

Su, Chairman
Kong, 17 April 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B PRI ki B 3 A

We are one of the leading aluminium profiles manufacturers in
the PRC and principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of aluminium profiles which are applied as construction and
industrial materials. Leveraging on our advanced R&D capability
and commitment to quality, our Group has established extensive
and stable sales networks in the PRC and overseas for the past 20
years. Xingfa Aluminium was awarded as the No.l of the Top-
Ten National Aluminium Profiles Enterprises by the China Non-
Ferrous Metals Fabrication Industrial Association (“CNFA”) in
2003, and such status was re-confirmed by CNFA in February
2008. Further, Xingfa’s successful listing on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
on 31 March 2008 has marked a critical milestone for our Group.

Business Move

On 19 June 2008, we entered into an agreement with the
shareholders of Xinggao Aluminium through an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary, Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Xingfa”), to acquire 100% equity
interest in Xinggao Aluminium. The major assets of Xinggao
Aluminium included the Sanshui factory and certain machinery
and equipment previously leased to our Group prior to such
acquisition. The aggregate consideration for the acquisition is
RMBI142,699,000, of which RMB83,835,000 was funded by our
Group with the proceeds from the global offering and the rest by

our internal resources.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The acquisition was one of the important development plans
as set out in our prospectus dated 17 March 2008. We are very
pleased that we are able to achieve it soon after the listing. The
acquisition gave us the ownership of the land and premises of
the Sanshui factory and certain machinery and equipment that
we previously leased from our related parties. The construction
of the Sanshui factory commenced in 2007 and we have been
gradually re-locating our production facilities to the new Sanshui
production base. With a site area of about 498,000 sq.m. and an
aggregate gross floor area of approximately 200,000 sq.m., the
Sanshui production base is more than 3.5 times of the size of
our Group’s existing factory in Chancheng and will be equipped
with numerous production lines and facilities. The entire
relocation project is expected to be completed by late 2009 and it
is expected to increase our Group’s annual designed production
capacity to 150,000 tonnes of aluminium profiles in 2010. The
aggregate annual designed production capacity of aluminium
profiles was approximately 120,000 tonnes as at 31 December
2008.

In 2008, the economy turmoil spread throughout globally
which led to the substantial drop of market price of aluminium
ingots. The market price of aluminium ingots dropped from the
highest of RMB19,799 per tonne in March 2008 to the lowest of
RMBI11,452 per tonne in December 2008. The average price of
aluminium ingots also dropped by 12.5% from RMBI19,718 per
tonne to RMB17,257 per tonne for the years ended 31 December
2007 and 2008 respectively. This inevitably impacted our
Group’s results for this financial year since aluminium ingots
represented approximately 77% of our cost of sales whilst we
charged our customers the processing fee with reference to the
market price of aluminium ingots.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Turnover

Turnover maintained at approximately RMB2,136.37 million
for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: RMB2,148.67
million). The slight decrease in turnover was mainly due to the
drop of average selling price of aluminium profiles during the
year. As mentioned in the above, the market price of aluminium
ingots dropped substantially in 2008. Since aluminium ingots
constituted approximately 77% of our cost of sales and we
charged our customers the processing fee with reference to our
material costs, the drop of market price of aluminium ingots
caused the decrease in average selling price of our products
inevitably.

The drop of average selling price of our products was partially
offset by the increase in sales volume. Our sales volume of
aluminium profiles increased by 6.6% from approximately
89,300 tonnes to approximately 95,200 tonnes for the years
ended 31 December 2007 and 2008 respectively. Our operations
remained very healthy. Our production of aluminium profiles
increased by 4.2% from approximately 91,500 tonnes to
approximately 95,300 tonnes whilst the percentage of sales to
production was further improved from 97.6% to 99.9% for the
years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008 respectively. Landmark
projects in 2008 included Beijing National Olympic Green
Convention Center, Beijing International Trade Center Phase
111, Beijing Capital Airport Phase III, Provincial Government

Building of Guizhou, Hong Kong Disneyland Phase II and Asia
World Expo in Hong Kong etc..
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The following table sets forth our turnover and its percentage of
turnover by product category for the years ended 31 December

Management Discussion and Analysis

4 Pk i B 2 i
e

TRESEE FLTEFELTTNFET A
= HR AR R R RO 2 SE R AL

2007 and 2008: ¥R HTI
2008 2007
BB —EELE
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥TE % AR¥TIT %
Manufacture and sale of A T SR T b
aluminium profiles
— aluminium profiles with — R R
surface finishing FEplpY ) 1,370,729 64.2 1,300,069 60.5
— plain aluminium profiles — S5 R AR 654,593 30.6 739,262 34.4
2,025,322 94.8 2,039,331 94.9
Others (Note) HoAth (ft 7t ) 111,046 5.2 109,343 5.1
Total HEE 2,136,368 100.0 2,148,674 100.0

Note: Our Group’s other turnover represented turnover generated from
the manufacture and sale of aluminium panels, moulds and spare

parts and the provision of processing services.

Our Group’s turnover by geographical segments during the
years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008 are as follows:

MfFE - 7 G T H A SERS RO M B AR - BEE M
TR o DA T BRI i AR T AR 2 A o

REMPERE -FLTLFEL_TTNFT A
= F AR AR B R o 2 B SRR

2008 2007
ZRZNAE TERLALAE

RMB’000 %  RMB’000 %

AR % ANR¥TIT %

The PRC Rl 1,938,424 90.7 1,962,703 91.3

North America Bl eSS 46,110 2.2 40,387 1.9

Europe BRI 12,196 0.6 24,098 1.1

Hong Kong il 76,551 3.6 60,381 2.8
Asia Pacific (other than the PRC B HbI®E (Ff[5 &

and Hong Kong) FHERRSD 51,680 2.4 50,334 2.3

Others oAt 11,407 0.5 10,771 0.6

Total i 2,136,368 100.0 2,148,674 100

For the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008, domestic
sales in the PRC in aggregate accounted for approximately
91.3% and 90.7% of our Group’s turnover respectively.

WE_FFLFER LT/ FE A=+ —H1E
AERE (B A 4 ARG A 4 I SE R LA
91.3% %% 90.7% ©
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12

Our Group also exports directly to the United States, Europe
and other Asian countries. For the years ended 31 December
2007 and 2008, non domestic sales in aggregate accounted
for approximately 8.7% and 9.3% of our Group’s turnover
respectively.

The following table sets forth the sales volume and average
selling prices of our principal products during the years ended
31 December 2007 and 2008:

AL S E B D S RN M A A
MEK - 2 - FEEER EENE+ A
== H IR > R AR AL A SR B Bl A
8.7% 5. 9.3% °

ARSI A M R E T ER LR T
FENEFTZHEZ4—HIFEEZ R P E

fi

2008 2007 Change in %
ZRBNAE TERELA 58 %
Aluminium profiles with 8 3% 1w g B
surface finishing [aRiy o)
— Revenue (RMB’000) — Wi (AR ¥Fc) 1,370,729 1,300,069 5.4
— Quantity (tonnes) — B () 62,483 54,605 14.4
— Average selling price per tonne — & M7~ &5
(RMB) (NRIETE) 21,938 23,809 (1.9)
Plain aluminium profiles S B #3704
— Revenue (RMB’000) — Wi (AR ¥Fc) 654,593 739,262 (11.5)
— Quantity (tonnes) — B () 32,733 34,690 (5.6)
— Average selling price per tonne — & WA 714 &5
(RMB) (ANR¥or) 19,998 21,311 (6.2)
Total Bk
— Revenue (RMB'000) — k3 (AR EF ) 2,025,322 2,039,331 4.8)
— Quantity (tonnes) — B () 95,216 89,295 6.6
— Average selling price per tonne — &M 7~ &5
(RMB) (NRWETE) 21,271 22,838 (6.9)
Cost of Sales 858 A

Our cost of sales increased slightly by 0.6% from approximately
RMB1,949.50 million to approximately RMB1,961.10 million for
the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008 respectively. The
increase in the cost of sales was primarily due to the increase in
cost of production during the year under review, such as labour
costs, fuel costs and overheads etc..
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the factors mentioned above, our gross profit
decreased by 12% from approximately RMB199.18 million to
RMBI175.26 million, while our gross profit margin dropped by
1.1 percentage points from 9.3% to 8.2% for the years ended 31
December 2007 and 2008 respectively.

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin of our
aluminium profiles:

B ELBR R

HPFHRRE HE T EF R FTNF
TZAZt—HIEFE > AERZEFMHHAR
#199,180,000 JC 3k 2 12% & A K ¥ 175,260,000
gt > MARLE 2 BARAH9.3% FEk 1.1/ H 5
BEE8.2% ©

R A 4 T B

2008 2007

“RER)\E CERBAE

Average gross profit margin RSO ECY | 8.2% 9.3%
— Aluminium profiles with surface — RERA P

finishing sRAIM 5.7% 8.9%

— Plain aluminium profiles — e B 13.4% 10.9%

The decrease in overall gross profit margin was mainly
attributable to the following factors:

1. The equipment utilisation rate dropped slightly from
80.7% to 79.4% for the years ended 31 December 2007 and
2008 respectively due to slow down of sales in the second
half of the year caused by the global economy turmoil
and completion of major projects before the launch of the
Beijing Olympics in August 2008;

2. The substantial drop of gross profit margin of aluminium
profiles with surface finishing by 3.2 percentage points due
to the increase in cost of production for surface finishing;

3. The above mentioned factors were partially offset by the
improvement of gross profit margin of plain aluminium
profiles by 2.5 percentage points due to the increase in
average processing fee during the year; and

4. The slight change in our Group’s product mix as a result
of the increase in sales volume of aluminium profiles
with surface finishing during the year, whose gross profit
margin deterioration caused the drop of overall gross profit
margin in 2008.
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Other Net (Loss)/Income oAb OB ), B B8

Other net (loss)/income decreased from a gain of RMBI182.17  HiAth (518) Uk AFFE M E —FFT L4E+H
million for the year ended 31 December 2007 to a loss of  =-—H IF4EE 2 s A B ¥ 182,170,000 7G>
RMB4.58 million for the year ended 31 December 2008. It F#H%E X/ E+A=+—HIFEFEZER

comprises the following items: AR # 4,580,000 7C > EAELLFIHHE -
Note 2008 2007
Wit SRR i
Gain on disposal of lease L FE A 4 i A
prepayments (1) — 174,941
Gain on disposal of assets B ) S R 4 R AR
classified as held for sale (1) 11,637 —
Net realised and unrealised e 4R T HE B &
(losses)/gains of derivative KB U5H8) i as TR A
financial instruments
— aluminium future contracts — MR AE4 2) (19,342) 3,247
— foreign exchange forward — S A %)
contracts (580) —

Others oAt 3,707 3,980

Other net (loss)/income HAh (548) e ATRHE 4,578) 182,168

Notes: MizE -

1. In 2007, our Group recognised a one-off gain on disposal of 1. N EELAF  AEEEZRNEEMNEESZ —IK
lease prepayments of approximately RMB174.94 million, net of P #3549 N R W5 174,940,000 7T (155 4 68 S Bt
business tax and surcharges. In 2008, subsequent to the listing of ) o ATEE)NAFE S ANE FTHE o AEH
the Company, our Group disposed of the assets classified as held HEY BEEGEEE > WS — R L A
for sale and recorded a one-off gain of approximately RMBI11.64 % 11,640,000 7T ©
million.

2. In 2008, due to the global economy turmoil, the market price of 7. A TEENAE > AR ERKEEE > iR

aluminium ingots dropped substantially. Our Group incurred a net FME ko AREF AW ESNEIRFHEG
loss of aluminium future contracts of approximately RMB19.34 N %19,340,000 00 > M E ~FELHE+ A
million as compared to a gain of approximately RMB3.25 million = B RAERE R A 0icas 47 AR 3,250,000 TC ©

for the year ended 31 December 2007.
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Distribution Expenses

Our distribution expenses increased by approximately 14.7%
from RMB32.53 million to RMB37.30 million, while our
distribution expenses as a percentage of turnover increased from
1.5% to 1.7% for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008
respectively. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase
in advertising expenses by approximately RMB3.50 million
or 51.7% as a result of the launch of television commercials to
promote our Group’s image in 2008.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately
107.4% from RMB29.85 million to RMB61.91 million, while our
administrative expenses as a percentage of turnover increased
significantly from approximately 1.4% to 2.9% for the years
ended 31 December 2007 and 2008 respectively. The substantial
increase in our administrative expenses was mainly attributable

to the following factors:

1.  Payment of a one-off IPO related professional fees of
approximately RMB9.61 million in 2008;

2. Increase in staff costs in accordance with the
implementation of Labours’ Law in PRC;

3. Increase in recurring professional fees such as compliance
advisor, legal fees, public relations, and printing charges of
RMB6.45 million subsequent to the listing of the Company
and in relation to the acquisition of Xinggao Aluminium;
and

4. Increase in Directors’ remuneration subsequent to the
listing of our Company.

Profit from Operations

As a result of the factors discussed above, the profit from
operations dropped by 77.6% from RMB318.97 million to
RMB71.47 million for the years ended 31 December 2007 and
2008 respectively. The decrease in operating profit was mainly
attributable to the deterioration of gross profit margin, decrease
in one-off gain on disposal of lease prepayments, net losses of
aluminium future contracts, and increase in distribution and
administrative expenses resulting from the payment of a one-off
IPO related professional fees.
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B8 A
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TEA=T B BB A E AR
318,970,000 G F #£77.6% £ A R 71,470,000
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Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs increased by 19.3% from RMB28.04 million
to RMB33.45 million for the years ended 31 December 2007
and 2008 respectively. The increase in net finance costs was
mainly due to the increase in interest rate and average bank
borrowings to finance working capital and capital expenditure
for the expansion of our business during the year under review.
Net finance costs as a percentage of turnover increased from
1.3% to 1.6% for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008
respectively.

Income Tax (Expenses)/Credit

Our Group is not subject to any income tax in the Caymans
Islands and the BVI. No provision for Singapore Corporate
Profits Tax and Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as our Group
has no assessable profits during the year (2007: Nil).

Guangdong Xingfa is a wholly foreign owned enterprise and is
entitled to tax concessions whereby the profit for the first two
financial years beginning with the first profit-making year is
exempted from income tax in the PRC and the profit for each of
the subsequent three years is taxed at 50% of the prevailing tax
rate set by the local authority. No provision for PRC income tax
has been made during 2007 as 2007 is the entity’s second profit-
making year.

Xinggao Aluminium is a limited liability company established
under the laws of the PRC and is liable to the PRC enterprise
On 16 March 2007, the Fifth
Plenary Session of the Tenth National People’s Congress passed
the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “New Tax Law”)
which has taken effect on 1 January 2008. In December 2007, the
Implementation Rules of the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC and “Guo Fa [2007] No. 39” were promulgated to specify

certain implementation details and grandfathering arrangements

income tax at a rate of 25%.

of the new tax law. As a result of the New Tax Law, Guangdong
Xingfa is subject to a unified tax rate of 25% and will continue
to enjoy the existing preferential tax treatment until the end
of above mentioned tax holidays. The applicable tax rate of
Guangdong Xingfa during 2008 is 12.5%.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BMEEXZLFERZEEZNFET_H=Z1+—H
1R BEES A I A i N R 28,040,000 T3
Jn19.3% % A K ¥ 33,450,000 JC o 1 H5 AL A V5 A
BN T 2 e ] R AT N 2 R R R A A B A
O A NV R SET 2 AR B S 2 T R AT A R
s e WMEZFELFER _FENFE T H
Sh—HIEFE > MBERAFFEEEEFRZ G
I 1.3% T2 1.6% -
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LR 4 3 B AR B R BVE B or 2 A R A F] o JE R
Bl % 25% B h B A 2E PTG RL o R =R FLAE=
HEAH B+HE2EARMREREGSE LR
R E A O B A ZE AR (BB D) o Bl
PR EFE)NAF—H—H AR - ChE 2T S8
BE AR ) M [ B 88 [2007] 55 39 9E It B F L
T H M BB BRSO R
WmYE Y o ﬁ%ﬁm%ﬁafﬁ!ﬁﬁfw Bl
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B R ST A Ay 1k o R ELEE N B
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Further under the New Tax Law, from 1 January 2008, non-
resident enterprises without an establishment or place of
business in the PRC or which have an establishment or place of
business in the PRC but whose relevant income is not effectively
connected with the establishment or a place of business in
the PRC, will be subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10%
(unless reduced by treaty) on various types of passive income
such as dividends derived from sources within the PRC. As
Guangdong Xingfa and Xinggao Aluminium are held by a Hong
Kong incorporated subsidiary, a rate of 5% is applicable to the
calculation of this withholding tax.

According to the notice Caishui [2008] No.l released by the
Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation,
distributions of the pre-2008 retained profits of a foreign-
invested enterprise to a foreign investor in 2008 or after are
exempt from corporate income tax. Accordingly, undistributed
profits amounted to RMB205,153,000 retained by our Group’s
PRC subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 are not subject to 5%
withholding tax on future distributions.

Pursuant to “Fo Fu Ban [2003] No. 46” and “Fo Di Shui Fa [2003]
No. 68” issued by the relevant government authorities in Foshan,
the land appreciation tax rate applicable to our Group is 1% on
the sales proceed on disposal of land use right. Gain on disposal
of land use right, net of land appreciation tax and surcharges, is
subject to the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the

PRC as mentioned above.

B BILIed vk v B2 3
e

BEAh > ARIEFBLEE > B FFNFE—H - HEE
2 B R BT B ~ S5 T o O A 5
TR R SL AR ~ 35 T (EL RS 22 T A B ECAE PP B 35
P e - 5 T A H R B IR R A ol
JEU 22 T 0 B G A (9 7% o B 358 1 2 i U ) A
10% B 3 (BR I 49 B s boh 7 80 ) MUAR FELAR B < iy
A T B 3 T B 2 % R — A 7 s R S 2
W& 2> w35 A > BOET ST BT PR BB 2 B AR
5% °

AR 45 B OB % B 2% B 5 JA B AT 2 WA B [2008] 56 1
P S E S EE S FFNFERZ AN
SNBIBE B IR B AE R AR Y]
TEFR BN A AR o BIUL > AR AE 4 IR
W AEE 2 P EEEAFR _FEFLFE T A
=T —HHAEZ RO IRE A AR 205,153,000 0
PRSI 5% 2 TR

R A48 1Ly 7T R R BRI A6 R AT 2 [k R 90 [2003 146
B8 | T b B 5 (2003168 % | o B R A 2
- i 498 1 B 2R A A G A B T A5
Z 1% o B T I RE 2 Jic g F0 Bk T S (E B I
R 45 > ZE R SF bl vb B AH BT A5 BB R R Ak
il

Annual Report 2008
20084F Rk 1

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
SFLEE 4 2 P IR PR )




18

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Profit for the Year and the Net Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing factors, the net profit for the year
decreased by approximately 89.9% from RMB291.60 million to
RMB29.31 million for the years ended 31 December 2007 and
2008 respectively. The deterioration in the net profit margin
from 13.6% to 1.4% during these two years under review was
mainly attributable to the combined effect of the deterioration
of gross profit margin by 1.1 percentage points, decrease in
one-off gain on disposal of lease prepayments of approximately
RMBI172.86 million, net losses of aluminium future contracts
of RMB19.34 million, increase in one-off payment of IPO
related professional fees of RMB9.61 million and the increase in
provision for enterprise income tax of RMB8.70 million.

Analysis of Financial Position
Current and quick ratios

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s current
and quick ratios as at 31 December 2007 and 2008:

AP B A B B AR

Hp FREE RE EELE R EEINE
A=t HIEFE FEAAR R AR
291,600,000 JC 35k > 1 89.9% & A & 29,310,000
JC o 3% W AR [ AR R 2 &R % 13.6% T Bk
F14% FEEHREMENEILUEB &
oo R EEAA S 2 — R s WD AR
172,860,000 JC ~ # && HA 15 & 49 2 B fB0F B W
19,340,000 JC ~ SZAF — YR B U2 BH 35 B A B B
254 B i N %5 9,610,000 JC K £ 25 Fr 4586 45 45
NN R ¥ 8,700,000 JC.2 A 5L BT EL o

WA B R DL 53 B
4.0 2 e o

TREIIAEER FFLELFTTNFE+
H=+—HZ 8 KOs 8 bR

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2008 2007

)3 S
“REN\E ZRFLAE

+=H=+—n +oA=+—H

Current Ratio (Note) W) LR (W)
Quick Ratio (Note) ) LR (Hf )

Note: Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets
divided by the total current liabilities at the end of the year.

Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the total
current assets and the inventories divided by the total current
liabilities at the end of the year.

..--""—'.__4| ’ e
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MEE - W) B DUAE A 2 i T T A B DA A T £
HEFH -

R L 2 DUAR A% 2 Ui ) AR (R LA B 2 SR
PRl B & AR E R -

Annual Report 2008
20084F B R



Management Discussion and Analysis

B BILIed vk v B2 3

In view of the gradual drop of PBOC interest rate announced
by People’s Bank of China in 2008, our Group repaid long-term
borrowings upon maturity and assumed more short-term bank
borrowings to finance its business operation. Therefore, the
current ratio and quick ratio of our Group had decreased slightly
to 1.21 and 0.95 respectively. Our Directors are of the opinion
that the current capital structure of our Group is very healthy
and our Group would be benefited from the drop of PBOC
interest rate when we renew the short-term loan maturing in
2009.

Gearing Ratio

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2007 and 2008:

A e ) N RRATIR T AR 2 B AR
SRAT R R Nk > AL i B IR R R A
B > MBS 2 S M ERAT A R AR AT HL S o
R > 7 42 ] 2 i 8l b R R s ) BL S50y il itk &2
1.215%0.95 - HHFGRL > NEMZH A EA R
IE R RRAE 5 17 A% 5 [ ] A A A5 A —FF LA S
2 i )RR 7 B R BN B ERA TR R Ik

ff %

N RWINAE I T LA TR
H="1—HZAlE LR

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2008 2007

#” S

RN\ ZRRLAE

T-H=+—H +ZH=1+—H

Gearing ratio (Note) BAE LR (i aE) 39.4% 35.5%

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated based on the loans and borrowings
divided by total assets and multiplied by 100%.

As at 31 December 2008, our gearing ratio was increased to
39.4% which was mainly due to the increase in total bank
borrowings of RMB182.33 million to finance its business
operation.

Inventory Turnover Days
The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s

inventory turnover days during the two years ended 31 December
2007 and 2008:

Btk B EE R DUEE RO AR B R DL A P R U

100% T4 -
RoEZENFE+_H=+—H > AEEZAEE
BTN E 39.4% > T B R ERAT A B SRR B
N %5 182,330,000 7T LA AT H B & @ sk o
17508 )

TR AEMBEE - FFLFE K FRNE
T A= B W R AR 2 AF B R

2008 2007
ZERNAE TERRLA
Inventory Turnover Days (Note) AE 1 R Bt ) 41 39

Note: Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending inventory balance before provision for the
year divided by the total cost of sales during the year multiplied
by 365 days.

Annual Report 2008
20084F Rk 1

Bt - A7 B R DA T AT 0 2 B AT 2 AR AT A
AT B SR OT 8 BB DL AR T 2 B A AR R T
FeLl365 HFIE -

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
L5 G P A TR A T




Management Discussion and Analysis

B PRI ki B 3 A

Inventories balance as at the respective years end during the two
years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008 represents the amounts
of our raw materials, work in progress and the unsold finished
goods.

Our inventory turnover days were slightly increased from 39
days to 41 days for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008
respectively.

Debtors’ Turnover Days
The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s debtors’

turnover days during the two years ended 31 December 2007 and
2008:

REEZFLTELFE L ZTEFNF+ A=+ —H
A BE 45 4 % 2 A7 B A B 0 DR R~ AR R
Lo ARG Hh RS A 2 O -

BEFFLFEL-FFNFTL_A=+—HI
R ARSRE 2 AF B R 39 H R =41 H -

P M i M 391
TREINAEEMEE FELE R EE/\E

T A = Bk AR AR 2 R R R AR A
oo

2008 2007
ZERENAE TERRALAE
Debtors Turnover Days (Note) JRE SR S L R R (MY L) 70 65

Note: Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade and bills receivables for
the year divided by turnover during the year multiplied by 365
days.

Our debtors turnover days were slightly increased from 65 days
to 70 days for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008
respectively. It was mainly due to more customers utilised bills
for settlement as evidenced by the increase in bills receivables
balances by 15.4% from RMBI120.05 million to RMBI138.54
million as at 31 December 2007 and 2008 respectively.

Creditors’ Turnover Days
The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s

creditors’ turnover days during the two years ended 31 December
2007 and 2008:

oo B IR BT R DLAR I 2 AR B AR RR 2 A8 B IR
WA T e IR WA B 0 5 A 2 T 38 OB DA AR TN 2
FEFEILL 365 HFHA -

HE - EZFLEREF/F+HA=+—HI
AR AR Z IR KGR M B 65 H M & 70
H s T5 =58 il i &5 B0 F S48 45 R ir 8 >
EoFTLFERFFNFH A= IR
JBE - B SRR 4G B i A R 120,050,000 7T 3 Tl
15.4% = N K% 138,540,000 JC °

A Mk it e )
THRERINAEESEE R LE R EE N

T A= Bk W A 2 A HR SR AR B
i

2008 2007
“EBENE e = S wte2
Creditors’ Turnover Days (Note) JEAST AR S R R R L (MY ) 26 53

Note: Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade and bills payables for the
year divided by the total cost of sales during the year multiplied
by 365 days.
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Trade and bills payable balance as at the respective year end
represents mainly the outstanding amounts payable to our
suppliers of raw materials, mainly aluminium ingots. Due to the
drop of the average selling price of our products as a result of
the drop of market price of aluminium ingots in 2008 as led by
the global economy turmoil, this balance decreased gradually.
Cash flows used in the operating activities also decreased
consequently. Therefore, the creditors’ turnover days reduced
from 53 days to 26 days for the years ended 31 December 2007
and 2008 respectively.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

Cash flow

The table below summarises our Group’s cash flow during the
two years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008:

T 2% A #2222 5y AT T U I I AT S 4 A B T AR
A% % T R ART DR ek (2 2 % 8 ) R I 7 2 R o
H P R BRAC P B 8 5 | B B\ AR G i E Rk
BUMEA SR B 5 2B AE T B - W &S R Z
Wi o KBRS T Bl R R ISR A - F
BE_FTLFELFFNF+_A=+—HI
R EAIRFGEIRIAH 53 Hi b £ 26 H -

VLB - WO B AR

Blerip bt

TERMAAEHEEE _FFLFEF _H=1+—H
R ZEFNFAZH =+ — H IR 2 3

M

2008 2007

BB\ s

RMB’ million RMB’ million

AR # G AR¥E #oC

Net cash used in operating activities S 2B T A B TR R 30.9) (145.6)
Net cash (used in)/generated from P& B () A

investing activities biT ] (247.8) 213.9
Net cash generated from financing A I B BT A B AR

activities 347.3 22.0

We generally finance our operations through a combination
of shareholders’ equity, internally generated cash flows and
bank borrowings. Following the issuance of new shares in
March 2008, we have been financing our capital expenditure
and operating requirements through internally generated cash
flows, net proceeds from the issuance of new shares and bank
borrowings. Our Directors believe that on a long-term basis,
our liquidity will be funded from operations and, if necessary,
additional equity financing or bank borrowings.
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Capital expenditures

Capital expenditure was used for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment. For the year ended 31 December 2008, our
Group’s capital expenditures were approximately RMBI133.18
million. The significant capital expenditures during the year
were mainly for acquisition of plant and equipment for the
Sanshui factory and payment for lease prepayments.

Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2008, our Group’s loans and borrowings
amounted to approximately RMBS559.33 million (2007:
RMB377.00 million). For details, please refer to notes 24 in notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

Guarantee

Certain banking facilities amounted to RMB773,000,000
(2007: RMB385,000,000) were guaranteed by certain related
parties, such banking facilities were utilised to the extent of
RMB511,093,000 (2007: w

Pledge of assets

Certain assets of our Group have been pledged to secure the
bank borrowings of our Group. For details, please refer to note
24 in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Capital commitment

As at the close of business on 31 December 2008, we had capital
commitments contracted but not provided for in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB76.39 million.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2008, our Group did not provide any
guarantee in respect of liabilities of any company not being a
member of our Group. Our Group had no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2008.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Market Risk

We are, in the normal course of business, exposed to market risk
such as foreign currencies risk, interest rate risk, commodity
price risk on aluminium, credit risk and liquidity risk. Our risk
management strategy aims to minimise the adverse effects of

these risks on our financial performance.
Foreign Currency Risk

As our Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC,
our Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and
purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations in the PRC, RMB, to which
they relate. The transactions in foreign currency are primarily
denominated in USD. Our Group currently does not have a
policy to exercise fair value hedges on foreign currency risk as
the impact of foreign currency on our Group’s total cost of sales
are minimal. However, management monitors foreign currency
exposure to ensure that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level and will consider hedging significant transactions should
the need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

Our Group adopts a policy of ensuring that over 50% of its
exposure to changes in interest rates on borrowings is on a fixed
rate basis. Our Group’s loans and borrowings are mainly short-
term and on fixed rate basis. The interest rates and terms of
repayment of our Group’s loans and borrowings are disclosed in
note 24 in notes to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.
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Commodity Price Risk on aluminium

Aluminium ingots are the major raw material of our Group’s
products which account for approximately 77% of total cost
of sales in 2007 and 2008. Fluctuations on commodity price
of aluminium will have a significant impact on our Group’s
earnings, cash flows as well as the value of the inventories.
Our Group uses its future aluminium contracts traded on the
Shanghai Future Exchange to reduce its risks arising from
fluctuations in aluminium price. Our Group enters aluminium
futures based on the inventories on hand, expected usage of
aluminium and sales requirements. Our Group considers that
it is not cost effective to maintain a highly effective hedge on
transaction basis. Generally, our Group enters into futures
aluminium contracts if the sales order of a particular customer
exceed 50 tonnes. As our Group applied its future aluminium
contracts in the above-mentioned manner and such application
does not meet the definition of hedge accounting under IFRSs.
Hence, our Group has not adopted hedge accounting.

The notional contract value and the related terms of the
commodity futures contracts of our Group are summarised as
below:

SHRH Wi DM L BB

A TEECE R T/ - e A E
FE i 2 EZIER R > AL HEHE AR 77% o R
an AR D) & B AR M 2 A Bl B A B
EEAERPE - ALEE LN ERLSITEH
ST B A A PR (B BB A AR 2 g o A
SRR T U &~ TR T O BOROEAT
MEEWM B sy o ALES - WAL 5 AT
SO P A AF B AR B o — M i A8
J5 2 B R LR SO M > R AR 4 B T SL 8 B 0 B
A o A SRR LA Bl S S S 5 4
FLAT B R A7 6 B P S 5 v RIS b g st 2
TEFE o AR I A SR AR Bt

A A 18] 7 I R A K 22 B A T SR B A O
wmr

2008 2007

ZREBNE ZRERELE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFIL NRWFIC

Purchase contracts G4

Volume (tonne) B () 260 700
Market value T 2,995 12,631
Notional contract value BRI TG 3,552 13,353
Fair value N TE (557) (722)
Contract maturity date GHIEIHAH January and January, February
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2008

— s 2%
RMB’000

AR T

2007
“EELE
RMB’000
AT

MEEH
W (1)

Sales contracts
Volume (tonne)

E
BRZFEEME

Market value
Notional contract value

AT

Fair value

HHBH

Contract maturity date

The market value of aluminium futures contracts is based on
quoted market price at the balance sheet date. The unrealised
holding gains/(losses) on the futures aluminium contracts re-
measured at fair value were approximately RMB88,000 and
RMBS557,000 as at 31 December 2007 and 2008 respectively and
the changes in the fair value were recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to our Group if a customer
or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from our Group’s
receivables from customers and other receivables.

Trade and other receivables

Our Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics
of our Group’ customer base, including the default risk of the
industry and country in which customers operate, has less of
an influence on credit risk. Approximately 5% - 10% of our
Group’s revenue is attributable to sales transactions with a single
customer for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008.
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Our Group has established a credit policy under which each new
customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before
our Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions
are offered. Our Group’s review includes external ratings,
where available. Credit limit is established for each customer
which represents the maximum open amount without requiring
approval from the Board of Directors; these limits are reviewed
annually. Customers that fail to meet our Group’s benchmark
creditworthiness may transact with our Group on a prepayment
basis. Our Group chases the customers to settle the due balances
and monitors the settlement progress on an ongoing basis. Our
Group has a concentration of credit risk of the total trade and
other receivables due from our Group’s largest debtor and the

five largest debtors as follows:

ARG B FT A BBUR » i B A S ] 2 A e A
SRS AR AR BTS2 A5
BREAL o AR 2 9 B AL S AR FT AR (s ) o
WA F P R L 2 A B IR 2 B AR e i
BEB AR 2 e A BB - AR EAREEG
A HE > % A] DA T LA SE [ 28 5 o AR M
BB e & P &5 B A BRI R A AR A
B o AREEMMNEERBES > LU A EIRAER
I AR N L AR AR N 2 38 5 B HoAth i 3 I8
-

2008 2007
ZRBEBNE TERRALAE

Due from REWCRA T A L3k
— largest debtor — BKEH A 14% 18%
— five largest debtors — A REHA 47% 52%

The maximum exposure of credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
balance sheets, including derivative financial instruments. Our

Group does not provide guarantees which would expose our

Group to the credit risk.

R AR B b 2y &R 5 B AR NS TS R E
ZIRTW(E - AN AESMTHE « AR gt
A% PR i > A 48 I T B £ B SR
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Our Group’s business is managed on a worldwide basis, but
mainly participates in five principal economic environments. The
maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and bills
receivable on the basis of geographical location of customers are

A B2 [ SE B B A o T A T A
ERBE B o 1R 5 BT M [ 0 A 2 22 B B Wk
TE K R WS SRR BT B R AR B R

as follows:

2008 2007
—EEBN\E e = = wd
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARHT L
The PRC i 356,261 373,213
North America JeEM 2,540 1,710
Europe Bk 5,205 13,672
Hong Kong A 44,792 7,206

Asia Pacific (other than the PRC and AR I (S B 5 H B B A 85 )
Hong Kong) 11,168 4,240
Total At 419,966 400,041

Normally, our Group does not obtain collateral from customers.
Our Group establishes an allowance for impairment that
represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and
other receivables. The main component of this allowance is a
specific loss component established for groups of similar assets
in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified.
The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical
data of payment statistics for similar financial assets.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that our Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. Our Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

Our Group uses activity-based costing to cost its products,
which assists it in monitoring cash flow requirements. Typically
our Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet
expected operation expenses for a period of 11 days, including
the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential
impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be
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predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, our Group
maintains the lines of credit to mitigate liquidity risk with
the maximum banking facilities and amounts utilised at the
respective balance sheet dates are as disclosed in note 24 to the
notes to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Prospects

We are now in the process of relocating our production operation
from the production plant located at Changcheng District, Foshan
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC (“Chancheng Factory”) to
the Sanshui factory. Our Directors expect the entire relocation
process will be completed in December 2009. Upon integration
of production facilities originally located at the Chancheng
Factory and new production facilities to be acquired until June
2010, the Sanshui factory is expected to have an annual designed
production capacity of aluminium profiles of approximately
150,000 tonnes in 2010.

2009 is a year with both challenges and opportunities for our
Group. Xingfa, on the one hand, is prudently reviewing the
impacts brought forth by the global economy turmoil, with
careful consideration on adjusting marketing strategy as well as
strengthening internal cost control. On the other hand, our Group
is ready and well equipped to capture the market opportunities
ahead, with the stimulating economic policies launched by the
Central Government of the PRC. It is believed that the demand
for aluminium profiles is going to maintain its growth given the
national policies to boost infrastructure and railway development
in 20009.

Upon the completion of relocation and integration of new
production equipment, our production capacity for aluminium
profiles with surface finishing will be further enhanced in 2009.
Better economy of scales is expected to be achieved to lower
the unit cost of production. Also, a comparatively relaxed credit
atmosphere in the PRC will allow our Group to intake more
bank borrowings with lower interest rate to repay those bank
borrowings with comparatively higher interest rate to reduce our
total interest expenses in 2009.

By leveraging on our advanced R&D capability, commitment to
quality, established extensive and stable sales networks in the
PRC and overseas for the past 20 years, we are very confident
that we can continue to deliver positive performance to our
shareholders in 20009.
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Use of Proceeds from the Company’s Initial
Public Offering

The proceeds from the Company’s issue of new shares on the
Stock Exchange in March 2008, after deduction of related
issuance expenses, amounted to approximately HK$220.97
million (approximately RMB198.75 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2008, our Group has utilised
approximately RMBS83.84 million for the purposes of and in
connection with the acquisition of Xinggao Aluminium, details
of which are set out in the announcement dated 19 June 2008.
The balance of the net proceeds is temporarily placed in short-
term deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. LUO Su (%£%f), aged 70, is the chairman of the Board
of Directors, an executive Director and founder of our Group.
He has over 18 years of experience in the aluminium profile
industry. He is responsible for the overall management,
operations, financial aspects, corporate directions and strategies
of our Group. Mr. Luo is qualified as an T 2EZE{ AT (industrial
economist) based on his previous experience with Nanhai
Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory. Mr. Luo was certified as an
outstanding entrepreneur of private enterprise by the People’s
Government of Foshan City in 2003, an outstanding entrepreneur
by the China Non Ferrous Metals Industry Association in 2005
and received an outstanding Guangdong patent award for the
patent titled #1454 S5 8¢ [R] /KF 20 HESE % $EE (aluminium alloy
flat ingot horizontal heat-top casting device) in 2005. Mr. Luo is
a deputy to the 12th Session of the People’s Congress of Foshan
City for a term of five years from 2003 to 2008. Mr. LUO Su is
the father-in-law of Mr. LIAO Yugqing, an executive Director.

Mr. LUO Riming (BHW]), aged 52, is an executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company. He is responsible for
the procurement and utilisation of equipment and infrastructure
for the business of our Group. Mr. Luo is also responsible for the
procurement of raw materials and the assessment and selection
of suitable suppliers. He has over 15 years of experience in the
aluminium profile industry. Mr. Luo joined our Group since the
establishment of our Group in 1980s. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Luo has worked at Nanhai Hardware Factory (township
enterprise), Nanhai Power Supply Bureau, Nanzhuang Electric
Appliance and Furniture Factory, Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Profiles Factory and Xingfa Group. Mr. Luo obtained a
bachelor’s degree in economic management by the Guangdong
Radio & TV University in 1998.

Mr. LIAO Yuqing (JEEB#) , aged 40, is an executive Director.
He is also the supervisor of the sales and marketing department
in charge of the sales and marketing activities of our Group and
is responsible for the planning, development, implementation and
evaluation of the marketing strategies of our Group. Mr. Liao
joined our Group in January 1993. Prior to that, Mr. Liao was
in the military between 1986 to 1991. Mr. Liao worked at the
Agricultural Bank of China Jiujiang Branch from 1991 to 1992.
Mr. Liao is the son-in-law of Mr. LUO Su, the chairman of our
Group and an executive Director.
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Mr. WANG Zhihua (E#&HE) , aged 38, is an executive Director.
Mr. Wang is responsible for managing capital for operations,
human resources, promotion and advertising schemes for
products of the Group. Prior to joining our Group in January
2003, from 1992 to 1997, Mr. Wang worked at Guanglian
Industrial Co., Ltd. and the Guangzhou Branch of Huaxia
Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in
statistics from the Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics
in 1992. Mr. Wang was certified as a securities agent for the
period from September 2001 to September 2004 by the Securities
Association of China.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Mo (Bf¥), aged 44, is an independent non-
executive Director appointed on 29 February 2008. He has
been a practising lawyer in the PRC since 1993 and has been
a partner of Goldsun Law Firm (BfE%i& BRIFE ) since
1998. Mr. Chen was admitted as a lawyer by the Department
of Justice of Guangdong Province in June 1989 and obtained
ZHRAERTERS (Third Grade Lawyer) from the Department of
Personnel of Guangdong Province in 1999. Mr. Chen graduated
from the Political Education Department of South China Normal
University (FERATIHI L) in 1986. He has been granted the
CRERTAE S8 Fr I S A 3 ) (Certificate of Engaging
in Securities Law Business) jointly by the Ministry of Justice
and China Securities Regulatory Commission in 1996, the (f#
Rl A = SR BB A 3 A HE LB IR SE TS G AR AR &) (Certificate
of Engaging in Delimitation of Property Rights of Collective
Science and Technology Enterprises) jointly by the Ministry of
Justice, the Ministry of Science and Technology of the People’s
Republic of China and the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council in 1998, and
the {_ETH/A RIS 8 F 5 )1 45 2675 ) (Certificate of Completion
of Training on Independent Directors of Listed Companies) by
the China Securities Regulatory Commission and the School of
Management of Fudan University jointly in 2001.

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (ff 7 38), aged 46, is an independent non-
executive Director appointed on 29 February 2008. Mr. Ho is
a senior partner of a Hong Kong law firm where he acts as the
head of that firm’s litigation department and also the principal
representative of that firm’s Guangzhou office. Mr. Ho was
awarded the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws by the University
of Hong Kong in 1986 and obtained his Bachelor of Laws degree
from the Essex Institute of Higher Education (now known as
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Anglia Ruskin University) in 1987. Mr. Ho was first admitted
as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1988. He was also admitted as a
solicitor in Singapore in 1995, England and Wales in 1997, and
has been appointed as a China-appointed attesting officer since
2006. Mr. Ho has over 20 years of legal practice experience.

On the community services aspect, Mr. Ho currently sits in the
Law Society of Hong Kong as its Vice-President and Council
Member. Besides, he was nominated as the Chairman of Duty
Lawyer Service Council in 2005, Council member of the Duty
Lawyer Service Council since 2002 and a member of other
various government and advisory boards, such as the Legal Aid
Services Council; the Board of Trustees and the Council of Lord
Wilson Heritage Trust; the Costs Committee under S74(1)(d)
of the Legal Practitioners Ordinance (Cap. 159); the Transport
Advisory Committee of the Government of HKSAR. At the same
time, Mr. Ho was also appointed as a Council member of Hong
Kong Chamber of Commerce in China-Guangdong, an Arbitrator
of Wuhan International Arbitration Court. Formerly, he served as
a Co-opted Councillor of Heung Yee Kuk, the New Territories;
a director, 3rd vice-chairman and chairman of the Board of
Directors of Yan Oi Tong for the years 1993/1994, 1994/1995,
1995/1996 respectively.

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy (#3%¥), aged 44, is an
independent non-executive Director appointed on 29 February
2008. He is an associate member of various professional
organisations, namely The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. Mr. Lam is
also a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He obtained his master’s degree in professional
accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Lam has over 20 years of experience in the accounting, banking
and finance sectors and currently is working as the General
Manager of Viking Logistics Limited, a private company which
is an airfreight operator and transportation company. Mr.
Lam was also the president of Dragon Junior Chamber, a local
chamber affiliated with Junior Chamber International Hong
Kong in 2004 and was elected as the national vice president of
the Junior Chamber International Hong Kong in 2005. From
October 2004 to November 2005, Mr. Lam was an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee of
Innovis Holdings Limited (now known as Sino Haijing Holdings
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Limited), the shares of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange.

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Siu Ki (#JkH) , aged 33, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong joined
our Group in August 2007. He is responsible for overall financial
planning, financial reporting, budgeting, investors’ relations and
implementing our Group’s business strategies. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Wong worked in two international accounting
firms from 1997 to 2003. Subsequently, between 2004 to 2007,
Mr. Wong was appointed as the Finance Director (designate) cum
Company Secretary to a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange of Singapore. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy with First class honours from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Wong is a fellow member with
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales.

Mr. LIU Yuntang (B #23%), aged 40, is the deputy general
manager of the Company and is responsible for production
management of our Group. Mr. Liu joined Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium Profiles Factory in 1993. Prior to joining our Group
in October 1993, Mr. Liu worked at Nanhai Guangdong Cable
Factory Co., Ltd. from 1991 to 1993. Mr. Liu was granted a
bachelor’s degree in engineering by the Guangdong Mechanics
Institute in 1991. He was certified as assistant engineer in 1993
by the Nanhai City Science Technology Committee and certified
as engineer in 2001 by the Foshan City Human Resources
Bureau.

Mr. WU Xikun (R#)H), aged 37, is the deputy general
manager for technology and deputy chief engineer of the
Company. Mr. Wu heads the research and development
department and is responsible for our Group’s production
technology systems, development of new products branding.
When Mr. Wu first joined our Group in July 1994, he worked at
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory where he was
a technician of the quality control section. Mr. Wu was granted
a bachelor’s degree in material science and engineering from
the Guangdong University of Technology in 1994. Mr. Wu was
nominated for the Top 10 Outstanding Youth of Foshan City in
2006.
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Mr. DU Jinhong (#:8#8t) , aged 53, is the deputy general
manager of the Company and chief financial officer of Xingfa
Aluminium and is responsible for all financial and accounting
matters of Xingfa Aluminium. Prior to joining our Group
in 1999, Mr. Du was the director (designate) of the finance
department and chief financial officer of Xingfa Group from
1999 to 2005. From 1992 to 1999, Mr. Du worked at Nanhai
Hengxing Architectural Ceramics Factory (1992 to 1993) and
Nanzhuang Town Economy Development Head Office (1993 to
1999). He was certified as assistant accountant by the Nanhai
City Science Technology Committee in 1993. Mr. Du holds a
diploma in economics management granted by the Guangdong
Administrative University in 1997.
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Report of the Directors
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The directors (“Directors”) of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings
Limited (“Company”) have the pleasure of presenting their
annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”), for the year ended 31 December
2008.

Group Reorganisation and Initial Public
Offering

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 13 September
2007 under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to a
reorganisation scheme to rationalise the structure of the Group
for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”),
the Company became the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group on 29 February 2008 (“Group
Reorganisation”). Further details of the Group Reorganisation
are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 17 March
2008 (“Prospectus”) and in note 1 in the notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

On 31 March 2008 (“Listing Date”), the shares of the Company
(“Shares™) successfully commenced dealings on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange by offering 125,400,000 Shares
(comprising 106,590,000 new Shares and 18,810,000 sale Shares)
to the public at a final offer price of HK$2.28 per Share.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of other members of the Group
are set out in note 1 in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s

principal activities during the year under review.
Results and Appropriation
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008

are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 68 of

the annual report.
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Final Dividend and Special Dividend

Our Directors recommended the payment of a special dividend
of RMBO0.029 per ordinary share and subject to the approval by
our shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, a
final dividend of RMBO0.021 for the year ended 31 December
2008 (2007: nil). The pay-out ratio (including the final dividend
and the special dividend) is about 70% based on net profit in
2008. The conversion of RMB into Hong Kong dollars shall
be calculated on the average price of the medium prices of the
conversion of RMB into Hong Kong dollars as announced by the
People’s Bank of China one calendar week preceding the annual
general meeting. Subject to the approval by the shareholders,
the proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or about
19 June 2009 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 3 June 2009, which is
also the record date for the special dividend.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 1 June 2009 to Wednesday, 3 June 2009, both dates
inclusive. During such period, no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final and special
dividends and the attendance in the forthcoming annual general
meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 29 May 2009.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past four years is set out on page 168.

Loans and Borrowings
Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the balance

sheet date are set out in note 24 in the notes to the consolidated

financial statements.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s paid-in capital for the year ended
31 December 2008 are set out in note 26 in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme
(“Scheme™) on 29 February 2008. The Scheme became effective
on 31 March 2008. The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Participants under the Scheme include directors and employees
of the Group or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group
holds an equity interest; any suppliers, customers, advisers or
consultants of the Group or any Invested Entity; any persons or
entities that provide research development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity; any holders of
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and any other groups or classes of participants whom the
board of Directors (“Board”) considers have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group must not exceed 41,800,000 Shares,
being 10% of Shares in issue on the date of listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange unless approval of the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”) has been obtained. The Shares
issuable under the options granted under the Scheme but yet
exercised must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in

issue from time to time.
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No share option was granted by the Company since its adoption.
As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 41,800,000 Shares, which
represents 10% of the issued Shares as at the date of listing of
the Shares on the Stock Exchange.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued Shares from time to

time.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be
such price as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine
at the time of grant of the option but the subscription price shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date
of the Board approving the grant of an option, which must be a
business day (“Offer Date”); (ii) the average closing price of a
Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the Offer Date;
and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period
commencing immediately after the business day on which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted in accordance
with the Scheme (“Commencement Date”) and expiring on such
date of the expiry of the option as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine and which shall not exceed ten years from
the Commencement Date but subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof as set out in the Scheme.

Upon acceptance of the grant of an option, the grantee shall pay
HKS$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years

commencing on 31 March 2008.

Details of the Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year under review.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in note 27 in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2008, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands amounted to RMB669,155,000 (2007: Nil), of
which RMB20,900,000 has been proposed as final and special
dividends for the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2008, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 26.5% (2007:
27.5%) of the Group’s turnover whereas sales to the largest
customer accounted for approximately 7.7% (2007: 7.5%) of the
Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, purchases from the five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 69.6% (2007:
72.7%) of the Group’s total cost of purchase whereas purchases
from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 39.3%
(2007: 43.5%) of the Group’s total cost of purchase.
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None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five
largest suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Directors

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LUO Su (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Riming (Chief executive officer)
Mr. LTAO Yugqing

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

(appointed on 29 February 2008)
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

(appointed on 29 February 2008)
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy

(appointed on 29 February 2008)

In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Articles, each Mr.
WANG Zhihua, Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu will retire
from the office of Director by rotation and each of them, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 1 March 2008.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors have been
appointed for a fixed term of two years commencing from 1
March 2008.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the
Company considered all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 30 to 34 of the annual report.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had approximately 2,285
employees. The Group’s total staff costs, including wages and
basic salaries, directors’ remuneration, commission, bonus,
benefits in kind and retirement benefits scheme contribution was
amounted to approximately RMB56.52 million (2007: RMB43.48

million).

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and are reviewed regularly.
Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group. The primary goal of the remuneration
policy with regard to the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors is to enable the Group to retain and motivate executive
Directors by linking their compensation with performance as
measured against corporate objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group’s remuneration packages
include basic salaries and discretionary bonuses.
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The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) under rules and regulations of Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all its employees in Hong Kong.
All the employees of the Group in Hong Kong are required
to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in the
future years as at 31 December 2008. The Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC, in compliance with the applicable regulations of the
PRC, participated in a statemanaged retirement benefits scheme
operated by the local government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of their payroll costs to the
retirement benefits schemes. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group
to the schemes and cost charged to the consolidated income
statement represents contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is
set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
report.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in note 8 in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements and in the paragraph headed “Connected
transactions” in this report, no Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company or any of the companies which have become its
subsidiaries upon the Group Reorgansiation was a party during
the year under review.
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o R A v B SUAFL B O 1 2 )B4y ~
I B oy B A it v 2 M

Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and Its
Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of A -EZENFE+ H=+—H AR FREFEF
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, ¥ ]55571 5 55 25 M WA B 1) ([ 88 25 B 0 i
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of i) %3520 8 T 1- 172 & st MHTsc 8% - slR 8
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of T 81087 # LT AR EFETHEHRELIHN
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong  #E#ESE QI A JH A€ AN N 7] I S T2 Bkl > K
FAS R FBATEL N BJAA S A s AT A0 A B [

(72 75 FL a8 5 B B G 1 5B X VER) 2 ety ~ #H B i
1y B A RE RS 2 HEAE TR IR

Kong) (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Percentage
shareholding in
the same class of
securities as at
31 December

2008
Number  fiA=ZZ)N\4E
Company/Name of and class of +=H=+—H
associated corporations Name of directors Capacity securities i 80 25 4 It
Al M B A H A g4 i % WOH B8 ipiq:4
(Note)
(Hat1)
Company LUO Su Beneficial owner 136,978,600 32.77%
RN/ g HamEaA ordinary Shares
(L)
136,978,600/
28 AR (L)
Company LUO Riming Beneficial owner 96,495,300 23.09%
AAH] A H B HmEaA ordinary Shares
(L)
96,495,300/
58 M (L)
Company LIAO Yuqing Beneficial owner 59,126,100 14.15%
AN B R Bila A ordinary Shares
(L)
59,126,100/
Hm (L)
Note: The letter “L” represents the Director’s interests in the Shares. Bitat s FBETL] de AR 2 R 45 -
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

At no time during the year under review were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisitions of Shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

Director’s Interests in Competing Business

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, none of the Directors hold
any interests in any competing business against the Company or
any of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons
who are Required to Disclose their Interests
Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests
in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations” above, as at 31 December 2008,
no other person had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which are required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR A )

o By 2 A

T [ 7 B8 I A T ) ME 452 A 2 S 5 5 25
22 T 1P AR B A T3 A T A A 2 ) B A A
R T 6 25 2 EM) > B RS AT (AT AT % S R 5
B PR AR 2 ) AT ] 6 2 ) 4 PR et 3 2 T AT
A HA N A % 5 B

AR BT R Z A A

PR AR T R A R SRR+ TA
S BB AR T AR AT ] S A ) S
VAT BT S AT A i o

R 25 B 300 B0 B S XV 8 2R 5 48
FZh 2 BEBR B A A 1

Wi 130 [ 28 5 AR 20 v B CH AR g a2 1 2 T4y~ AR B
et R A HERE 2 e 4 | — BT SR H AN > &
TN A= —F > B AN N AR R R 2 5
173 B AR I 1 53 A R 2 B R T ZHE BRI AS 2 W)
R A8 I3 M ) B e 1) 2 3 3 6 Mk A7 2 & e i A
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Connected Transactions

Report of the Directors
0 R

B 32 5

A. The following entities are connected persons of the A. VAINARAANFZEH AL WREE—F

Company and had transactions with the Group during the FNFE+ZA =1 —H AR R B R FEAT
year ended 31 December 2008: T

Name of the entity
A5

Connection with the Company

BUAR 2wl Z B R

JE SR B2 £ A PR )
(Guangdong Xingfa Group Co.,
Ltd.) (“Xingfa Group”)

JE SR B2 A A PR )

([BLEEsE )

JB SR B A s A PR A )
(Guangdong Xingfa
Innovation Co., Ltd.) (“Xingfa
Innovation”)

JB SR B R s A PR A )

( [HLEE AR )

fill L1y 57 B A BR A ]
(Foshan Leahin Coating Co.,
Ltd.) (“Leahin Coating”)
fill L1y 57 B A BR A ]
([S7BLEFL )

il Ly 7 B3 i T 2 A B )
(Foshan Xingfa Curtain Wall,
Door & Window Co., Ltd.)
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”)

il Ly T B3 i T 2 A B )

([HLEERENE )

0 B B 2 A R ]
(Foshan Xinggao Aluminium
Co., Ltd.) (“Xinggao
Aluminium”)
01 B B 2 A R ]
(THEazE])
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Owned as to 46%, 33% and 21% by Mr. LUO Su, Mr. LUO Riming and Mr.
LIAO Yuqing respectively. Mr. LUO Su. Mr. LUO Riming and Mr. LIAO
Yuqing are the controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
and each of them is an executive Director.

I ER BB R ST A~ AR FU AR R B B ST A B 46%  33% M 21% o ARBR S
BRI B B B e A By IR RO CEFE R BT AR - RS A5 B L
ITH#HH -

Owned as to 91.3% by Xingfa Group.
R B % S P B 4191.3%

Owned as to 51% by Xingfa Group.
R B % S P A 51%

Owned as to 46% by Mr. LUO Su, as to 33% by Mr. LUO Riming and as to
21% by Mr. LTIAO Yuqing. Mr. LUO Su, Mr. LUO Riming and Mr. LIAO
Yugqing are the controlling Shareholders and each of them is an executive
Director.

43 Fl e 2 A A~ B HWA AR R B R B AR B 46% ~ 33% 0 21% © B MR ST A
FRH RS A BB B B R BB i S R A BT o

Previously owned as to 46% by Mr. LUO Zhiyong (the son of Mr. LUO
Su), as to 33% by Mr. LUO Riming and as to 21% by Mr. LIAO Yuqing.
Mr. LUO Riming and Mr. LIAO Yuqing are the controlling Shareholders
and each of them is an executive Director. Since July 2008, Xinggao
Aluminium has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

WA AR ST GRARE R T) CBHUIEE R HA
46% 33% J221% o #E H W58 A K B T B8 Sl AR A P8 SO BCoR > TIN5 4% B 0 A T
e T/ FELAR BREECRAAANFZ 2 EHE AT -

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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During the year ended 31 December 2008, the following
continuing connected transactions are exempt from the
reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’
approval requirement under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing
Rules and are included herein for information only.

1. Pursuant to a lease agreement entered into between
PR BLEE R 26 HBR A F] (Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium Co., Ltd.) (“Guangdong Xingfa”) and
Leahin Coating dated 28 December 2006 (as varied
and supplemented by a supplemental agreement
dated 4 March 2008), Leahin Coating leased from
Guangdong Xingfa a portion of an industrial building
with a total gross floor area of approximately
2,228 sq.m. situated at No. 82 West Longjin Road,
Nanzhuang Town, Chancheng District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China
which is used as warehouse for a term commenced
from 1 January 2007 and ending on 31 December
2008 at an annual rental of RMB160,416.

2. Pursuant to a lease agreement entered into between
Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa Curtain Wall dated
26 December 2006 (as varied and supplemented by
a supplemental agreement dated 4 March 2008),
Xingfa Curtain Wall leased from Guangdong
Xingfa a portion of an industrial building with a
total gross floor area of approximately 2,350 sq.m.
situated at No. 82 West Longjin Road, Nanzhuang
Town, Chancheng District, Foshan City, Guangdong
Province, the People’s Republic of China which is
used as warchouse for a term commenced from 1
January 2007 and ending on 31 December 2008 at an
annual rental of RMB169,200.

Pursuant to two sale and purchase agreements entered
into between our Group and Xingfa Curtain Wall on 12
October 2007 and 6 December 2007, our Group disposed
of the above assets to Xingfa Curtain Wall at an aggregate
consideration of RMB23.0 million. The transaction was
completed on 29 July 2008. Therefore, the above lease
agreements were terminated.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR A )

AR R T H = —HIREEN
T B A B 3 ) R e B SE TR RIS
14A 330 TE T A ~ /i T M8 3 B SR Ak vE 2
HE - WAk A A A Ak 2%

1. R R AR AR ([ R
) BN BRI TR R NE T A
_+AET¢ZEE%%/¢—??A
AF = AU H FT S 2 4 7S 1 R 1 5T KAl
ﬁ’iﬁﬁﬂmiﬁ IRE WL IE YN

FL R JBE PR 0 Ly ok s e S B
ﬁéﬁﬂ%szﬁ B S R 492,228 F oK
Z TERMERE S AELRE A%
TEF—H—ARE_ZE N+ H
——HJE - A RH160,41690

2. 3R JRE SR B BB R A RN
FE+TH T NHEI L Z A E i (58
TERE)NEZ AW HET L2 M s
BT 78 > TS 1) R BRI AL
*%AEAﬂ!E%%%mmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
S A VR G B 2 R AR SR I A 492,350
POk L2ER MR o VR -
HoZEEF—H—HEE EEN
FAZH=T—HERN FH AR
169,2007C °

m%ﬁﬂﬁﬂhﬁ%ﬁﬂ FELAFETH
T oHE CEELFET T HANHF LW E
T W o A 4 ] ) L %%%mﬁiﬂﬁﬁnm
A8 2 N R#23,000,0007C © 7% 38 A1
JEEEH T UHSER - FL > Bl fﬂ%%’:%
ELAE AL o
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C. The following continuing connected transactions were C. REBE_FTZNF+_H=1+—HILFE T

non-exempt continuing connected transactions under GIFF R BIEAC 5 B BT RLAIEE14A 351RIE N
Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules and waivers from strict IR FFAE B HSE b 0 EL 1] B 3 iy oK
compliance with the announcement and independent Yo B 3T T B A8 S IR SRUAE M 2 B M
Shareholders’ approval requirement have been sought REFENELACA T AR AT 2 BHERE
from the Stock Exchange but have ceased to be connected 5 o

transactions for our Company in July 2008.

1. The following is a brief description of the continuing 1. PAR By RR BRI 2 ) 2 Bl A
connected transactions:

Category

oyl

Description

Wk

1. Leasing of machinery by

Guangdong Xingfa from
Xingfa Group

TSR L 4
=

Annual Report 2008
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On 28 July 2007, Guangdong Xingfa entered into a machinery lease
agreement with Xingfa Group (“First Machinery Lease Agreement”).
Pursuant to the First Machinery Lease Agreement, Xingfa Group leases
102 units of machinery and equipment in relation to the production
of aluminium profiles owned by it to Guangdong Xingfa. The First
Machinery Lease Agreement is for a term from 28 July 2007 to 31
December 2009, subject to early termination by Guangdong Xingfa
serving three-month written notice to Xingfa Group. Pursuant to the
First Machinery Lease Agreement, the annual rental is RMB2,543,000.
The rental paid for the year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to
RMBI1,483,000. The First Machinery Lease Agreement was terminated
in July 2008.
AT RRAAEE A AN > JR AR B Bl L A AT 7 b AL
(TEE— M A B ek | ) o AR50 — b o AL 5 W o » L 4 [ o) o SR L
B TR A A SRR 2 102 4B 2 B s o 25— Bk AL I i 2 47 10
HoFFEFEA AR E ZFFIAFET A= —Hik > M
B i 3 ] o L AR 9 e ] A R LA AL o R AR R R
ek - AL A RH2,543,000 70 « |8 = F L/ S+ H =+ —HIFE
Z O A AR5 1,483,0007C o 35— 1 A AHL B o sl i — /L
ke
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Category
BN

Description

Wkt

2. Leasing of machinery by
Guangdong Xingfa from
Xingfa Innovation

JE RO L ) B 1
GEVEL: <o

3. Leasing of machinery by
Guangdong Xingfa from
Xinggao Aluminium

JEE R L ) L 5 6 2
GEVEL: Sof

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR A )

On 28 July 2007, Guangdong Xingfa entered into the a machinery
lease agreement (“Second Machinery Lease Agreement”) with Xingfa
Innovation. Pursuant to the Second Machinery Lease Agreement,
Xingfa Innovation leases 16 units of machinery and equipment in
relation to the production of aluminium profiles owned by it to
Guangdong Xingfa. The Second Machinery Lease Agreement is
for a term from 28 July 2007 to 31 December 2009, subject to early
termination by Guangdong Xingfa serving three-month written notice
to Xingfa Innovation. Pursuant to the Second Machinery Lease
Agreement, the annual rental is RMB860,000. The rental paid for the
year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to RMB502,000. The Second
Machinery Lease Agreement was terminated in July 2008.
AT ZRAAEEA T AN > B R BB LB AR AT S b A
(T2 R ok | ) o ARIRAE — B & AL 65 1h o » B 00 v o SR L
B R R FL T B A AR E S B 2 16 A S B < B R AR AL Tk 2 AR
W = FFLFEEA S\ BBZE —FTIFE A=t —H 1k M
Jo AL SR T 1) B R A T T SRR AR o AR PR TR A
Btk AR A RM860,0007T - 2 —F T/ FEA+ T H =+ —HILF
JE 2 EATAL 4 2 AR 502,0007C « 2 AR AH 1 el it — 2 2/ \4E-E
ke

On 31 August 2007, Guangdong Xingfa (Sanshui Branch) entered into
a machinery lease agreement (“Third Machinery Lease Agreement”)
with Xinggao Aluminium. Pursuant to the Third Machinery Lease
Agreement, Xinggao Aluminium leases one unit of aluminium extruder
of an annual designed extrusion capacity of approximately 24,000
tonnes to Guangdong Xingfa (Sanshui Branch). The Third Machinery
Lease Agreement is for a term from 31 August 2007 to 31 December
2009, subject to early termination by Guangdong Xingfa (Sanshui
Branch) serving three-month written notice to Xinggao Aluminium.
The rental paid for the year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to
RMBI ,622,000.

AT ERLAENA = —H o B BLEE = K70/ w) B B 7 2 5T S — b
G Wk ([55 ARES T hak | ) o MLAB SR AR T I T ok > B o
SE 16 Ji AR B — KO3 23w AR — AL R R R AR 7 E 40 24,0 00 MR 2 53 41 B
JEEME o 2 = AR B ek 2 AE i —F R LA AA =S+ R E T
JUAEH T A=A H Ak S0 ] B R B 3 = 7 o ) 1) B v 8 S 3 o =
AFEEMERLE - e —FF/FET A= —HIMEEZ O 4
5 NERH1,622,0007C ©
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Category Description

BN ki

4.  Leasing of properties at On 31 August 2007, Guangdong Xingfa (Sanshui Branch) entered
Sanshui by Guangdong into a lease agreement (“Sanshui Lease Agreement”) with Xinggao
Xingfa (Sanshui Branch)  Aluminium, pursuant to which Guangdong Xingfa (Sanshui Branch)
from Xinggao has agreed to lease from Xinggao Aluminium two industrial buildings
Aluminium and a dormitory situated in Sanshui (“Sanshui Leased Property”), and

such additional buildings and structures constructed and delivered to
our Group for our use. The Sanshui Lease Agreement is for a term
from 31 August 2007 to 31 December 2009, subject to early termination
by Guangdong Xingfa (Sanshui Branch) serving three-month written
notice to Xinggao Aluminium. As at 31 August 2007, the Sanshui
Leased Property comprised two industrial buildings and a dormitory
having an aggregate gross floor area of approximately 34,322 sq.m..
The annual rental for that portion of Sanshui Leased Property is
RMB2,504,000. The parties agreed that the annual rental per sq.m. for
the additional building and structures to be constructed and delivered
to our Group for use during the term of the Sanshui Lease Agreement
would be RMB72.

The rental paid for the year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to
RMBI1,461,000.

JE SRS = 7K 7y ][] A FEFRLENA = —H o BORBEE =K 53w BB 5 6 37T L — (Al
WL iy S AEL o2 77 Bthek ([ KA W] ) - BRI - R B = 7K 5320 ] ] 25 ) Bl o i 3
EVIIPL7ES FELFRASE A = 7K Tl 22 i R B e — Wi & ([ =KAHEWE]) - DIK

V& BT 2 1) A B 5 A A4 A 4 1 66 P - HC A R R A 52 SR 34 - =K
EHRZFEMH - FT L A= AR E R TIE = —
F1 L > b 259 [ R L = 7Kk 43 2 ) T o B 2 S 3 L =81 1) 5 10 R 2
R - BT LFENA =T —H K EY RO AR EmELN
34,322 J5 K 2 i TR OR S e — Wi o o 5% Ry = KA B 2 AR
Py NRHE2,504,0007C o 514 7 [R5 i = /K AR B 1h sl A7 25800 7R v LT 1)
A 2 [ S A A A 4 {1 2 JFC Al A IR 5 B SR ) 2 AR AHL A 25 P O K
AR T727C

BEZZNF+ A= —HIEEE 2O B ARYE1,461,000
ﬁo
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R,
-

2. Set out below is the annual caps for the year ended 31 2. FICHEkE Bk R TERHER AL S E
December 2008 of each of the continuing connected EE ) F+H=Z1—HIFE R
transactions set out above: R

Annual caps for
the year ended
31 December 2008

RE_RZN\E
+=H=1+—H
Description IHARE Z AR B
Wt N
1. Leasing of machinery by Guangdong Xingfa from Xingfa Group RMB2,543,000
Joe RCBEL 3% i L % 2 L LT A A RH2,543,0007C
2. Leasing of machinery by Guangdong Xingfa from Xingfa Innovation RMBS860,000
Ji RSB 1) L% A AL R A A E#860,0007C
3. Leasing of machinery by Guangdong Xingfa from Xinggao Aluminium RMB2,781,000
Vi RO SHL 3% 1 S 5 % SE AL T e NEH2,781,0007C
4.  Leasing of properties at Sanshui by Guangdong Xingfa (Sanshui Branch) RMBS,000,000
from Xinggao Aluminium AR #8,000,0005C

JE SR BB = K 43 ) 1) B e i 2EAE L = KTl 2 W 2
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During the year ended 31 December 2008, the following — JA#E —EL /1 H =1 —HIEFE > THIFE
continuing connected transactions were non-exempt BHHAC S A FHTHRIEE14A 35 AT 2 E T e Fr il
continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.35 of  BH#HL%Z 5, > 3 O 6] I 38 T 5 5R 4 00 B b < A A I
the Listing Rules and waivers from strict compliance with M7 & s 2 H5E o

the announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval

requirement have been sought from the Stock Exchange.

1. The following is a brief description of the continuing 1. DRGSR 5 2
connected transactions:

. Leasing of properties at Guangdong Xingfa entered into following lease agreements with
Chancheng by Guangdong Xingfa Group and Xingfa Innovation respectively, each dated as of 28
Xingfa from Xingfa July 2007, in respect of certain properties at our Chancheng Factory
Group and Xingfa (“Chancheng Lease Agreements”), pursuant to which:

Innovation TRBHELH ZNH > R B 43 7 B A 5 K Bt AT A 4R

o TR 1) LB AR T K g MR < T SERT L T AR ek (TR ek ) ) o SRt
AHAE AL AR Ik 2 ) 2

(i) Guangdong Xingfa leased from Xingfa Group 12 industrial
buildings, a dormitory, a research building and various structures
with a total gross floor area of approximately 45,518.86 sq.m.
situated at No. 23 Renhe Road, Nanzhuang Town, Chancheng
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC; and

() ECOR BB o) SR A L P I A R o LT A I D S LA D I
23982 T T RO R~ — A < — IR R M K R SR
Ao ST RE4045,518.86° T I K 5 I

(ii) Guangdong Xingfa leased from Xingfa Innovation 3 industrial
buildings, 3 warehouses, an exhibition hall, Levels 1 to 5 of
an 8-storey office building and various structures with a total
gross floor area of approximately 29,840.65 sq.m. and various
structures situated at No. 54 Renhe Road, Nanzhuang Town,
Chancheng District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

(i) B RCB % 1) B )R REL PR I B SR o LT s S SR
54582 =W TRORE - =R - — RN s R R T
12 SEEANZ (RRESRY) > S0 SR 5 4029,840.65°FJ5 K
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ii.  Purchase of coating
materials by Guangdong
Xingfa from Leahin

Coating
Jig SRR 1) S B e i
W2 [ A R

iii.  Sale of aluminium profiles
by Guangdong Xingfa to
Xingfa Curtain Wall
Ji TR 1) BLE
Rty )

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR )

The term of the Chancheng Lease Agreements commenced from 28 July
2007 and will end on 31 December 2009, subject to early termination
by Guangdong Xingfa serving three-month written notice to Xingfa
Group and Xingfa Innovation respectively. The aggregate rental
payable by our Group to Xingfa Group and Xingfa Innovation under
the Chancheng Lease Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2008
was RMB&8,731,000, which was determined with reference to the actual
area occupied by our Group during the year.

MR kel 2 LEC A T VHB G - W R FFIE T
F = — F R M 2 P R BB T 4 i 1) SR AR [ % SRR T L
AR T N R LA UL o AR MR A B R
= F RSB » A 2 [ AT B £ ) R L T A AN A AR
18,731,0007C » J97H 275 7 S B AR IR BL AL T 18T B8 70 i E

During the year ended 31 December 2008, Guangdong Xingfa
purchased from Leahin Coating paint materials for use in the surface
finishing process.

R TR T A = HUR AR R - B SRS 1) S B e
TP 2R T i B TP 2 W O i bR o

For the year ended 31 December 2008, Guangdong Xingfa spent
approximately RMBI12,623,000 on purchasing paint materials from
Leahin Coating.

WMEEZNES A= —HIRFE BEREEHHH AR
12,623,000 [ 7. 5L 2 Ao} 0 MR 8 S A

During the year ended 31 December 2008, Guangdong Xingfa sold to
Xingfa Curtain Wall certain construction materials specified by Xingfa
Curtain Wall. The construction materials purchased by Xingfa Curtain
Wall were further processed into window and curtain wall and sold to
its customers.

BEZERRET T A = BRI > BUEE S 3 o) BLEERL i 1
BERTRE E 2 A T A o BLEEHE R B A b FE 0 T P 7 B A
B HEFHE -

For the year ended 31 December 2008, Guangdong Xingfa sold
construction materials to Xingfa Curtain Wall for approximately
RMB33,412,000.

WETEL)EATH = HIRAEE BB 55 8 T B R 2 @ b
#) N R33,412,0007C ©
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2. Set out below is the annual caps of each of the 2. FICHAEIEREREE S 2 FE b
continuing connected transactions set out above: FR
Annual Caps
AR R
For the year ended For the year For the year
31 December 2008 ending ending

BETRENE 31 December 2009 31 December 2010
+ZH=1+—H BRE_ZEZNE BE R R4
IS B Y £ o e | +ZA=+—H

IEAR AR
i. Leasing of properties at Chancheng by RMBS,731,000 RMBS,731,000 Not applicable
Guangdong Xingfa from Xingfa Group ARHES,731,00000  ARHES,731,00000 il
and Xingfa Innovation
JoE SR B ) B ) I B
FH AL ARk 2 W 2
ii.  Purchase of coating materials by RMB25,000,000 RMB35,000,000 RMB50,000,000

Guangdong Xingfa from Leahin Coating AE%‘%,OO0,000TT: /\EW%,OO0,000% ANE#50,000,0007C
& TS i) 7 LV R R S R

iii.  Sale of aluminium profiles by Guangdong RMB50,000,000 RMB70,000,000 RMB100,000,000
Xingfa to Xingfa Curtain Wall AR #50,000,0000t  AR#70,000,0000C A R¥100,000,0007C
Vi SR 1) B s 45 5 S AU B

3. Views of the independent non-executive Directors: 3. BAIERUATES B
The independent non-executive Directors have WL IE AT HE S A B R A R R
reviewed the above continuing connected Gy > W sRR% 52 5 )7 -

transactions and confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of (1) AALNE B K ER R
the Company; AT

(2) on normal commercial terms or terms no less (2) R R SR AR
favourable to the Company than terms available I 48 57 575 = J7 B Ak sl AR 2 K
to or from independent third parties; and AT ]

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement (3) MRIEHEZE S Z MBI
governing them on terms that are fair e A A R 2 A OEAT - BAT A
and reasonable and in the interests of the JBE SR T AN ) 2 BB 4 o

Shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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D. The Directors confirm that in respect of the connected
transactions and the continuing connected transactions
mentioned above, the Company has complied the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

KPMG, the auditors of the Company, have performed
certain agreed-upon procedures on the continuing
connected transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules and confirmed to the Board that the

transactions:
(i)  have received approval of the Board;

(ii) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

(iii) have been entered into in accordance with the

terms and conditions under the relevant agreements

governing the transactions; and

(iv) did not exceed the cap disclosed previously, details of
which have been set out in the Company’s prospectus
dated 17 March 2008.

Corporate Governance

After the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on the
Listing Date, the Company has complied fully with the code
requirements under the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The Company’s corporate governance report for the year under

review are set out in pages 57 to 65 of the annual report.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct in relation to securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code (which was in force prior to 1 January 2009)
throughout the year under review.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference based upon the provisions and recommended
practices of the CG Code on 29 February 2008. The primary
duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control systems of the
Group. At present, members of the audit committee comprise Mr.
LAM Ying Hung Andy (chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo and Mr. HO
Kwan Yiu, being the three independent non-executive directors
of the Company.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2008 have been reviewed by the audit committee,
who is of the opinion that such statement complied with the
applicable accounting standards, the Stock Exchange and legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on 29
February 2008 with terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The remuneration committee comprises Mr. HO Kwan
Yiu (chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy and
Mr. LUO Su. The primary duties of the remuneration committee
are to review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors and
senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 29
February 2008 with terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The nominated committee comprises Mr. LUO
Su (chairman), Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. CHEN Mo and Mr.
LAM Ying Hung Andy. The nomination committee is manily
responsible for making recommendations to the board of
Directors on appointment of Directors and management of board

succession.
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Subsequent Events

Details of subsequent events occuring after the balance sheet
date are set out in note 34 in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as at the date of this report.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint KPMG as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LUO Su

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 April 2009
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
(“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
as its own code of corporate governance. The directors of the
Company (“Directors”) consider that since the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 31 March 2008 (“Listing Date”), the Company has complied
with the code provisions under the CG Code.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate
governance of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent
procedures are in place to protect and maximise the interests of
the shareholders.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate
governance practices adopted and observed by the Company
from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2008 (“Review
Period”).

A. Directors’ Securities Transactions

On 29 February 2008, the Company adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (in
force prior to 1 January 2009) (“Model Code™) as its own
code of conduct for securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standards set out
in the Model Code throughout the Review Period.
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B. Board of Directors

@

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of
executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors. As at the date of this report, the board
of Directors (“Board”) consisted the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. LUO Su (Chairman)

Mr. LUO Riming (Chief executive officer)
Mr. LIAO Yugqing

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Mo
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy

The executive Directors, with the assistance from the
senior management, form the core management team
of the Company. The executive Directors have the
overall responsibility for formulating the business
strategies and development plan of the Group and the
senior management are responsible for supervising
and executing the plans of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”).
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(ii) Board meetings

During the Review Period, three full board meetings
were held, at which:

— the Directors approved the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2007
and reviewed the results announcement, annual
report and the circular to the shareholders of
the Company in relation to the general and
repurchase mandates proposal and re-election
of the Directors retiring by rotation;

—  the Directors approved the interim results of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2008 and reviewed the results announcement
and interim report; and

— the Directors approved the acquisition of
Foshan Xinggao Aluminium Co., Ltd. which
constituted a discloseable and connected
transaction for the Company.

Prior notices convening the Board meetings were
despatched to the Directors setting out the matters
to be discussed. Prior to and at the meetings, the
Directors were provided with the relevant documents
to be discussed and approved. The company secretary
of the Company is responsible for keeping minutes
for the Board meetings.
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(iii) Attendance record (iii) RSk
The following is the attendance record of the board PUF 538 g R B T s 2 S e g
meetings held by the Board during the Review ELA-E
Period:
Attendance at
meeting
o TS
Executive Directors A7
Mr. LUO Su (Chairman) BRI (F) 3/3
Mr. LUO Riming (Chief executive officer) ERHRSCE (FTECHE#E) 3/3
Mr. LIAO Yuging BEEAE 2/3
Mr. WANG Zhihua FREHESLAE 3/3
Independent non-executive Directors V E Vi s
Mr. CHEN Mo BRER SR 3/3
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (OREE P 3/3
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy RIS 3/3

(@iv)

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors. The Board considers
that all independent non-executive Directors have
appropriate and sufficient industry or finance
experience and qualifications to carry out their
duties so as to protect the interests of shareholders of
the Company. One of the independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy, has over
20 years in the accounting, banking and finance
sectors and is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has received the annual written
confirmations from all independent non-executive
Directors in respect of their independence. Based
on such annual written confirmations, the Board
considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are being considered to be independent.
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(v) Relationship among members of the Board

Mr. LIAO Yuqing, an executive Director, is the son-
in-law of Mr. LUO Su, an executive Director and
the chairman of the Board. Save as aforesaid, there
is no other family relationship between any of the
Directors or chief executive officer. All of them are
free to exercise their independent judgment.
(vi) Director’s training
To keep the Directors and senior management of
the Group abreast of the latest development of
Listing Rules, the Company has, subsequent to the
Review Period, organised a seminar on the recent
amendments of the Listing Rules for the Directors
and senior management of the Group given by legal
advisers of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
are segregated. Mr. LUO Su is the chairman of the Board
who is chiefly responsible for managing the Board while
Mr. LUO Riming is the chief executive officer of the
Company who takes charge of the supervision of the
execution of the policies determined by the Board. The
chairman also chairs the Board meetings and briefs the
Board members on the issues discussed at the Board

meetings.
Independent Non-executive Directors

All the independent non-executive Directors have been
appointed for a fixed term of two years commencing from
1 March 2008.

The independent non-executive Directors have attended the
Board meetings and provided independent judgment on the
issues discussed.
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Remuneration of Directors

The Company established a remuneration committee
on 29 February 2008 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The remuneration
committee comprises Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (chairman), Mr.
CHEN Mo, Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy and Mr. LUO Su.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to
review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors
and senior management.

The remuneration committee has not held any meeting
during the Review Period as the remuneration package
and the service agreement of each Director have been
considered and approved at a full Board meeting held
before the establishment of the remuneration committee.
After the Listing Date, no new Director has been
appointed. It is the Company’s policy that the remuneration
package of each Director and senior management shall
be determined by reference to the duties, responsibilities,
experience and qualifications of each candidate.

Nomination of Directors

The Company established a nomination committee on
29 February 2008 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. The nomination committee
comprises Mr. LUO Su (chairman), Mr. HO Kwan Yiu,
Mr. CHEN Mo and Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy. The
primary duties of the nomination committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the nominees for
appointment as Directors and senior management of the
Group.

The nomination committee has not held any meeting during
the Review Period as the Company has not appointed any
new Director after the Listing Date.

According to the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third shall retire from the office and offer themselves for
re-election. The Directors to be retired by rotation shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last
appointment.
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At a full Board meeting held on 21 April 2008, the
Directors have reviewed the performance of the Directors
who retired at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 30 May 2008 and approved to recommend the re-
election of such Directors at such annual general meeting
of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report
(o€ SRR i

TE=FF)FENA - — BTz EHg 2l
gk b EHORHTN _FT/ERA=1H
BATHBCRAFR & LR R R 2 KRB Wit
YEHE S 5% 55 3 R A A R RORAE R g -
AT -

20084 3 i

G. Auditors’ Remuneration G. BiBummim 4
During the financial year ended 31 December 2008, the N E R ET A= —HILEER
nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by A T A S R S T S B A 2
KPMG, the auditors of the Company, and the relevant fees 1% B IR AT 2 M A AR k%
paid by the Company for such services are as follows: JIR A5 A 2 AR B AN T
Fee paid/payable
Services rendered [R%-33)E0 [RXEPg TEE-4ji]
(RMB’000)
(AR¥TI)
Audit service R s 900
Other HAlh 1,050
H. Audit Committee H. BBZARH
The Company has established an audit committee with RAF ORI RSP 2GRt skw
written terms of reference based upon the provisions and WM EBE/NFE_H AL ER RS
recommended practices of the CG Code on 29 February o 37 DL T R R R R o R B e
2008. The primary duties of the audit committee are to TR A M B A AR [ 2 B R R
review and supervise the financial reporting process and FE RN EY 2% - B FREEEH =4
internal control systems of the Group. At present, members BT IE AT M A () - BBk 2
of the audit committee comprise Mr. LAM Ying Hung He T An] B 22 20 A 40 R o
Andy (chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo and Mr. HO Kwan Yiu,
being the three independent non-executive Directors.
Annual Report 2008 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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During the Review Period, the audit committee has held FAEEIAR . R A GOk E & &
two meetings, at which: i
—  the audit committee members have reviewed and — EREZAGNACHALEEE FTZT
discussed with the external auditors of the Company LAEF T H = —H IR E 2 &0
the Group’s combined financial statements for the AR A L EE B 5 Sl LA 0 ] AN B
year ended 31 December 2007, who is of the opinion AR KR AREMNF GBI g
that such statement complied with the applicable WE RN ~ W58 Jr Bk R 2 > IR EE 2
accounting standards, the Stock Exchange and legal B0 % 5%
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have
been made;
—  the audit committee also reviewed the reasonableness — HEZEGHCHEHEAAARE %
and fairness of the continuing connected transactions THETTZH =T — IR 2 R
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 250 A BRE Je T 5 e
2007; and
—  the audit committee members have reviewed the — BERZEGHFHAEREE _FT/\F
interim results of the Group for the six months ended ANH=ZTHIEAMRAZ R 45 10 3%
30 June 2008 and reviewed the results announcement. [ 2E A
The following is the attendance record of the committee DN AEEEESRNBYEETREGE
meetings held by the audit committee during the Review MR T A B
Period:
Attendance at
meeting
L E L ES
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy FRIEPG S A 2/2
Mr. CHEN Mo BROER S 2/2
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (OFEE P 2/2
I. Directors’ and Auditors’ Acknowledgement L. o o i o2
All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for P o S ) O R RR AN S A R . R \UE
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December FTAET—HIEEERE 255 -
2008.
The external auditors of the Company acknowledge their AN A SN A R B RR LA R TN
reporting responsibilities in the auditors’ report on the SETTZ A = R AR R A R R A
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 il 1 N 2 B R AT
December 2008.
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Internal Control

With a view to enhancing the Group’s internal control
system, during the Review Period, the Company has
appointed Baker Tilly Hong Kong Business Services
Limited to perform an internal control and systems review,
especially on the procurement function of the Group. The
Group is in the process of improving and establishing the
internal control measures as recommended by Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Business Services Limited in certain areas,
such as procurement cycle.

The Board acknowledged that it is responsible for the
Company’s system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The Board will conduct periodical review
on the progress of the improvement and enhancement with
an effort to enhance the internal control measures of the
Group.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LUO Su

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 April 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”),
set out on pages 68 to 167, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17 April 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

B A

for the year ended 31 December 2008
HEZFFNFESZH="1—HILFERE

2008 2007
—RENAE ZERRALAE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARWTI NR¥FIi

Turnover BER 4 2,136,368 2,148,674
Cost of sales FHE LA (1,961,110) (1,949,498)
Gross profit EZy | 175,258 199,176
Other net (loss)/income HAth (F518) Mg AFFEE 5 4,578) 182,168
Distribution expenses 7 EBA L (37,301) (32,529)
Administrative expenses FTBRE S (61,914) (29,849)
Profit from operations R A 71,465 318,966
Finance income BRI A 6(a) 6,622 2,435
Finance expenses WS 6(a) (40,070) (30,478)
Net finance costs Y B AR 2 (33,448) (28,043)
Profit before taxation i B i it 6 38,017 290,923
Income tax (expenses)/credit FrASBL (B0 /4 7 (8,704) 677
Profit for the year AR Bk A 29,313 291,600
Attributable to: 58

Equity holders of the Company ARAERERA N 29,313 291,750

Minority interests DR AR = (150)
Profit for the year AERE B A 29,313 291,600
Dividends payable to equity A N HEAR EAT T

holders of the Company . G2

attributable to the year: FHEAZBA: 11
Interim dividends declared and FERNEEIR MIREE

paid during the year FR A A L — 118,961
Dividends proposed after balance %454 H 1% 1tk

sheet date URAS 2 S

— Final dividends — R B 8,778 —

— Special dividends — FRRIE 12,122 —

20,900 118,961

Basic and diluted earnings per %8 XA B 3 3 2 A

share (RMB yuan) (AR#H) 12 0.075 0.937

The notes on pages 74 to 167 form part of these financial

statements.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

B RSP SR PR A D

SETAE F 167 EUIT H M 5E 2 A% BB R % 1 —

4y

Annual Report 2008

20084F 2 1k



-
Consolidated Balance Sheet

B B A RLRR

at 31 December 2008
EENFEFZH="1—H

2008 2007
BB SRR
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt et ARFFL NR¥EFT
Non-current assets JEi WA
Property, plant and equipment LI R ErINEHL ] 13 351,713 139,007
Lease prepayments TEAT AR 4 14 153,661 —
Deferred tax assets R JIE ol TE 17(b) 390 —
505,764 139,007
Current assets it 0l g e
Inventories & 18 196,332 239,625
Derivative financial instruments  fi74E 4@l L EL 19 — 810
Trade and other receivables 22 5 B oA R 20 466,720 493,145
Pledged deposits EHEH AR 21 36,646 32,422
Cash and cash equivalents W4 MR ESEEY) 22 214,905 146,411
Assets classified as held for sale %] A3 E R &= 23 — 10,486
914,603 922,899
Current liabilities A
Loans and borrowings SR LMEE 24 559,329 297,000
Trade and other payables A8 5 N A ) 3 0E 25 195,544 246,770
Derivative financial instruments {744 Fl T H 19 1,137 722
Current tax payables JREAST BV A JE 17(a) 595 2,086
756,605 546,578
Net current assets Vi A 157,998 376,321
Total assets less current B0 7 U B £ A
liabilities 663,762 515,328
Non-current liabilities FETR £
Loans and borrowings B A 24 — 80,000
— 80,000
Net assets b2geRi 663,762 435,328
Capital and reserves JB 7As e ik i
Share capital A 26 3,731 210,000
Reserves [ 27 660,031 225,328
Total equity HE 22 B 663,762 435,328

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on A = ZEZJLAFIN H L H# & e fbfE K& B HE T

17 April 20009. o o
LUO Su LUO Riming
Chairman Executive Director
TR TR
HEAR #HEHW)
The notes on pages 74 to 167 form part of these financial 5574 % 55167 E BT # Mt 51 4 A8 B4 BS = 09 — 3
statements. 430
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-
Balance Sheet

B fifi AR

at 31 December 2008
BZFENETZH=1—H

2008 2007
BB\ ZEREAA
Note RMB’000 RMB 000
Mtat ARHFIL NR#EF T
Non-current assets FET B A
Property, plant and equipment W2 -~ W28 B As 13 620 —
Investments in subsidiaries TS A7) 2 & 15 626,654 —
627,274 —
Current assets L U/BE A
Trade and other receivable A2 G N FoA RE S R TE 20 31,943 —
Cash and cash equivalents Bl 4 B 4 55 8 22 20,356 —
52,299 —
Current liabilities o)k
Trade and other payable 32 5 B HoMb RE AT 30 0E 25 6,687 —
Net current assets U ) A I 45,612 —
Total assets less current B0 7 U £ A
liabilities 672,886 —
Net assets begRi e 672,886 —
Capital and reserves B AN B ik A
Share capital Hie A 26 3,731 —
Reserves it 27 669,155 —
Total equity HE 2 B 672,886 —

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on T ZFEFESUAENH 1L HAS = S #Hul I 524 1)

17 April 2009. o
LUO Su LUO Riming
Chairman Executive Director
e TTEA#
303 #tHW

The notes on pages 74 to 167 form part of these financial £E74E £iE167EH Z M5t B A BB K1 —EB 5 o
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BB AR 5 W R
for the year ended 31 December 2008
#HE ZEENGFAfZH A —HIFFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AR BB A A HEAY
PRC
Share Share Other  statutory  Exchange  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve  earnings Total interests equity
il biyd HBBK
Bk RBREM LG i BERGH  REAA At L T
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ANRETE NBETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARKTT ARETT
(Note 26) ~ (Note 27(a))  (Note 27(a)) (Note 27(b)) ~(Note 27(c))
(Wit2e) (Hf#27a)  (Hztore) (#anw)  (Hrt2ne)
At 1 January 2007 —FELE
(Note 26(a)) —H—H
(Wit 26(a) 225,000 — — 37,186 — 60,915 323,101 29,139 352,240
Profit for the year ~ #E i — — — — — 291,750 291,750 (150) 291,600
Transfer from AR ERA
retained earnings — — — 36,743 — (36,743) — — —
Dividend declared 4N E H RS
and paid during
the year — — — — — (118,961)  (118,961) — (118,961)
Deemed R 4
appropriationon  f (#fE 27(e)
Reorganisation
(Note 27(¢)) (75,000) — — (26,049) — (19,513)  (120,562) (28,989) (149,551
Capitalisation BREA
(Note 26(a)) (Htat 26(a) 60,000 — — — — — 60,000 — 60,000
At31 December ~ —EE LM
2007 (Note 26@@) ~ +—A=+—H
(Mt 26(a) 210,000 — — 47,880 — 177448 435,328 — 435,328
At 1 January 2008 —FT N\
—H—H 210,000 — — 47,880 — 177448 435,328 — 435,328
Arising from HE A i
Reorganisation (209,822) - 209,822 = = = = = =
Share issued under  HRIEMIE 25k
the placingand ~ BERIT 2
global offering (3 26(d)(ii))
(Note 26(d)(ii)) 959 217,763 — — — — 218,722 — 218,722
Share issuance RS
costs (Hfi# 26(d)(ii)
(Note 26(d)(i)) — (19,009) — — — — (19,009) — (19,009)
Capitalisation issue &7t B 17
(Note 26(d)(ii)) (Mt 26(d) iii)) 2,594 (2,594) — — — — — — —
Exchange B hEE Rt
differences A ([ T ) B
on translation MR IR
of financial 2 ER
statements
of operations
outside the
People’s Republic
of China
(the “PRC”) — — — — (592) — (592) — (592)
Profit for the year i 1 = — — — — 29313 29,313 — 29313
Transfer from e gyl
retained earnings - - = 5,967 - (5,967) - = =
At31 December ~ “FEENFE+T
2008 A=1+—H 3,731 196,160 209,822 53,347 (592) 200,794 663,762 — 663,762

The notes on pages 74 to

statements.
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P
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EaBleink
for the year ended 31 December 2008
HEZFFNFESZH="1—HILFERE

2008 2007
“RE)\4 ZERRALE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 ARHFI ANRHTFr
Operating activities BBEH
Profit before taxation W B il i ) 38,017 290,923
Adjustments for: BT K IE %
Depreciation i
— Property, plant and equipment L/ EN )& 26,929 23,872
— Investment property — REWE - 94
Amortisation of lease prepayments Ta A HE 4 3 6 1,338 1,143
Interest income on bank deposits SRATAE R ALE A (6,622) (2,435)
Interest expenses on bank loans SRATIE BRI B 33,282 26,211
Gain on disposal of lease prepayments TR S Y s — (174,941)
Gain on disposal of assets classified as eS| AR ER
held for sale BRI & (11,637) —
Net losses on disposal of property, Y - B A A
plant and equipment s 151 — 186
Unrealised net loss/(gain) of derivative i R TR
financial instruments Tt (e ds) ¥HE 1,137 (88)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain B S A 471) —
Operating profit before changes BEE LS TRE
in working capital bl 81,973 164,965
Change in inventories Fr5EE) 43,293 (94,821)
Change in trade and other receivables 38 5y B A RES R T 2 ) 34,921 (254,817)
Change in trade and other payables 28 5 B HoAth Ak 0 5 ) (180,535) 42,676
Cash used in operations REEHIHBA (20,348) (141,997)
Income tax and land appreciation tax paid  HEIFfHE A & E AT 5B
by the subsidiary in the PRC K+ o (E R (10,585) (3,618)
Net cash used in operating activities HEZBMMBR & TH (30,933) (145,615)
Investing activities B )
Interest received S ALE 6,622 2,435
Proceeds from pledged deposits A AL 53K 156,371 160,971
Payment of pledged deposits A AT FRA 3K (160,595) (154,974)
Acquisition of property, plant and W BN ~ Wk Mkt
equipment (133,175) (55,546)
Payment for purchase of assets and IEE & LR IE A IE
assuming of liabilities Jir st 16 (142,644) —
Payment for lease prepayments TS 4 — (5,515)
Proceeds from disposal of lease BT A 4 A5 R
prepayments — 208,078
Proceeds from disposal of assets WS R R R
classified as held for sale IREE e 23,000 -
Payment of business tax and surcharges &4 Frft
on disposal of lease prepayments BRI INE (877) 9,754)
Advances to related parties BT BTy = (48,124)
Repayment of advances to related parties [ [ 7 & 3% Eh ik 3,533 116,367

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

B RSP SR PR A D
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

e Bl e R

for the year ended 31 December 2008
BB FFNES =1 —HILERE

2008 2007
R\ ZERRALE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR¥FI ANRHTFor

Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE W) i

investing activities Bl AW (247,765) 213,938
Financing activities [y gndl]
Interest paid EAHFLE (33,282) (26,211)
Cash distributed to equity holders on AP MR A

Reorganisation MR 4 27(e) — (21,874)
Proceeds from loans and borrowings B B ETS IR 897,625 601,130
Repayment of loans and borrowings fE R (715,296) (418,330)
Proceeds from issuance of shares b2 BkEE R TR

for global offering A5 E 218,722 —
Payment of share issuing costs A BEAT A K (19,009) —
Dividends paid CATHRE = (118,961)
Advances from related parties e T R — 14,565
Repayments of advances from related R 8y R K

parties (1,447) (8,319)
Net cash generated from BB S B e

financing activities 347,313 22,000
Net increase in cash and B RBE5MY

cash equivalents IS 68,615 90,323
Cash and cash equivalents B—H—HHB ARk

at 1 January B4 585N 146,411 56,088
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E%%% )2 5% % (121) —
Cash and cash equivalents R+=H=1—HK

at 31 December B4 BB A28 214,905 146,411

The notes on pages 74 to 167 form part of these financial — #74ZE167E T HM GE S A A BRI — B0 0 o
statements.
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74

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 4 s i o0 Wi i

1. Company background and basis of
presentation

(@)

(b)

Reporting entity

Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 13 September 2007 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22,
Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

Reorganisation

Pursuant to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
of the Company and its subsidiaries now comprising
the group (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
which was completed on 29 February 2008 to
rationalise the Group structure for the public listing
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the operations of manufacturing and
sales of aluminium profile (the “Aluminium Profile
Business”) with the relevant assets and liabilities
of Guangdong Xingfa Group Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa
Group”), Guangdong Xingfa Innovation Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Innovation”) and Foshan Xingfa Aluminium
Profiles Co., Ltd (“Foshan Xingfa™) (collectively
referred to as the “Predecessor Entities”) were
transferred to the subsidiaries now comprising
the Group and the Company became the holding
company of the subsidiaries now comprising the
Group. Details of the Reorganisation are set out in
the prospectus dated 17 March 2008 issued by the
Company.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 31 March 2008.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 B A B

1. Company background and basis of
presentation (continued)

©

Basis of presentation

Since all entities which took part in the
Reorganisation were under common control of a
group of ultimate equity holders (the “Controlling
Shareholders™), the Group is regarded as a continuing
entity resulting from the Reorganisation under
common control. Accordingly, the Company has
applied merger accounting to account for the
Reorganisation in accordance with Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), under which the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on the basis that the
Company was the holding company of the Group as
if the Aluminium Profile Business had been operated
by the Group and the current group structure had
been in existence for both years presented, rather
than from 29 February 2008.

The Predecessor Entities’ assets and liabilities which
are related to the Aluminium Profile Business are
combined using their existing book values from
the Controlling Shareholders’ perspective. Certain
assets and liabilities retained by the Predecessor
Entities at 28 July 2007 (the “Retained Assets™)
were treated as deemed appropriation to the equity
holders of the Company at 28 July 2007. Accordingly,
the consolidated balance sheets as at 31 December
2007 have not included the Retained Assets but
have been prepared to present the state of affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries now comprising
the Group as at that date. The consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2008 has been prepared to
present the state of affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2008.

1.

2w 15 55 B i B M at)

(©

VB 3

R T AW R EHZ AR 2 — R
AR R AN ([ 42 B e 3R ) 3 ] 4
il oA B T A PR A A 2
[l el 2 FR A I - WL AR
Al CARYE R W & 5 A & UG 2 B st
83156 5 BE[ LR £ 1 & 0 2 & 0 g st
EIERGesiEmEAAR . 8
bt RS MBS R HEA N R AL
B 2 BN ED > A BLA 4 I 2R
RIS AV E S E e = YA S|
“AHIUHE) —EAATE  R

I B2 7 A5 BE R B b 2T 2 B
R AR R R A 2 B IR (E S
EAME - HAT S AFIR - FEELFL
AT NHBREZHTERE KA K
(TPREEE D SE —FELELH
TN H AN R AR N Z AT o
B > A =FT L+ —H =1+—H
ZEABREAMBRILAT ML EEE
e B 4 B4 DL S B AR N A e AR 4 ] B I
JEE R B S ® i R% B 2 BAES AR L - iR
CERENET A+ —HZEEE
BB T iR R DL BB AN = K L
BAFRR - EENE+H=+—H
ZWARDL o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 4 s i o0 Wi i

1. Company background and basis of
presentation (continued)

(c)

Basis of presentation (continued)

The consolidated results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2007 include the results of
operations of Aluminium Profile Business of the
Predecessor Entities and the results of the operations
of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2007 (or where the
companies were established/incorporated at a date
later than 1 January 2007, for the period from the
date of establishment/incorporation to 31 December
2007). The consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2008 include the results
of the Company and its subsidiaries with effect
from 1 January 2008 or since their respective dates
of incorporation or being acquired, whichever is a
shorter period.

All material inter-group transactions and balances
have been eliminated on consolidation. In the
opinion of the Directors, the consolidated financial
statements prepared on this basis present fairly the
results of operations and the state of affairs of the
Group as a whole.

2. Significant accounting policies

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which include all applicable
individual IFRSs promulgated by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”),
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
related Interpretations. These financial statements
also comply with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. A
summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted and consistently applied by the Group in the
preparation of these financial statements is set out
below.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR A )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 B A B

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the TASB issued a number of new and revised
IFRSs. For the purpose of preparing these financial
statements, the Group has adopted all these new
and revised IFRSs throughout the years presented,
except for any new standards or interpretation
that are not yet effective for the accounting period
ended 31 December 2008. The revised and new
accounting standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the accounting period ended 31
December 2008 are set out in Note 33.

The consolidated statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 17 April 2009.

Basis of measurement

Items included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
that best reflects the economic substance of the
underlying events and circumstances relevant to
the entity (“functional currency”). These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
rounded to the nearest thousand except for per share
data.

These financial statements are prepared on the
historical cost basis except that the derivative
financial instruments are measured at fair value
(Note 2(f)(ii)). The methods used to measure fair
value are set out in Note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 4 s i o0 Wi i

2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 2. FEEEEOR
(c) Use of estimates and judgments (c) P At BoA B
The preparation of these financial statements requires A LT A B P R I > JHAE T RE
management to make judgments, estimates and HREGTBURERMI 2R EE - &
assumptions that affect the application of accounting i R i S 4 RE A AL B - G REA R ER -
policies and the reported amounts of assets, R S5 il R AR B A T AR A 1 KRB
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates R PR AR AT A vz S G UL B A B
and associated assumptions are based on historical HEHEA R ZAE S > &R s H
experience and various other factors that are believed T 48 At G R BUR 2 B E A E IR
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results A {4 7 2 RE i o BT R 465 L T B B %
of which form the basis of making the judgments ey N

about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 5T A0 B Bk & RR AR T - e Rt Ah

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting Fh s o 7B T Al R0 ) A R 2R

estimates are recognised in the period in which AT AR AR R R

the estimate is revised and in any future periods

affected.

Judgments made by management in application of A8 L Jig B Y [0 PR B i A Y ) B BT A

IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial H S A S i R A K R 2R Y K I I AR

statements and estimates with a significant risk of A 2 B0 KA Y Al E R B R

material adjustment are discussed in Note 32. 32 -

(d) Basis of consolidation (d) HEAURHIEH

(i)  Subsidiaries Q) HELA
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the B Jo8 N & $8 PR A S R D A A
Group. Control exists when the Group has A o B AN EE B RE R a A
the power directly or indirectly to govern the il A 7 B A S I S8 B > DA A
financial and operating policies of an entity HZER PR > HIZA Al AR
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 5y Z AR B o A R i R
In assessing control, potential voting rights F > 2% 58 H il A7 6 A VA 1
that presently are exercisable are taken SEHE o MMJE A R Z MBS R B
into account. The financial statements of il B A R 2 4 1 4 PR B
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated MFALE B B - A w2
financial statements from the date that control IRF > B A Rl 2 S EBOR & /E B
commences until the date that control ceases. BEE) > DAAT G A5 52 B T 3R AN 2 B
The accounting policies of subsidiaries have xR e

been changed when necessary to align them
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 B A B

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation (continued)

()

(ii)

(iii)

Subsidiaries (continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
losses (Note 2(j)).

Minority interests

Minority interests represent the portion of the
net assets of subsidiaries and controlled entities
attributed to interests that are not owned by
the Company, whether directly and indirectly
through subsidiaries and controlled entities,
and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. Minority
interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity holders of
the Company. Minority interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation
of the total profit or loss for the year between
minority interests and the equity holders of the
Company.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised income and expenses arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised gains arising from
transactions with equity accounted investees
are eliminated against the investment to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.
Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 4 s i o0 Wi i

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

©

®)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
to the respective functional currencies of the
Group entities at exchange rates at the date of the
transaction. The functional currency of the Company
is Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”). Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
the reporting date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rates at that date. Foreign
currency differences arising on retranslation are
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the reporting date. The income and expenses of
foreign operations are translated to RMB at exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
currency differences are recognised directly in
equity.

Financial instruments
(i)  Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments
comprise trade and other receivables, pledged
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, loans and
borrowings and trade and other payables.

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts, except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 B A B

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

U

Non-derivative financial instruments
(continued)

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Except for financial
guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with Note 2(m), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
balances and call deposits.

Accounting for finance income and expenses is
set out in Note 2(s).

A financial instrument is recognised if the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
are derecognised if the Group’s contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial
assets expire or if the Group transfers the
financial assets to another party without
retaining control or substantially all risks and
rewards of the assets. Regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are accounted
for at trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
commits itself to purchase or sell the assets.
Financial liabilities are derecognised if the
Group’s obligations specified in the contract
expire or are discharged or cancelled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses aluminium futures contracts
and forward foreign exchange contracts
to mitigate its market risk associated with
aluminium price and foreign currency
fluctuations. In accordance with its treasury
policy, the Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading

purposes.

The Group does not adopt hedge accounting.
Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value, attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss when
incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value.

Changes in the fair values of derivative
financial instruments are recognised directly in
profit or loss under “other net income” as they
arise.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

()

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (Note 2(j)).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of an asset. The
cost of self-constructed assets includes the
cost of materials and direct labour, any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to a working condition for its intended use,
and the costs of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which they are
located. Purchased software that is integral to
the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 B A B

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

()

(i)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction and
machinery pending installation, and is stated at
cost less impairment losses (Note 2(j)).

Cost comprises direct costs of construction
during the construction and installation period.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to
property, plant and equipment when all of the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are substantially complete.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable
that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Group and its
cost can be measured reliably. The costs of
the day-to-day serving of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each part of an item of property,
plant and equipment. Buildings held for own
use which are situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of the lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years after
the date of completion. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

The estimated useful lives of other property,
plant and equipment are as follows:

Plant and machinery 10-20 years
Motor vehicles 3-10 years
Office equipment and others 3-10 years

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is substantially
complete and ready for its intended use. Upon
completion and commissioning for operation,
depreciation will be provided at the appropriate
rates specified above.

Depreciation methods, useful life and residual
value are reassessed at the reporting date.

(h) Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use
rights paid to the PRC government authorities.
Land use rights are stated as cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (Note 2(j)).
Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the respective period of the
rights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 B A B

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

@

4),

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based
on the weighted average cost principle, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories
and bringing them to their existing location and
condition. In case of manufactured inventories
and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate
share of the production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.

Impairment of assets
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is
considered to be impaired if objective evidence
indicates that one or more events have had a
negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial
asset measured at amortised cost is calculated
as the difference between its carrying amount,
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective

interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are
tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assets are assessed
collectively in groups that share similar credit

risk characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets

()

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

All impairment losses are recognised in profit

or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost, the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-
financial assets, other than inventories and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and risks specific to the assets. For the purpose
of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows from continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 B A B

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(group of units) on a pro-rata basis.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

U

(m)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups comprising
assets and liabilities) that are expected to be
recovered primarily through sale rather than
through continuing use are classified as held for
sale. Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the assets (components of a disposal group)
are remeasured in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies. Thereafter generally the assets
(or disposal group) are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Any
impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated to
assets and liabilities on pro-rata basis, except that
no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets,
deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets and
investment property, which continue to be measured
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.
Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale and subsequent gains or losses on remeasurement
are recognised in profit or loss. Gains are not
recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment

loss.
Employee benefit

Obligations for contribution to defined contributed
pension plans are recognised as an expense in profit

or loss when they are due.
Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 B A B

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Financial guarantees issued (continued)

()

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with Note 2(n) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group, under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.
Provisions

Provision is recognised if, as a result of a past
event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Provisions (continued)

A provision for restructuring is recognised when
the Group has approved a detailed and formal
restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has
commenced or has been announced publicly. Future
operating costs are not provided for. The Group did
not have any detailed and formal restructuring plan
up to the date of this report.

(0) Turnover
(i) Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade
discounts and volume rebates and excluding
value added tax or other sales taxes. Revenue
is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is
probable, the associated costs and possible
return of goods can be estimated reliably, and
there is no continuing management involvement
with the goods.

Transfers of risks and rewards vary depending
on the individual terms of contract of sales.
For sales of aluminium profiles, transfer
usually occurs when the product is received at
the customer’s warehouse; however, for some
international shipments transfer occurs upon
loading the goods onto the relevant carrier.

(ii) Services income
Revenue from services rendered is recognised

in profit or loss upon the completion of

transaction.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

»

@

()

)

Government grants

An unconditional government grant is recognised in
profit or loss when the grant becomes receivable.

Government grants are recognised initially as
deferred income when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to the grant.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same period in which the
expenses are recognised. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are recognised in profit
or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of
the asset.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted
are recognised as an integral part of the total rental
income, over the term of the lease.

Operating lease payment

Payments made under operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integral part of the total lease expenses, over
the term of the lease.

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on funds
invested, foreign currency gains and dividend
income. Interest income is recognised as it accrues,
using the effective interest method. Dividend income
is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the
Group or the Company’s right to receive payment is
established.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

®

()

Finance income and expenses (continued)

Finance expenses comprise interest expense
on borrowings and foreign currency losses. All
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using
effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a
net basis.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Research and development costs comprise all
costs that are directly attributable to research and
development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities. Because of the
nature of the Group’s research and development
activities, the criteria for the recognition of such
costs as an asset are generally not met until late
in the development stage of the project when the
remaining development costs are immaterial. Hence
both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and
deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in
the profit or loss except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in equity, in which case
they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Income tax expense (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Income tax expense (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 2. FEEEEOR )
(u) Income tax expense (continued) (u) PifBLBH X (40)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and FY B 45 i BiEL 90 2E 50 755 45 B DA S A B 4
movements therein, are presented separately from WeEnEY > BASEEH - MAN
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are ) B A4 8] W] A R o T B
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax R HAL I & Al 8 8 > A & 1 51 HoAth
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company WA > BIJ AT 6 B[ HA B TE & o B B HY B
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set T & DA 0 A0 o T 8 BAL U AiE i T
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities B & G A

and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, —  WAEEABIEE E KA AR
the Company or the Group intends either to A B AR B R TR AL B
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and PR AF 3 B s M AS B A S 5 Bk

settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, — IR AERLIH KA RIIZA
if they relate to income taxes levied by the L [7] — ol 75 44 B o A i P A5 B AT
same taxation authority on either: B -

. the same taxable entity; or . [A] — FERARL B L ;5 &)

. different taxable entities, which, in . NG S R
each future period in which significant TH M A E R 4 B Y R A B
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or TH B el 8 T I R R
assets are expected to be settled or s 1§ A R AR M TR 4%
recovered, intend to realise the current AR L e AR B B B TR R
tax assets and settle the current tax E Je i 5 B A B IH A A
liabilities on a net basis or realise and al [7] IR 5 35 % i (8 5%
settle simultaneously. &A=t

(v) Related parties v) By

For the purposes of these financial statements, a A A A SRR I > A SR AR

party is considered to be related to the Group if: RIAR 2o A 42 (3] 2 B Ty

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly () "% REH B EUA S — W a2 W
through one or more intermediaries, to control F A 6 A ] 2 S i AN 4 ] w3 AR
the Group or exercise significant influence over AR B 10 BB T A8 D SR K
the Group in making financial and operating BT > B R A E
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

™)

v

Related parties (continued)

(i1) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or, a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individual;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan

which is for the benefit of employees of the

Group or of any entity that is a related party of

the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing related
products or services (business segment), or in
providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 B A B

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) Segment reporting (continued)

The Group’s operation is regarded as a single
segment, being an enterprise engaged in the
Aluminium Profile Business. In addition, analysis of
the Group’s turnover and results as well as analysis
of the Group’s carrying amount of segment assets
and additions to property, plant and equipment by
geographical market has not been presented as over
90% of the turnover are generated from the PRC
market.

3. Determination of fair value

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and
disclosures require the determination of fair value, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.
Fair values have been determined for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes based on the following
methods. Where applicable, further information about the
assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed
in the notes specific to that asset and liability.

(i) Derivatives financial instruments

The fair value of future aluminium contracts and
forward foreign exchange contracts are based on their

market price.
(ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure
purposes, is calculated based on the present value of
future principal and interest cash flows, discounted
at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.
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4. Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the Aluminium
Profile Business. Turnover represents the sales value of
goods supplied to customers. Turnover excludes value
added taxes or other sales taxes and is after allowance for
goods returned and deduction of any trade discounts. The
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised
in turnover during the year is as follows:

BEMW

ASE [ LA S SR B SE RS o IR A
J5 R 2 B e R M o ARG
Bl s H A S B > 3l C BRI B B S AL AT
"o Ardn o A AE RE SERTIERD 2 4% 8 E 2L
A R

2008 2007
ZRBNE ZREALAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTI ANRETFIC

Manufacture and sale of aluminium R I G B R A
profiles 2,025,322 2,039,331

Manufacture and sale of aluminium R 7 S B AR

panels, moulds and spare parts R T AR A 109,102 108,920
Provision of processing services AL 0 TR 1,944 423
2,136,368 2,148,674
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Other net (loss)/income

oAb O 1), BN -3

2008 2007
BB\ S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TI NRHTFIT
Compensation from patent HHZ RESEAE (1)
infringements (i) = 936
Government grants (ii) R A B (7d) 2,927 415
Rental income TS A
— investment property — REYE - 329
— others — HAth 232 78
Net realised and unrealised (losses)/gains 17 4= 4l T B £ 535 &%
on derivative financial instruments K (k18)
i 2 15 AR
— aluminium future contracts — I EAA (19,342) 3,247
— forward foreign exchange contracts — SMiEE & 4 (580) —
Gain on disposal of lease prepayments B TEAS R 5 i A — 174,941
Gain on disposal of assets R B S R B g
classified as held for sale 11,637 —
Services income generated from design 5wl & % FEHR AR
and installation of aluminium panels FIT AR AR U A — 1,668
Others HoAh 548 554
4,578) 182,168

®

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
received compensation from patent infringements in
connection with certain litigations.

Government grants in form of cash subsidies were received
from several bureaux of the local government. The
entitlement of certain government grants was unconditional
and was under the discretion of the relevant bureaux.
They were granted for future development of the Group.
The entitlement of the remaining government grants was
conditional. They were granted for subsidising certain
research projects, exporting activities of the Group, and
maintaining the status of the Group’s brand name “Xingfa”
as a well-known trademark in the PRC. The relevant
conditions mainly included the completion of the research
projects. The Group was entitled to these grants when the
respective conditions were fulfilled and approvals were
obtained from the relevant bureaux.
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6. Profit before taxation 6. BRBEn R A
2008 2007
ZRBNAE CEELAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIT NEWTFIT

(a) Finance income and expenses: (@) WMHBARIH -

Interest income on bank deposits SRATAE R Bl A (6,622) (2,435)
Finance income B UA (6,622) (2,435)
Interest expenses on bank loans SRAT R R B BH 33,282 26,211
Net foreign exchange losses 41 FEE Ji5 48 13 4R 6,788 4,267
Finance expenses WS 40,070 30,478
Net finance costs TS A 5 B 33,448 28,043
(b)  Staff costs (b) HITEA
2008 2007
ZREB\E e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TL NRHTFIT
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥4 ~ T & K H A 45 Fl] 53,425 41,438
Contributions to defined I 7 R AL R R 4
contribution retirement plan 3,092 2,041
56,517 43,479

Staff costs included directors’ remuneration (Note 8). B TR 45 3 S 4 (M55 R) -
The employees of the Group in the PRC participate 7 £ T (1) v B M ) 22 BEL M O IO R4 1Y SE AR
in a defined contribution retirement scheme operated HEFGRIRGTH » FRLE > AL EIJEIR & G 8
by the local government whereby the Group is B FE A 6 10 10% 1] 5 #1305 BUR
required to contribute to the scheme at a rate of 10% W A TR 8 R IRE -

of the eligible employees’ basic salary. The local
government authority is responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the employees.
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6. Profit before taxation (continued) 6. BRBEHT R 40
(b) Staff costs (continued) () BIEA ()
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds T s o 1l 1 2 4 A6 ) R 5 28 ) o ol
are required under the Hong Kong Mandatory PN FE S AE AR o AL F N H RN F
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group and W2 B B4 B H e AR S5
its employees in Hong Kong each makes monthly BIIE T FE 2 18 B A B A B 5% 17 58
mandatory contributions to the Mandatory Provident P 2 < A o T e K o A
Fund Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant FREEZMHR EREGHABRAR
income as defined under the Mandatory Provident 20,000 ¥ TT °

Fund Schemes Ordinance. The contributions from
employees and employer are subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HKD20,000.

The Group has no other obligations for payment of [l 0 NN Y L L = B
retirement and other post-retirement benefits to the R T Al 2B A% A AR 4 LA S AT
employees other than the contribution described
above.
(¢) Other items: (¢ HApbEH
2008 2007
ZRBN\E ZRBLAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIL ANR¥TIT
Depreciation (i) rE& i)
— Property, plant and equipment — — #J3E  HEES W RA 26,929 23,872
— Investment property — Gy — 94
Amortisation of lease TEAS A A S (i)
prepayments (i) 1,338 1,143
Research and development WHEE A (i)
costs (ii) 2,403 2,265
Increase in inventory provisions 17 & B B 1,900 —
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI 45
— audit services — BRI 998 195
— other services — HAh R 1,050 —
Cost of inventories (i) 7B R () 1,961,110 1,949,498
Operating lease charges: (i) BEE )
— plants and machineries — &= Stk 3,607 2,345
— properties — Pk 11,046 4,473
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6. Profit before taxation (continued)

(¢) Other items: (continued)

(@

(if)

Cost of inventories for the year ended 31
December 2008 includes RMB75,627,000 (2007:
RMB53,363,000) relating to depreciation,
amortisation expenses, operating lease charges and
staff costs, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above

or in Note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses.

Research and development costs include staff costs
of RMBI,368,000 for the year ended 31 December
2008 (2007: RMBI1,102,000) which amount is also
included in Note 6(b).

7. Income tax expenses/(credit)

(a) Income tax expenses/(credit) in the income
statement represents:

6. BRBLHTBRA) )
(c) HApb¥EH(#H)

() ®WEFZZENFELZHAH=+—HI
Gy R N W N E o T
Bl - 8B E KB TRAARA
B ¥ 75,627,000 6 (—FE L4 : A
[ ¥ 53,363,000 00) > EFFA L 3CE
B 5E 6(b) 43 BH B 25 14 45451 B S K o

(i) WE_ZFENFET_HA=+—HI
AERE > PR UG B L RA AR
11,368,000 70 (—FE LA« AR
1,102,000 7%) » ELiFAREE6(b) H -

7. BiABLRIS (k)
() MR MPRBEIIE (M) 5 :

2008 2007
ZRB)\IE e g B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIL NRHFIi
Current tax R 391 88 0
Provision for PRC income tax F [ BT A5 4 8,862 —
Provision for PRC land R 1B A 398 43 A
appreciation tax 232 2,081
9,094 2,081
Deferred tax B 91t B I
Origination and reversal of Tt I 5 8 2 A B 435 v
temporary differences 390) (2,818)
Effect of tax rate change e T pa- A = 60
390) (2,758)
8,704 (677)
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7. Income tax expenses/(credit) (continued)

(a) Income tax expenses/(credit) in the income
statement represents: (continued)

(1)

(ii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI”), the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI. No
provision for Singapore Corporate Profits
Tax and Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as
the Group has no assessable profits subject
to Singapore Corporate Profits Tax and Hong
Kong Profits Tax during the year (2007: Nil).

Pursuant to the income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries
of the Company are liable to PRC enterprise

income tax as follows:

. On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary
Session of the Tenth National People’s
Congress passed the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the PRC (the “New Tax
Law”) which has taken effect on 1
January 2008. In December 2007, the
Implementation Rules of the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the PRC and “Guo
Fa [2007] No. 39” were promulgated to
specify certain implementation details
and grandfathering arrangements of the
new tax law. As a result of the New Tax
Law, the subsidiaries of the Company
in the PRC are subject to a unified tax
rate of 25%. The deferred tax assets and
liabilities were remeasured for the change
in applicable tax rates as a result of the
new tax law during the year ended 31
December 2007.
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iR (M) (40)
(a) Income tax expenses/(credit) in the income (a) WARRNPBBE L GhR) K :

statement represents: (continued) (%)

7. Income tax expenses/(credit) (continued) 7.

AR o B T A B BN B AR > AR
28 R 2 B 2w 2R AR S 51 5
B b A ST AR - (A

(ii)) Pursuant to the income tax rules and (ii)
regulations of the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries
of the Company are liable to PRC enterprise

104

income tax as follows: (continued)

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.
(“Guangdong Xingfa”) is a wholly foreign
owned enterprise and is entitled to tax
concessions whereby the profit for the

iR B % g E A R R
(TERBLEE ) By 25 E A
¥ FAHBHT R ME
18 48 R 4 S5 RE w1 B

first two financial years beginning with A BE 2 das ) 5
the first profit-making year is exempted AR HE=F&EZ
from income tax in the PRC and the profit T 1) 4% b 7 1% B D E 2

for each of the subsequent three years is
taxed at 50% of the prevailing tax rate set
by the local authority. The prevailing tax
rate of Guangdong Xingfa in 2008 is 25%
(2007: 33%), but Guangdong Xingfa can
continue to enjoy the existing preferential
tax treatment until the end of above
mentioned tax holidays. No provision for
PRC income tax has been made during
2007 as 2007 is the entity’s second profit-
making year and the income tax rate
applicable to Guangdong Xingfa was
12.5% for the year ended 31 December
2008.

Foshan Xinggao Aluminium Co., Ltd
(“Xinggao Aluminium”) is a limited
liability company established under the
laws of the PRC. It is liable to the PRC
enterprise income tax at a rate of 25%
during 2008 (2007: 33%).

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

B RSP SR PR A D

FF Bl 2R 50% B o B SR L
BN EE )N Z BUTH
5% (2 F T L4
33%) - M R B BE ] 4 A
EHRBHABRBESR HE
AR A A ST A A 0 o
Mk EELAEAZA A
Z 5 WA A R > Wl
S R AR AR i
BREL B mEEC
EENEF HA=+—H
1E4F B > B R EE 2 J
FTAS BB R 5 12.5% o

il Ll B 4R 26 PR A A
([ B 5 6 2E 1) B AR 9 b I
R S 2 A BRAS T o i
TR E AR N E B R
25% (. F F £ 4 : 33%)
SR R B A 2E T AR A o
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7. Income tax expenses/(credit) (continued)

(a) Income tax expenses/(credit) in the income
statement represents: (continued)

(iii) For the year ended 31 December 2007,

(iv)

income tax credit included the tax effects
of Predecessor Entities. Pursuant to the
income tax rules and regulations of the PRC,
the Predecessor Entities are liable to PRC

enterprise income tax as follows:

. Xingfa Group was a limited liability
company established under the laws of the
PRC. It was liable to the PRC enterprise
income tax at a rate of 33% for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

. Xingfa Innovation was recognised as
an Advanced Technology Enterprise
according to the approval from
Guangdong Provincial Department of
Science and Technology. Pursuant to the
approval of Local Tax Bureau of Foshan
in 2003, income tax rate applicable to
the entity was 15% for the year ended 31
December 2007.

Pursuant to the New Tax Law in the PRC,
from 1 January 2008, non-resident enterprises
without an establishment or place of business
in the PRC or which have an establishment or
place of business in the PRC but whose relevant
income is not effectively connected with the
establishment or a place of business in the PRC,
will be subject to withholding tax at the rate of
10% (unless reduced by tax treaty) on various
types of passive income such as dividends
derived from sources within the PRC. As
Guangdong Xingfa and Xinggao Aluminium
are held by a Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiary, a rate of 5% is applicable to the
calculation of this withholding tax.

PR BLB 3~ (IR ) (40)
(a) WA B BEII L (M ) 4 -

(#)

(i) ME-FEZLHF+-H=1—H
IEAFBE > i3 B S 66 A 5 A
A B R o MR PR 5 B
FRI L] R B m)ZE R R S
75 AN A TSR

. L 9% 4 3] B AR 45 P B 3 )
WAL Z A RRAF - #E
EELFEFF_H=+—H
1R 4 > HZA B2 33%
BN R B A SE T AR B o

e B ALY R PR
8 T 1 5 3 o
TR0 0 1L 717 3097 B S R 7
SEFEEIML WE
SEFEEFAS T
AL > /A B 2
B BB 13 15% -

(iv) REFEFHBIE > B TE/NE
—H—H# » 7 B A R 5L
ks - BT > SE A P A
BRSL A ~ 15 BT (H B 2 T A5 B
HAE v B 5 A T R~ iR
AEBEHE  ERERAZE > 44
5k 22 i B e (A 9 v B B
N2 B8 $ 10% B3R (B IE #28E
Wi T A2 TR ) BN TR B o PR R
A BB 2 e B g % 3 P — FH iR A
bRl DAl F/NTE S B 16
A TR SR B 8 ] 2 B 5% o
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7. Income tax expenses/(credit) (continued)

(a) Income tax expenses/(credit) in the income
statement represents: (continued)

(iv) (continued)

V)

According to the notice Caishui [2008] No.l
released by the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation, distributions
of the pre-2008 retained profits of a foreign-
invested enterprise to a foreign investor in 2008
or after are exempt from corporate income tax.
Accordingly, undistributed profits amounted
to RMB205,153,000 as retained by the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 are
not subject to the 5% withholding tax on future
distributions.

Pursuant to “Fo Fu Ban [2003] No. 46” and
“Fo Di Shui Fa [2003] No. 68” issued by the
relevant government authorities in Foshan,
the land appreciation tax rate applicable to the
Group is 1% on the sales proceed on disposal
of land use right. Gain on disposal of land
use right, net of land appreciation tax and
surcharges, is subject to the relevant income tax
rules and regulations of the PRC as mentioned
above.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR A )

7.

PR BLB 3, (IR ) (40)
(a) WA B BEII L (B ) 4 -

(#)

(iv)

™)

(#)

R 05 B B I IR R B TS o B M 2
BA B [2008] 565 1 5238 A0 > A1 i 4%
EANFEAE T\ 2 1% ] A
B E 0 e 22 YA 4l
B i 1) > 34 R G0 S A A SE BT
BB o B > R AR A 43 IR
WF > ASHE [ 2 v B e 2 R
EEELEFT H=+—HHEEZ
7 4 IR s AN B ¥ 205,153,000
TUH BB 5% 2 TEHEERL -

R4 A3 Ly T K R SBOURT A4 B A 2
[ 3% JFF 3 [2003746 5% | B[ {3 Ho Bl
(2003168 5% | > 7 A A 4 H
2 BB A A A A
ZEEMRRIEZ 1% &+
b fili R RE 22 Wi 25 41 5 - 3% (B A
KB 4% > ZERESE bl A B AR
B T A5 AL ) B L] o
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B3 B A B

Pifd B, (JE R ) 40)

7. Income tax expenses/(credit) (continued) 7.

45 3 F BE R w322 B 4 B B o B
Bt Sk

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense (b)
and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2008 2007
ZRZENA ZEREALAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIL NR#F
Profit before income tax o T 45 8 i Vi ) 38,017 290,923
Notional tax on profit before 22 B ) 92 M L 7 ) ol =
taxation, calculated at the rates R 2 BR A A 2 44
applicable to the jurisdiction PR
concerned 14,630 96,004
Effect of tax rate change Bl s )~ L% — 60
Tax effect of non-deductible NGB v
expenses (i) BiA 2 (1) 2,997 1,673
Effect of tax concession (ii) BB 2 R 28 (1)) (9,253) (99.808)
Tax loss not recognised KRB IE G5 156 =
Tax effect on land appreciation tax i (BT 2 Bl 5 5 28 (58) (687)
Provision for land appreciation tax b 3% (E A 3 232 2,081
Income tax expenses/(credit) PR BB 3 (4K %) 8,704 (677)

(i)  Non-deductible expenses mainly represent personnel
and other miscellaneous expenses in excess of
statutory deductible limits for tax purposes.

(i)  Effect of tax concession represents the difference
between standard income tax rate and preferential
income tax rate enjoyed by the Group as set out in

Note 7(a)(ii).

Annual Report 2008
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8. Directors’ remuneration 8. WIM4E
Details of directors’ remuneration of the Group are as ALEHEFMEFHOT
follows:
2008
“ERN\E
Salary,

allowance Contribution
and benefits to retirement

Fees in kind  benefit plan Bonus Total
i~ S R BARIA
He it 7Ll at BBk i At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARBTE  ARETL  ARETL  ARETZ

Executive directors AT

Mr LUO Su i3 S 650 119 = = 769
Mr LUO Riming AN 567 122 8 — 697
Mr LIAO Yuging BEEAE 483 122 8 — 613
Mr WANG Zhihua TEELA 357 75 5 = 437
Independent non-executive 3 FEHAT Y

directors
Mr CHEN Mo 8 100 = = = 100
Mr HO Kwan Yiu et 100 — = = 100
Mr LAM Ying Hung Andy MRIETE B4 125 — — — 125
Total o 2,382 438 21 — 2,841
108 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2008
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8. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8. HHMML w)
2007
—BELE
Salary,

allowance  Contribution

and benefits  to retirement

Fees in kind benefit plan Bonus Total
AR ) RIFR
[k EWAli At feAL st

RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
ABHTL  ARETL  ARNTZ  ARETT  ARETE

Executive directors A H g
Mr LUO Su B E — 118 — — 118
Mr LUO Riming ZEH Ik — 121 7 — 128
Mr LIAO Yuqing BEERA — 121 7 — 128
Mr WANG Zhihua EhELE — 52 3 20 75
Independent non-executive i JEATE Y
directors
Mr CHEN Mo BRETE = — — — —
Mr HO Kwan Yiu fIRZERE — — — — —
Mr LAM Ying Hung Andy IR A — — — — —
Total st — 412 17 20 449
An analysis of directors’ remuneration by the number of i 9 = N B T T R [ 1% S I 9 T
directors and remuneration range is as follows: T e
2008 2007
e 22 91T 2 “ETLE
Number of Number of
directors directors
A EEIN 4
Nil to HKD1,000,000 ZHEIC A 1,000,000 W5 7T 7 7
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9. Senior management remuneration 9. BN B
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four hAwEG AL > U2 AEE > %R
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note AF R I I e B R 8 M R (R A AR =
8 during the year (2007: three). The aggregate of the £) o Hip—H(—EELE : WY) k&
emoluments in respect of the remaining one individual PN B P e AR

(2007: two) are as follows:

2008 2007
ZRE)\E ZERELAF
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARHTFIL NE¥FIT
Basic salaries, allowances and other FEARFi 4~ FAL A F At AR A
benefits 729 128
Contribution to retirement benefit plan 3B 4A4E A 51 &1k 3k 12 9
Bonus fE4L — 40
741 177
2008 2007
ZRZ)\4E TERRAA
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A ¥ N ¢
Nil to HKD 1,000,000 FHICZE 1,000,000 i IC 1 2
1 10 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2008
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10. Profit attributable to equity holders of the 10. A</ ] BB F¢ A A HEA, B2 A

Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the AN F) RAERF A N EAL 456 i A L5 1R
Company includes a loss of RMBI18,865,000 (2007: Nil) R 18,865,000 70 (—FFL4FE - &) » R
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the AT Z PR R g R
Company.
2008 2007
“REB\E R EE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR BT T
Amount of consolidated loss attributable A4S\ 7] B 7S 36 o i 2
to equity holders dealt with in the JEHERF A N EAL 455 T
Company’s financial statements 1H 4 %A (18,865) —
Final dividends from subsidiaries b — PB4 g R A 2
attributable to the profits of the B F RS, A AT A
previous financial year, approved and HEHE S IRAS
paid during the year 50,000 —
Company’s profit for the year (Note 27)  ZR/NT] 2 521 i F)
(Btit27) 31,135 —
11. Dividends 11. JBE
2008 2007
e 2 91¢ 2 “ETLE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIL ANRFT
Interim dividend declared and paid EL B S URAS 2 — 118,961
Final and special dividends proposed A HAR B IRAT 2 K
after the balance sheet date of T Pl e JE A PG i
RMBO0.05 per ordinary share (2007: ARH0.0570 (ZFEEL
Nil) 4 4F) 20,900 —
The directors proposed a special dividend of RMB0.029 AN T A AR R
per share and subject to the shareholders’ approval at the i B i N B #0.029 T M2 R BA % S
forthcoming annual general meeting, a final dividend of FE 0,021 70 > HE AR B B 1Y JR 3% 28 48 ik 5
RMBO0.021 per share to all equity holders of the Company. TG B 2 IR AR EHETE - REEE
The final and special dividends proposed after the balance H 18 s IR B 2 R HH K 5 | s S St 40 A 4% 4
sheet date have not been recognised as liabilities at the HikEsR B EfE o
balance sheet date.
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12. Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share during
the year ended 31 December 2008 was based on the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
RMB29,313,000 (2007: RMB291,750,000) and the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year ended
31 December 2008 of 391,789,000 (2007: 311,410,000). The
weighted average number of shares in issue during the
year ended 31 December 2007 and 2008 is calculated on
the assumption that the 311,410,000 shares issued upon the
Reorganisation were outstanding throughout the entire two
years.

12. HBEA

HE - ZZN\E+ A=+ —HILEEZS
e AR T R T AR A S R B HE R N A
i AN R #529,313,000 0 (" FE L4FE 0 A
R #291,750,000 70) M E —F T /)N\F+
A =4 —H IR B 237 I 2 i34
#0391,789,000 A% ( —ZFE L4 1 311,410,000
) o R T ERELAE R ZETNFE A
= H IR R BT R 2 IR Y Ty
B A B A0 AR 55 AT 2 311,410,000 A% B 103 7
A 4F B N — B AE AT o

2008 2007
ZRBEBNE ZERELAF
’000 shares 000 shares
T TH
Share issued upon Reorganisation A AR BT AR 311,410 311,410
Effect of shares issued on 31 March 2008 i —EENFE=H =+—
H 8T 2 80,379 —
Weighted average number of ordinary S Y= I el & [ 3
shares at 31 December B i FE - 14 85 391,789 311,410

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008, and
therefore, diluted earnings per share are the same as the
basic earnings per share.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR A )

BE_FFLEL-FFNF+_A=14—
HIRAFEBE > S 4 7 A 0 A I > WO T
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 B A B

13. Y3k ~ B A Beifi

(a) The Group (a) ZA4EM
Office
Plant and Motor equipment  Construction
Buildings machinery Vehicles and others in progress Total
i L B it & TR At
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ANREFr NREFr NREFr NREFr ANREFr NREFr
Cost: JRA ¢
At 1 January 2007 AR E—A—H 115,025 22912 6,036 8,602 — 358,875
Additions NE 1,253 36,295 2,260 2,926 12,812 55,546
Disposals HE (661) — — — — (661)
Transfer from construction ERATR TR
in progress — 9,563 — 49 (9,612) —
Transfer to assets classified HRE
as held for sale fFEEE (2,281) — — — — (2,281)
Deemed disposal upon BIER E 4 R
Reorganisation (ii) HE (i) (113,336) (22,447) 4,012) (5,714) — (145,509)
At 31 December 2007 jj e S
+ZHZF—H — 252,623 4,284 5,863 3,200 265,970
At 1 January 2008 REFZNE—-A—H — 252,623 4284 5,863 3,200 265,970
Additions NE 49,250 49,098 3,581 7,309 130,412 239,650
Transfer from construction in  Ef# A /£ & L
progress 188 3,498 — — (3,686) —
Exchange difference it % — — — (16) — (16)
At 31 December 2008 e 9ia
FZH=+—H 49,438 305,219 7,865 13,156 129,926 505,604
Accumulated depreciation: Balyi
At 1 January 2007 REFELE—F—H (51,881) (106,433) (4,454) (4,260) - (167,028)
Charge for the year AL (3,247) (19,556) (383) (686) — (23,872)
Written back on disposals &R 475 — — — — 475
Transfer to assets classified as ~ EEE HIEHEEE
held for sale 453 — — — — 453
Deemed disposal upon BUEREARH & (1)
Reorganisation (ii) 54,200 2,101 2,973 3,735 = 63,009
At 31 December 2007 e o
+ZA=+—H — (123,388) (1,864) (1,211) — (126,963)
At 1 January 2008 REZENFE—R—H — (123,888) (1,864) (1,211) — (126,963)
Charge for the year RS (1,655) (23,531) (681) (1,062) = (26,929)
Exchange difference M % — — — 1 = 1
At 31 December 2008 R-FFNE
F+ZA=4—H (1,655) (147,419) (2,545) (2,272) — (153,891)
Net book value: Wi <
At 31 December 2008 REERNE
F+ZAZ+—H 47,783 157,800 5,320 10,884 129,926 351,713
At 31 December 2007 REZELAE
TZA=+—H — 128,735 2,420 4652 3,200 139,007
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13. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 13. W3 ~ B3 Bt )
(b) The Company (b) AAT

Office

equipment

and others

A ]

RMB’000

NRHT T

Cost: JEAR

At 1 January 2008 N EENFE—H—H —

Additions VNN 791

Exchange difference e 5, 2 %8 (16)

At 31 December 2008 B oEENFE+ H=1+—H 775

Accumulated depreciation: ki -

At 1 January 2008 R EENFE—H—H —

Charge for the year AAEJE S 156

Exchange difference [FE 5, 25 %5 (1)

At 31 December 2008 M_EZENFE+_H=1+—H 155

Net book value: SR i AL

At 31 December 2008 Ao EZZNET_H=1+—H 620

At 31 December 2007 M oEELFET_H=1+—H —

(i)  All properties owned by the Group are located () AREEGEA W2 R R E
in the PRC. Buildings represented medium- T AP EYE -
term leasehold properties.

(ii) Pursuant to the Reorganisation, certain Gy WMEEH> R FMHEAILARYK
property, plant and equipment with aggregate 82,500,000 JC 2 A T W) 3£ - M Kk
net book value of RMB82,500,000 were 5 e AT B 2 7 (B ek 27¢e)) IR EE - S5
retained by the Predecessor Entities (Note AR E—ZZLHFE+H =1T—H
27(e)) and had been reflected as deemed AR BERUAE 43 Bl 7 A F) IR RERR N o
appropriation to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2007.
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13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(b) The Company (continued)

(iii) Up to the date of this report, the Group is in

process of applying for the title certificate

of one of its properties with carrying value
of approximately RMB4,077,000 as at 31

December 2008 (2007: Nil).

(iv) Included in additions are the purchase of

property, plant and equipment amounted to
RMB90,711,000 through the acquisition of

13. W3 ~ B Bt (o)
(b) AAH

HWEAREA H W REEIEE
By — I BT )\AF+ A
—T—HZEmMEL S NRK
4,077,000 G2 M (—FEL
4F : 4E) o

(iii)

(iv) S B A6 5 i L s e e
100% f1% B T B B 4 2 - B AR I
M N R 590,711,000 7T (B 3%

100% equity interests in Xinggao Aluminium 16) °
(Note 16).
14. Lease prepayments 14. TS
The Group
AL H
2008 2007
BB\ TRELAAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIL ANRIEFr
Cost: JRAS
At 1 January m—H—H — 91,205
Addition VNIER 154,999 5,515
Disposal & = (25,250)
Transfer to assets classified as held R R RMERREEE
for sale = (5,470)
Deemed disposal upon Reorganisation (7))  fA/E R B AL H & (i) — (66,000)
At 31 December wt+—_H=+—H 154,999 —
Accumulated amortisation: Bt Eay -
At 1 January w—H—H = (9,721)
Charge for the year TAAF BE S (1,338) (1,143)
Disposal HeE _ 1,867
Transfer to assets classified as held R R RMERREEE
for sale — 474
Deemed disposal upon Reorganisation (ii)  #3/F it = ALK H 8 (i) — 8,523
At 31 December mwt+—H=+—H (1,338) —
Carrying amount: I i i
At 31 December Wt+—_H=+—H 153,661 —

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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14. Lease prepayments (continued)

®

(ii)

(iii)

Interests in leasehold land represent prepayments
of land use rights premium to the PRC authorities.
The Group’s leasehold land is located in the PRC, on
which the Group’s manufacturing plants were built.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, land use rights
(area of approximately 144,355 square metres and
remaining periods of grant from 42 years to 50 years)
with an aggregate carrying value of RMB57,477,000
were retained by the Predecessor Entities and had
been reflected as deemed appropriation to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2007 (Note 27(e)).

Included in additions for the year ended 31 December
2008 is the additional prepayment of land use right
premium amounted to RMB154,999,000 through
the acquisition of 100% equity interests in Xinggao
Aluminium (Note 16). The remaining period of this
land use right was 48 years.

15. Investment in subsidiaries

14. A& )

®

(i1)

(iii)

B+ b HE 43 45 TEAT P B 2
A HEER ) o ASE B 2 FHL S A R
i A AR AR E R -

WHEEH, REEALEARK
57,477,000 JG 2 + Hi fiF R (T RS 40
144,355 77 K » i T R EH02 5
504F) AT B A AR W E =
EELE+FZH=+—H ILEET A
A4 e T A 2 ) e EH A N (Fff 5
27(e)) ©

HE_ZZEANF+ _HA=FT—HI
AR U B A A B o g 2
100% HiHE T 57 4/ME 2 1 b ol R A0 ik
N 154,999,000 7€ (Fff5E 16) © 3% &
Hi (T ARE 2 R N AR 2 48 4F -

15. JRHHE 2 vl 2 e ¥

The Company

A
2008 2007
BB SEFELAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TI NRHTFIT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LT REAR - H A 626,654 —
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15. Investment in subsidiaries (continued) 15. B A2 8% @)
Details of subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December WoEE)NEF T H=+—H > RN A2k
2008 are set out below: &N FlREIE ST
Place and date of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable Principal
Name of company establishment paid up capital equity interest activities
AL AV R £7)3
EEA J 3 i 2 e FL9) BRBA HEAN i 2 FERH
Direct  Indirect
Hik iEe
% %
China Xingfa (BVI) BVI USD1,000 100% — Investment holding
Limited (“Xingfa BVI”) 2 October 2007
S B 1,000 72 BE MR
“EFLFIACA
Xingfa Aluminium Hong Kong HKD1,000 — 100% Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited 14 April 2008
(“Xingfa Hong Kong”)
BB () itk 1,0007#7C BE MR
FIRATR (THEERE]) “ETNE
PUA+PAE
Guangdong Xingfa PRC RMB360,040,000 — 100% Manufacturing and
Ji R B G 26 May 2006 sales of aluminium
HIRAF ) (i) profiles
R B 85 3 AT IR AR ) i) i ARH360,040,0007C e R AR LA
“ETNERH
iy ANE|
Xinggao Aluminium PRC RMB20,000,000 — 100% Leasing of land use
L B 8 2 8 May 2006 right, buildings,
A PRAT ) (i) and machinery
L) B 5 i ARH20,000,0007C T e PR - 4
A BRA R ) Gii) CEENFERHANE FRME
(i) The English translation of the Company names is for () AFIBWZIECHREEMRSZE - 2%
reference only. The official names of these companies AT ZIER A A S04 o
are in Chinese.
(ii) The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise. (i) wZMHE A E B E A o
(iii) The subsidiary is a limited liability company. (i) ZMEA R LA RAR -
(iv) Deregistration of Xingfa Aluminium Pte. Ltd (iv) A% B Z K& 2 7 Xingfa Aluminium

Pte. Ltd ([ B %SG |) 2 sy a3 M it —
FENFTH A —HTEM -

(“Xingfa SG”), a subsidiary of the Group, was
completed on 11 October 2008.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16. i ¥ i BoR¥E f i

16. Purchase of assets and assuming of

liabilities

On 26 July 2008, the Group acquired 100% of equity
interests in Xinggao Aluminium for a cash consideration
of RMB142,698,000.

Prior to the acquisition, the principal activities of Xinggao
Aluminium were leasing the land use rights, buildings
and machinery to the Group. The underlying set of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed was not integrated
in forming a business to generate external revenues to the
Group as a whole. As such, the directors are of the opinion
that the acquisition of Xinggao Aluminium is considered
as a purchase of assets and assuming of liabilities which
does not constitute a business combination for accounting
purposes.

The directors considered that the total purchase
consideration paid represented the fair value of assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. The acquisition had
the following effect on the Group’s assets and liabilities on
acquisition date:

N EENAELH AN H > A
BIL ST 85 35 2 100% A - e REH AR
142,698,000 TC °

AR A B L v 0 2 2 T S Ay 1) AR S T
FH A PR ~ AT B MR o TR 2 A
B AL B RIS 2 AR T &5 5 DAALRUEE
HEL 2% A B B AR A A i i 2 6 - DRI >
FRDA o eI S > WL R AR
A AR & O 2 W B RORIE R -

EHE L > ORI R AUEAR B B &
FE ] RIS B 2 AF(E o R BB i
ARG I 2 B AR TR

RMB’000

ANRETFIC

Property, plant and equipment (Note 13 (iv)) W - s Bkt (MYt 133iv) 90,711
Lease prepayments (Note 14 (iii)) TEAAEL 4 (Kt et 14(iii)) 154,999
Other receivables oA B L R IE 11,941
Cash and cash equivalents B4z KB4 S5 1) 54
Other payables HoAth B A5 3K0H (115,007)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities A G I E K B 142,698
Consideration paid, satisfied in cash CUATHAR > DAL 4 S A 142,698
Cash acquired i i B 4 (54)
Net cash outflow TG0 AR 142,644

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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17. Income tax in the consolidated balance 17.
sheet

B R BLBUR M BT B

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance
sheet represents:

(a) SRErEAEARCRMKIIBIBLES :

The Group
AL
2008 2007
BRI\ ZRT LA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TI NRHTFIT
At 1 January w—H—H 2,086 3,941
Provision for PRC income tax 5 B 155 #3845
(Note 7(a)) (B2E 7)) 8,862 _
Provision for PRC land R B - 2 B 5 A
appreciation tax (Note 7(a)) (K1t 7(a)) 232 2,081
PRC income tax paid LA A B i A5 (10,353) (1,537)
PRC land appreciation tax paid & 5 o B £ 4 (E B4 (232) (2,081)
Deemed disposal upon PR A B A I 1 65
Reorganisation (Note 27(e)) (Ktit27c)) = (318)
At 31 December wt+—H=+—H 595 2,086
Annual Report 2008 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 19

20084F 2 i

BLEE RSP SR PR A ]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 4 s i o0 Wi i

17. S35 B0 SR I T 15 BE a0)

17. Income tax in the consolidated balance
sheet (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) T THE w2 4B % B I W s B £ 4 -
The components of deferred tax/(liabilities) AR EEAERANERNIELERIE,
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the (BfE) KA RZB IR
movements during the year are as follows:

The Group
K%M
Depreciation
charges Change in
in excess fair value  Impairment
of related of derivative ~ lossonbad  Impairment
depreciation financial ~ and doubtful loss on
allowance Taxlosses  instruments debts inventory Total
REHIN fikam
itz iN:¥2 Rk #H
WERR  REH  APHE®  WEER  WEEH it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARHTE  ARETT  ARFTE  ARKTT  ARKTT  ARETL
Deferred tax arising from B TR H BRI
At 1 January 2007 R=FEE-A-R 169 = (821) 47 — (235)
Recognised in profitorloss AR 65 1,995 758 - — 2818
Effect of tax rate change ESG i 7% (40) = = (20) - (60)
Deemed appropriationupon — BEREARA L (H7E276))
Reorganisation (Note 27(e)) (194) (1,995) 03 (397) — 2,523)
At 31 December 2007 REZZLETZA=T—H - - — — - -
At 1 January 2008 REZFNF—A—H - - — — - -
Recognised in profit or loss TMERRED = = 153 = 237 390
At 31 December 2008 REZFNEFZA=1—H = = 153 — 37 390

(¢) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised (c) REWMBZIBEBIHEEE A
H A AR K AT i A R Al B AR B Jak A DA
B A G 1E > WO A ol B 1 8 S 2 BT
B s s 4E A\ B W 625,000 G 3R HEBL
TE e o Bl yE R 2E BT AR 2 B s 1R
iR B A R AT R

No deferred tax assets in respect of accumulated
tax losses in Xinggao Aluminium of RMB625,000
have been recognised as it is not probable that the
future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be generated. The tax losses incurred by
Xinggao Aluminium expire five years after they are
incurred.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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17. Income tax in the consolidated balance
sheet (continued)

©

Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised

(continued)

At 31 December 2008, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries amounted to RMB59,445,000 (2007:
nil). Deferred tax liabilities of RMB2,972,000 (2007:
nil) have not been recognised in respect of the tax
that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of the foreign-invested enterprise and the
directors have determined that the profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

18. Inventories

(@)

(b)

Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet
comprise:

17. S35 A S W I T 15 B8 a0)

() AR MW 8 2 0 4 Be WU YE A2 £ A

(#)

WoEENETFA=ZT—H > G
A A (| v B 2 B A R A 4 VR Vi
2 W RS HE A N R MK 59,445,000 G (=
TT LA M) o R A FHE Il Ah
PR EMNE REHE > HEHOE
JE Jis AT B AR AS B 43 IR Yk ) > I
50 VR 5% S5 1 B8 ik AR 1 ZE A AT 2 B O
e R 0% SiE B JEL B il A R 192,972,000 6
(CFF LA ) -

18. # 1%
(a) REOBEEAMEKAZARE

The Group
3 L |

2008 2007
“RE\E S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT NANRHT T
Raw materials JE R B 117,992 165,773
Work in progress TER 14,295 11,724
Finished goods BB 64,045 62,128
196,332 239,625

A provision of RMBI1,900,000 (2007: Nil) was made
against those inventories with net realisable value
lower than the carrying value as at 31 December
2008. Other than this provision, none of the
inventories as at 31 December 2007 and 2008 were
carried at net realisable value.

by MREFZNETZHA=Z+—H,> O
A 488 35 LG R T 2 77 B R AR
5 N R #1,900,000 75 (= & & £ 4 -
HE) o BRULIERESL » N _FFLFE K
EENFE+H=+—H > HEEE
fie ] s BUF A AR -
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18. Inventories (continued) 18. f#f )
(¢)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (c) WERBMXZEEEFIIITWER ¢

as an expense is as follows:

The Group
= L
2008 2007
“EENE “ETLE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW T ANRIET T
Carrying amount of inventories 8 1% £ HE 1Al {E
sold 1,748,735 1,764,114
Write-down of inventories o E 1,900 —
1,750,635 1,764,114
(d) Certain inventories with an aggregate carrying value (d) HZFFENE+ZH=+—H: K@
of RMB146,990,000 were pledged as securities for HOE N 146,990,000 TT 2 %5 77
bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2008 BASIMEAR B RAT R R (—F
(2007: RMB53,773,000) (Note 24(b)(i)). %4 AR # 53,773,000 70 ) (M 5k
24(b)(1)) °
() Pursuant to the Reorganisation, certain inventories (e) M4 %= 4> RmMMEARWK
with an aggregate carrying value of RMB28,352,000 28,352,000 7T Z % T 47 & 1 Al & 22 F
were retained by the Predecessor Entities and had e WREE_FFLF+H
been reflected as deemed appropriation to equity =t AR BB T AL
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 FHERRA A (K E27(e)) ©
December 2007 (Note 27(e)).
19. Derivative financial instruments 19. 4w TR
The Group
AR M
2008 2007
—RBENE —“EFTLHF
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
<43 £ B £ fH
Aluminium futures HHREH
contracts — (557) 810 (722)
Forward foreign 7 B SN HE & 4
exchange contracts — (580) — —
— (1,137) 810 (722)
) 22 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2008
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19. fiEEm T H )
(a) #BBREH

19. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(a) Aluminium future contracts

7 S 8 of ) 7T o O A0 A R 1 U
B 1 i B R B o A A [E IR A U
T 355 JEL g P 1B SR s Bk 3 1 () () © iR
HEHRTEZ 4 KEE KA

The Group uses commodity futures contracts
to mitigate its market risk of aluminium price
fluctuation. The Group’s policy on the mitigation
of market risk of aluminium price fluctuation is

set out in Note 31(a)(i). The notional contract value R an T
outstanding at the balance sheet date and the related
terms are summarised as below:
The Group
AL
2008 2007
“RB\E S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TL ANREFT
Purchase contracts RIEE#)
Volume (tonne) Hoe (WR) 260 700
Market value TH{H 2,995 12,631
Notional contract value HHIZFEE 3,552 13,353
Fair value INE (557) (722)
Contract maturity date GRIEIHIA January, January,
and February February,
2009 and March
2008
“RFMAE RN
—HAR=A —HZAkKk
=
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19. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(@) Aluminium future contracts (continued)

19. fikEm T H o)
(a) SIBAL 4

The Group
= .|
2008 2007
ZRENE —EFTLE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARH T

Sales contracts HEAH
Volume (tonne) B (M)

Market value e
Notional contract value &

Fair value NE

Contract maturity date HRIFHIH

The market value of futures contracts is based on
quoted market price at the balance sheet date. The
net unrealised holding losses on the futures contracts
remeasured at fair value was RMB557,000 as at 31
December 2008 (2007: gain of RMB88,000) and
the changes in the fair value were recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR A )

— 700

— 12,631
— 13,441

— 810

January,
February,
and March
2008
e 2 2% 2
—H-ZHRK
=H

MEALHTEUAE 0 i SR EsE - k=
EENEF_HA=+—H » LA FEHEH
FrENIE S RERN A ERAS AR
557,000 7 (= FF L4 dita A K% 88,000
TG) o TR Y A S i g 2R P RERR
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19. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(b) Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group has entered into forward foreign exchange
contracts to mitigate its market risk of foreign
exchange fluctuation. These instruments are used
solely to mitigate the market risk associated with the
Group’s liabilities and not for trading or speculation
purposes.

The notional contract value outstanding at the
balance sheet date and the related terms are

summarised as below:

19. fiEEm T H )
(b) BEIIAEE S S

A 45 T L 5T 37 2 0 AR 5 40 4% fi A1 B
BBy o B% 5 A KR DA B A 4R
SR B B T B o TR AR R B
A& -

REREARFEZARSQEE LM
B et an T

The Group
AR

rates currency

i 39 B LA R A1

Notional
amounts at

Forward original

Fair values

LR ACEZE S
E il
(°000) RMB 000
(F75) NREFIT

Sell RMB/Buy United B ARW "HAFET
States Dollars (“USD”) Db =1&H
Less than 3 months

Bl ARW B AR
= AZEEH

Sell RMB/Buy Euro
3 months to 6 months

The above derivatives are measured at fair value
based on the valuation provided by banks at the
balance sheet date. The net unrealised holding losses
on the forward contracts remeasured at fair value was
RMB580,000 as at 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil) and
the changes in the fair value were recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

6.8533 1,754 120
9.6827 1,387 (700)
(580)

bl A A T E R A5 H ERAT IR AR 2 A
HAL A FEF R - B T/ 4FE+
A=+—H A FHEHENGEZE
AR AERFHEAARE
580,000 G (—FELA4FE - ) > i A
(TR A f B Wi R HERR -
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19. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

(c) Pursuant to the Reorganisation, certain derivative

financial instruments with an aggregate fair
value totalling RMB188,000 were retained by the
Predecessor Entities and had been reflected as

deemed appropriation to the equity holders of the

Company for the year ended 31 December 2007 (Note

27(e)). The notional contract value and the related

terms of derivative financial instruments retained by

the Predecessor Entities are summarised as below:

19. fiEEm T H o)
(c) REEA - ATHEAILARH 188,000

T2 A T AT A A R T B f AT & A Al
. TRBRE_ZEFLE T A
=+ —H L F S AR BT AR
A RHERR A N (K 5E27(e)) © AT S A
AR S T A A EAAE
(B B R BR e Al i

RMB’000
AR
Purchase contracts RIEE4
Volume (tonne) B (W) 3,230
Market value (e 63,633
Notional contract value BHFEEME 63,445
Fair value NFE 188
Contract maturity date HHIZHH August,
September and
October 2007
TR
A~ A
KX+ A
20. Trade and other receivables 20. A2 5y Ko oAb i ek 3
The Group The Company
AEH YN/
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEBNE SFTEFE ZRFNE SRR LE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTLE AREFEFT ARWTFLZ AREFT
Trade receivables A8 5 RES R T 281,422 279,992 — —
Bills receivable JRENS R % 138,544 120,049 — —
419,966 400,041 — —
Amounts due from JRE AL Bf Jo 2 )RR
subsidiaries — — 31,497 —
Other receivables, Al R L T
prepayments and deposits FEATFIE K % 4 46.754 93.104 446 —
466,720 493,145 31,943 —
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20. Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group’s credit policy is set out in Note 31(b).

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts) and bills receivable with the following aging
analysis based on due days as of the balance sheet date.
The Group generally grants the credit period to customers
ranges from 60 days to 90 days, according to the credit
history of each customer.

20. 33 5 Ko I A HE ORI (40)

AL B 2 A5 S EUR HUR M RE 31(b) ©

22 Gy I A IR Wi 2K TELB 45 22 B B Wi (F1
o 7 S R Do (L R 12 M R 224 > $e H
FHE S HRGEE H Z BREE AT AN R o ASEE
— IR RN E T 2 G ELskn % T RZT
60 % 90 Kf5 &4 -

The Group
AL
2008 2007
“EZRNE —EELE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARHT T
Current E iy 419,966 400,041

Movements in allowance for impairment in respect of trade

and other receivables are set out in Note 31(b).

Included in trade and other receivables are amounts due
from related parties (Note 30(c)(i)).

Certain trade debtors and bills receivable with carrying
value of RMB25,000,000 and RMB26,346,000 respectively
were pledged as securities for bank loans of the Group
as at 31 December 2008 (2007: RMB7,000,000) (Note

24(b)(1))-

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, certain bills receivable
and trade and other receivables with an aggregate carrying
value of RMB417,182,000, including amounts due from
related parties of RMB172,831,000 (Note 30(c)), were
retained by the Predecessor Entities and had been reflected
as deemed appropriation to equity holders of the Company
for year ended 31 December 2007 (Note 27(¢)).

A RS Sy e At R AT 3 T ) Tk (99 £ 58 B
TR BEE 31(b).

A SE G B At IR ST I 75 JRE A ) 23 ek I
(BfF5E30(c)(i)) °

RoEENE+TH=+—H > BEHEESF
5 N ¥ 25,000,000 7C K2 A R 26,346,000
T 75 BT R S S R A S A L A 1 o A
SEEBITERZER(CETLE AR
7,000,000 75) (BfiEE 24(b) (i) °

MR E A > AR TH A\ R 417,182,000 7T
2T W SRR DA M 58 S e At B Wi K TE
(/6 455 A B 2 5 K LN R 5 172,831,000 G
(F$5E30(c)) ) AT S A FMRE - WEREE
CEELES T H=+—H ILEES BEE

/2

THHC T AN T AR A A (B EE27(e)) ©

Annual Report 2008

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 127
20084F 2 i

BLEE RSP SR PR A ]




128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 4 s i o0 Wi i

21.

22.

Pledged deposits 21. A I
Bank deposits have been pledged to bank as securities for WIT X O I TRITIERAE THRITER
certain banking facilities (Note 24(b)(i)) and bills payable (P 5E 24(b) (1)) BBEAT B35 (i 5k 25) Z 4B 4R ©
(Note 25).
Pursuant to the Reorganisation, certain pledged RIFEH > R AE AR 97,268,000 72
deposits with an aggregate carrying amount totalling A A R AT S A RR R - 3 B R #
RMB97,268,000 were retained by the Predecessor Entities FOEBELET A=+ HIFEES B
and had been reflected as deemed appropriation to equity YEST LT A w) e HERE A N (Bt EE27(e)) o
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2007 (Note 27(e)).
Cash and cash equivalents 22. BRI ESEY
The Group The Company
A S AR
2008 2007 2008 2007
SRRAE CFTLE CRBAE CFTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARWTL ARWETIT ARWTL ARFETIT
Cash and bank balances B4 ) eRFT45 6% 214,905 146,411 20,356 —

Cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB are
deposited with several state-controlled banks in the PRC
in the ordinary course of business. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the

PRC government.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, certain cash and cash
equivalents with an aggregate carrying amount totalling
RMB21,874,000 were retained by the Predecessor Entities
and had been reflected as deemed appropriation to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2007 (Note 27(e)).

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR A )

H W Ep e > UANRBFHER B & LB
EHEEWEA R FE RS RIT - AR
Ry AT A i SRR B T R
SN ERENT F B BUR S E BR ]

WIFEA > R4 E A R%21,874,000 T2
=T B M SEEY b S A RAE
Ch#E2E_FEFLFE T+ H =+—HILF
JE B By AR 4T BE T A5 A F) I RE R A N (B 5E
27(¢e)) °
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23. Assets classified as held for sale 23. WA EEE

At 31December At 31 December
W+=H=t+—H ®R+=-A=1+—H

2008 2007
“EENE —FELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW T AR#T T
Lease prepayments TE A 4 — 4,996
Property, plant and equipment L ER SIS = 1,828
Investment property WEYHE - 3,662
— 10,486
Pursuant to two sale and purchase agreements entered into FRYE A 45 [ B — 4 B 5 A B E LAE T
between the Group and a related party on 12 October 2007 A+t HE - FEZL4E+ — HNHE
and 6 December 2007, the Group disposed of the above M TE R Wk o ASE [ DL AL N R
assets to a related party at an aggregate consideration of 23,000,000 7T [7] — 4 B % 7 5 | ol B o
RMB23,000,000. The transaction was completed on 29 AT EENFELH L HER o
July 2008.
24. Loans and borrowings 24. Bk BB
(a) Loans and borrowings were repayable as (a) BEXEMEEIAWAWTF :
follows:
The Group
A S
2008 2007
ZREBM\E e 2 2 tc2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARHT T
Bank loans SATEN
— repayable within one year — — ZEJiR—4E A fE 1R 559,329 297,000
— repayable after one year — AR —FRERENER
but within two years — 40,000
— repayable after two years — AR W BTN
but within five years — 40,000
559,329 377,000
Less: loans and borrowings i SRR TR A AR HA
repayable within one A4 7 1 8 1) B K
year classified as current PSEfER=s
liabilities (559,329) (297,000)
— 80,000
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24. Loans and borrowings (continued) 24. £k KA £ a)
(b) Terms (b) K
The Group
AR
2008 2007
ZRZENAE CRBLAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTFI ARIETFIT
Secured bank loans: A HEAERAT B
— Fixed interest rate ranging  — [& & 4F Fl| A F
from 4.62% — 5.04% per 4.62% %.5.04%
annum 216,346 102,000
— Variable interest rate at — FREWET IR R
prevailing market rate ZEFE 43,983 95,000
Unsecured bank loans: S HRSRAT B -
— Fixed interest rate ranging  — [& & 4F FI| R AF
from 4.78% — 5.31% per 4.78% %5.31%
annum 140,000 100,000
— Variable interest rate at — BT SR R
prevailing market interest ZAFEF R
rate 159,000 80,000
559,329 377,000
(i) The secured bank loans were secured by the (i) JAEEH - AT R A
following assets of the Group as at the balance L E LT EE R o
sheet date.
The Group
A4
2008 2007
ZRZENAE ZRRLAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTI ANRIEFIT
Carrying value of assets: EEMRH(E
Inventories (Note 18) F& (M7 18) 146,990 53,773
Trade receivables (Note 20) 22 5 REWGHIA (Hf 7t 20) 25,000 —
Bills receivable (Note 20) JRE WS 25 (Mt 20) 26,346 7,000
Pledged deposits (Note 21)  BARIMIERK (M7 21) 25,036 —
Total et 223,372 60,773
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24. Loans and borrowings (continued)

(b) Terms (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

No bank loans as at 31 December 2008
were secured by Predecessor Entities (2007:
RMB190,000,000).

Certain banking facilities amounted to
RMB773,000,000 (31 December 2007:
RMB385,000,000) were guaranteed by certain
related parties, such backing facilities were
utilised to the extent of RMB511,093,000 as at
31 December 2008 (2007: RMB370,000,000)
(Note 30(b)(v)).

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Predecessor
Entities had obtained the consents of relevant
banks to transfer the operations of Aluminium
Profile Business together with the selected
assets and liabilities to the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group. Pursuant to the
relevant PRC Laws, bank borrowings totaling
RMB212,500,000 were not included in the
liabilities assumed by the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group after the Reorganisation
and were retained by the Predecessor
Entities. They had been reflected as deemed
appropriation to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2007 (Note
27(e)).
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24. Bk B A B a0
(b) Wk A1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

MNoENE+_A=+—H > #%
SR AT B 3K R B A R (2
EE LA AR 190,000,000
JB) °

W ZEENE T+ ZH =+ —
H ZEFTRITEHEARK
773,000,000 (. & & £ 4E
T+TZA=+—H: AR¥
385,000,000 JG) B 45 T B 48 7 5
o ZERITHFEELEP AR
511,093,000 G (= FF L4+ A
X #370,000,000 7 ) £ B H (Fff
FE30(b)(v)) °

MRPEEAH > il B 2 A 15 40 BE 41
TR > 0 2 bE 26755 L) [F] 45
E B R R T B IR A A (]
THE B 2 7 o AR R AH B B ik
B M AN R 212,500,000 70
B ERAT 15 RSt e 5 A 4L 4% B Iy
A [ T RS 4 R BT AR Y
i > A AT & A F R E o %%
MITEEDREE T2 L4
+ = A =+—H ILEREH AR
O3 e T A s F R RERE A N (B
27(e)) °
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25. Trade and other payables 25. 38 5 B FCAib M A ik B
Ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables is as 2 WEAS) K TE S JREAS) 2R 2 BRI A AT G R
follows:
The Group The Company
A4 b /AR
2008 2007 2008 2007

SRBALE CETLE CRBAE CFELE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARWTT ARMTE ARWTT

Amounts due to JEAS BfT B8 4 ] Sk I
subsidiaries — — 4,648 —
Trade payables A2 5 MEAT 308 93,318 53,578 — —
Bills payable (i) JREAT 24 () 28,807 100,197 — —
Other payables and At 1B AT 3 TE K
accruals JETE 71,424 92,191 2,039 —
Deferred income (ii) TRIE WA (ii) 1,995 804 — —
195,544 246,770 6,687 —
Included in trade and other payables are amounts due to A2 b N HoAth JE 5T 5k TE 0 45 JRE ASF B8 7 5 2T
related parties (Note 30(c)(ii)). (BfFEE30(c)(ii)) °
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables and A8 5 e HoAth FEAS 2% TE A1 35 28 5 MEAS 250 0E 2 e
bills payable with the following aging analysis as of the FTEEYE > Hh&sEE H Z BB o A
balance sheet date. The credit period granted by various [a] it RERG 37 T 2 E BN T30 HZE 60 H
suppliers ranges from 30 days to 60 days.
The Group
AR M
2008 2007
SRR —FELE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW T ARH T
Due within 1 month or on demand —1 7 A 21| 3 55 /e 22 ok & 152 37,485 21,239
Due after 1 month but within 3 — i AE =18 H ]2
months 76,520 76,536
Due after 3 months but within 6 =il H & E 7 H A Z| 3
months 8,120 56,000
122,125 153,775
132 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2008

L G S A BR /A ) 20084F 2 1k




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 B A B

25. Trade and other payables (continued)

®

(i1)

(iii)

Bills payable as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 were
secured by pledged bank deposits as disclosed in
Note 21.

Deferred income consists of deferred government
grants. The grants from local government were
conditional and the conditions would be fulfilled
upon the completion of several research projects and
the approval obtained from the relevant authorities.
These grants will be recognised as other income
when the conditions are fulfilled.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Predecessor
Entities had obtained the consents of relevant
banks and creditors to transfer the operations of
Aluminium Profile Business together with the
selected assets and liabilities to the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group. Pursuant to the relevant
PRC Laws, bills payable and amounts due to
creditors of RMB182,000,000 and RMB162,995,000
respectively, including amounts due to related parties
of RMB20,355 (Note 30(c)), were not included in
the liabilities assumed by the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group after the Reorganisation and
were retained by the Predecessor Entities. They had
been reflected as deemed appropriation to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2007 (Note 27(e)).

26. Share capital

(@)

For the purpose of these consolidated financial
statements, the share capital as at 1 January 2007 and
31 December 2007 were presented as follows:

(i) The share capital as at 1 January 2007 of
RMB225,000,000 represented the aggregate
amounts of share capital of Xingfa SG and
Xingfa Group, which were RMBI150,000,000
and RMB75,000,000 respectively.

(i1) The share capital as at 31 December 2007 of

RMB210,000,000 represented the aggregate

amounts of share capital of the Company

and Xingfa SG, which were RMB nil and

RMB210,000,000 respectively.

Xingfa SG was incorporated in Singapore on 3
April 2006 and became the holding company of the
subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Pursuant
to shareholders’ resolution of Xingfa SG during the
year ended 31 December 2008, 285 new shares of
Xingfa SG were issued and allotted to Controlling
Shareholders in consideration of capitalisation of the
amounts due to the Controlling Shareholders totaling
RMB60,000,000.
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25. A5 Ko oAb HEAT 3K (40)

®

(i)

(iii)

W EENAER EELET A
—+—H - BT 21 HEE W
AR ERAT A A EYEAR -

0 T WS A B A0 S S Al G o 3 B
IRF 2l B 5 A A AP > T A B R R 17 2
1A BT 5% T 52 A K A A B 7 1 41 v
AR I7 5 B o S A I I R 2
IR Bl A LA

W EA - jr & 7 B SRR
17 B AERE N [R] 2 > 5195 8 780 b4 26 755 2
] 46 7 & e B i S T B R A AR
N B B8 S T o AR BB AR B AP Bk
151 - JRE ASF ZE 4 0 RE ASF £ A N R IR Ay
Al A N R ¥ 182,000,000 76 K& A R ¥
162,995,000 JC > 1 4% ME A5} B8 %8 5 2K JE
N E¥ 20,355 70 (Kt 5E30(c)) > #40f 4
AT RS B AR AR B IR A AR TR R 1 )
oy AT AR YE R A AE o E B AT B B
B o %5 AT B R R ME AT 3 0E B
FE_EERELES_H=+—HILERE
B By AR AE S BT AN FHERE A N o
(BfF5E27(e))

26. JBeAK

(@)

43 LA 2 TS 9
tFE—A—HER_TELE S
St AR R AT

(i) MZFEFLFE—H—ZEARAN
B ¥225,000,000 7T 35 B85 SG K&
BB AR W 2 AR HAEE > S B A
A B 150,000,000 7T K A R
75,000,000 JG °

BT

QL

WNoEELEFH =1+—H
Z A AN R #210,000,000 7T
¥8 A AN Al I BLEESG 2 K A A
o Rl A NRBEE T RN R
210,000,000 TC °

BLEESG A —FEESNFM A = H R B
TNk 55 M o St B R A 4 [ i
T AE A F Z A ] o ARPEELEE SG
IR ER S HE TR FE+
H=+4—H L4 > 285 BB #E SG #r
P BE AT T P 85 T HERE R OR - DIME
B AR RE A 1 R B R K RN R A
60,000,000 JCZAUfE o

(i)
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26. Share capital (coninucd) 26. WA (4%
(b) Movements of the authorised and issued share capital (b) BE_EZ/NF+ _H=Z1+—HIF
of the Company during the year ended 31 December JE > RNTE 2 E R BT 2 5
2008 are as follows: R -
2008 2007
“RRNE “ZRE
No. of Nominal value of No. of Nominal value of
Shares fully paid shares Shares fully paid shares
Rb%H SR B fi kh %A BRI EE
Note (000) HKD'000 RMB 000 HKD'000 RMB
equivalents equivalents
000 000
it (T T i (T Ti#r %
ANRBTT NEHFE
Authorised: b
Ordinary shares of TREE0.01 702
HKS 0.01 each L () 1,000,000 10,000 10,000 100

Ordinary shares, issued ~ CEATREEH R :
and fully paid:

At 13 September 2007 (date A=ZZLE/AT=H
of incorporation) and at  (¢EfftALI A M) &

| January 2008 ZFENE--H - - - — - -
Arising from the A

Reorganisation @) 20,000 200 178 — - -
Shares issued under the ~ HFEIE R 2REE

placing and global Bz kdt

offering (d) (i) 106,590 1,006 959 - - —
Capitalisation issue BALET (d)fii) 291,410 2,914 2,504 = = —
At 31 December MZA=1—H 418,000 4,180 3,731 — — —
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26. Share capital (continued)

©

@

Authorised share capital of the Company

The Company was incorporated on 13 September
2007 with an authorised share capital of HK$100,000
divided into 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. On
29 February 2008, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased to HK$200,000 by the
creation of a further 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each. On 31 March 2008, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased to HK$10,000,000
by the creation of a further 980,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each.

Issue of share capital
(i) Upon Reorganisation

The Company was incorporated with
10,000,000 nil-paid ordinary shares at
HKS$0.01 per share. On 29 February 2008, the
ownership of Xingfa SG was transferred from
the Controlling Shareholders to Xingfa BVI.
After the completion of the Reorganisation on
29 February 2008, the Company acquired the
ownership of Xingfa BVI from the Controlling
Shareholders in consideration of which satisfied

by:

. allotted and issued, credited as fully
paid, 10,000,000 ordinary shares to the
Controlling Shareholders; and

. credited as fully paid at par the
10,000,000 nil-paid ordinary shares

issued on incorporation.
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26. JBEAS (4)

(©

(d)

AR ) Z R A

ANFR EZBENA = H M
B SE R AR £5100,000 # 06 0 4
%5 10,000,000 A% 4 A% T {H.0.01 % 0 2
Bty o A = BEENAEH Z+ILH
75 R B 1 55 41 10,000,000 A 45 B T (E
0.01 #5 T 2 ey » AN A i i I A 134
JINZE 200,000 %70 © i = FE/NFE=H
=t+—H > FE#HHE 54 980,000,000
JE B B T (B 0.01 ¥ oT 2 ey > AR T
155 A1 i 210,000,000 5 G ©

BT
i) REHIF

A5 7 L 10,000,000 [ 45 % T
0.01 #5 JC 2 A BB k5 28 JE i i
FOL o A FEENEH AL
H > B3 SG 2 A i iy 4 A
R A BV o A FEE /N
HETA T IHEMAERE A
4 ) ) R R R SO L EE BV 2
BEA M HARMEUTFE KX
£

o ) P RE R BC 8 K B AT
10,000,000 i A B 51 £ 4%
B2 &

DO &2 1 W VAN L o
10,000,000 fi% < % B 2k %
8 I A A IR B U -
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26. Share capital (continued)

(d) Issue of share capital (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Issue of shares under the placing and global
offering

On 31 March 2008, the Company issued
106,590,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each, at a price of HK$2.28 per share in
connection with the placing and global
offering, and raised gross proceeds of
approximately HK$243,025,000 (equivalent
to RMB218,722,000). The proceeds of
HK$1,066,000 (equivalent to RMB959,000)
representing the par value, were credited to
the Company’s share capital. The remaining
proceeds of HK$241,959,000 (equivalent to
RMB217,763,000), before the share issue
expenses of RMB19,009,000, were credited to
the share premium account.

Capitalisation issue

On 31 March 2008, pursuant to the written
resolution of shareholders of the Company
passed on 29 February 2008, 291,410,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company were allotted and issued at par value
to the Controlling Shareholders. The amount
was paid up in full by applying an amount of
HK$2,914,000 (equivalent to RMB2,594,000)
standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company after the issue of
shares, under placing and global offering.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR )

26. JBEAS (4)

(d) HEATIBEA (4%)

(i)

(iii)

MRIFIL £ 2 2R 3 05 1T IR 1

W oEENE=ZH =+ —
H RARES X2 REE
¥ & B2.28% o0 2 8 #% B AT
106,590,000 i 45 B T {E 0.01 #5
JG 2 B Sl 42 4E TS 3R
HA%E 4 243,025,000 #5 I (A 25 1R
N H#5218,722,0007T) ° Fif5 sk
TE 1,066,000 %5 7T (FH 45 55 A R
959,000 JC) A E A TR > TI%EA
AN FEAS o SR B 3547 BH 52
A B 19,009,000 T /T 2 £ K fr
5 3K A 241,959,000 5 7T (4745 it
N H217,763,000 78) 5F A LAY
Tt [E R o

B #ELT

MNoEENE=ZH=+—H R
AN AR —FFNAF
AZthB@ER 2 EmR gz
ENNEINE LY 1 & v TR IEN o
K % 47 291,410,000 [ 55 % i (E
0.0l L2 WAL - % BHRE
i B AR PR % A Bk T
BEAT e A 45 A8 2N ) i 4y Ya 1 R
H12,914,000 ¥ 7T (FH 45 7S A R B
2,594,000 JC) Z HEHR 2 BB o
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27. Reserves 27. Gt
A
PRC
Share Other statutory ~ Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserves reserve earnings Total
Befriedl  JCABEA bR WREG  REERA it
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
NBWTE  ARETFLT ARETL ARETL ARKFT ARETL
(Note 27(w)) ~ (Note 27(a)) ~ (Note 27(b))  (Note 27(c))
W27 (W7E27@)  (W7E270)  (#27()
At 1 January 2007 (Note 26(a)) WoZELE—A—H
(Hi#t26(a) — — 37,186 - 60,915 98,101
Profit for the year AR — — — — 291,750 291,750
Transfer from retained earnings R (R A = = 36,743 — (36,743) —
Dividend declared and AR EWR RIS
paid during the year — - = - (118,961) (118,961)
Deemed appropriation on TR A g
Reorganisation (Note 27(e)) (Hi#27e) — — (26,049) — (19,513) (45,562)
At 31 December 2007 R-ZFZLELTA
=1+—H — — 47,880 — 177,448 225,328
At 1 January 2008 R=ZFZN\E—~H—H — — 47,880 — 177,448 225,328
Arising from [HI 28 A0 7
Reorganisation (Note 26(d)(i)) (7 26(d)0) — 209,822 — — — 209,822
Share issued under the placing and ~ H{E A R 2 BkE T
global offering (Note 26(d)(ii)) A (A7 26(d) i) 217,763 = — — — 217,763
Share issuance costs (Note 26(d)(ii) el EEfTHA
(7t 26(d) i) (19,009) — — — — (19,009)
Capitalisation issue (Note 26(d)(iii) ~ EA{L B 1T
(Wit26(d) i) (2,594) - - — - (2,594)
Exchange differences L INTP I
on translation of ([ ] ) SRANERE B
financial statements of Bk Z R EH
operations outside the
People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) — — — (592) — (592)
Profit for the year A A — — — — 29313 29313
Transfer from retained earnings A A - — 5,967 — (5,967) —
At 31 December 2008 eI |
=1—H 196,160 209,822 53,847 (592) 200,794 660,031
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27. il )

27. Reserves (continued)

The Company VU |
Share Other  Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
et A BESLifE  RERA CE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NRWET ARETLT ARETT ARETLT ARETT
At 13 September and RERELENAT=H
31 December 2007 k+—H=+—H — — — — —
At 1 January 2008 W oEENFE—H—H — — — — —
Arising from IR] 2 4 7 7 AE
Reorganisation — 441,976 — — 441,976
Share issued under the R4 AL & 25k
placing and global BERITZ KM
offering (B 7t 26(d)(ii))
(Note 26(d)(ii) 217,763 _ _ _ 217,763
Share issuance costs R4 BEAT B A
(Note 26(d)(ii)) (W3 26(d)(ii) (19,009) — — — (19,009)
Capitalisation issue BAA AT
(Note 26(d)(iii) (W3 26(d)iii)) (2,594) - _ - (2,594)
Exchange differences on  #8 A\ R #&
translation of financial ~ MHMFEZ
statements in RMB e 50, 2 3 — — (116) — (116)
Profit for the year AR A B s ) — — — 31,135 31,135
At 31 December 2008 W B\
—_H=+—H 196,160 441,976 (116) 31,135 669,155

(@)

Share premium and other reserve

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,

the funds in the share premium account and other

reserve account of the Company are distributable to

the shareholders provided that immediately following

the date on which the dividend is proposed to be

distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay

off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

(a)  JBe Ay v A B Ui i A

RIZH 2B E A FE - ARFZBh
it A AR B A Aot M B < B AT 0 IR T
PR > e 5% BE O YR A R E H AR
Ay B RE T BB H RSB R R v E
Ll v

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR )
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27. Reserves (continued)

(@)

(b)

©

@

Share premium and other reserve (continued)

The other reserve of the Group represents the
difference between (a) the nominal value of share
capital and the existing balance on the share premium
account of a subsidiary acquired; and (b) the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange under the Reorganisation of the Group on
29 February 2008.

The other reserve of the Company represents the
difference between (a) the consolidated net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired; and (b) the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the Reorganisation of the Group on 29
February 2008.

PRC statutory reserves

Guangdong Xingfa is a wholly foreign owned
enterprise in the PRC, it is required to transferred at
least 10% of its net profit, as determined under the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
general reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before distribution of a dividend to equity
holders. Guangdong Xingfa has transferred a net
profit of RMB5,967,000 calculated base on 12% of
its net profit under the PRC accounting rules and
regulations to the statutory reserves in 2008. (2007:
RMB36,743,000).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of companies outside the PRC.
Distributable reserves

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves

of the Company as at 31 December 2008 was
RMB669,155,000 (2007: Nil).
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27. il )

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

B e A e LA il i (420

AR 4L M) 2 At ik A TR AR WA 2 2
HH© (a) O S B o 2 ) 3 s (MR 2
JEEAS T S B A 4 5 BEL (b) A A AR
TR 2T/ FE_H LA REH
AR S AR MR B AT 2 By T E -

A wl Z AR LT M 2 %
B (a) OB 2 m 2 AR B
{H 5 B2 (b) AR RRIEIN —FF /4
H =AU A S I = AL A S T B AT
Z AR T -

o 18 2 S i

JRE BB f b B A AN A 2 HE
M2 8 rb B G AR B K B G650 AR =
L10% Bk E — Rk BHE
fib e R AR SR B A 50% o BERE
2 ok A 0 ZE A A TR I ST B REFE A
NHIHEAT o i BT\ > JE AR E
B AR B v ) o 5 R ) R 51 i L A
12% w5 2 4 A\ ¥ 5,967,000 TG §#
BELEMECEZTLE: AR
36,743,000 7C) °

BE 52, i

E 5. € 45 9 059 4 B 54125 7
4 T 1 2 335
Yk 2 IR A
RoZEFEAEL A=+ B &

o8 F) 2 0] o R i A AR AR B N R
669,155,000 70 ( —EE-LAE : M) o
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27. Reserves (continued)

(¢) Deemed appropriation on Reorganisation (e) B8 2% o A1 v i 5%
WE-ZFELEFA=F+—HILE
B> M N R 149,551,000 7T 2
HiT 25 W R BE 7 T B p A B 4 FD AR
B2 A EB AR - BB
A B E R LE T A
appropriation represent the following assets and =t—HILEEREAT RIS AR
liabilities retained by the Predecessor Entities during R Z FFEE R &M - ARFEEWD
the Reorganisation for the year ended 31 December o

2007. Detail of which are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Retained
Assets of the Predecessor Entities with an aggregate
amount of RMBI149,551,000 which were related to
the Aluminium Profile Business were retained by the
Predecessor Entities. They were reflected as deemed

Notes RMB’000
Vv NR#F
Assets ¥R
Property, plant and equipment LE W Lo YN i} 13(ii) 82,500
Lease prepayments TE A AH 4 14(ii) 57,477
Deferred tax assets A SE A T 17(b) 2,523
Inventories e 18(e) 28,352
Derivative financial instruments i T A 19(c) 188
Trade and other receivables A2 o T HoAth JE Wi SK T 20 417,182
Pledged deposits ORI R 21 97,268
Cash and cash equivalents & kBl &5 EY 22 21,874
707,364
Liabilities s
Loans and borrowings BR RSB 24(b)(iv) (212,500)
Trade and other payables 2 5y T HAb EAST 3K IE 25(iii) (344,995)
Current tax payables JREASH B B I 17(a) (318)
(557,813)
Net assets B HE 149,551

In order to enable the Group to continue with the Ty i 7S 45 [ W] A 45 4 A% AR A b TR
AL BRI E A A B T 2t
o P HE ~ HE5° M l BEL T B 2 W AT 52
Z AR B ek o

Aluminium Profile Business, the Group entered into
various lease agreements with Predecessor Entities
for the leasing of certain land use right, building and
machinery under operating leases.
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27. Reserves (continued)

®

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity holders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, the
Group defines net debt as loans and borrowings plus
unaccrued purposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents and pledged deposits. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.
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®

YA 8L

AL B £ B AR E A AR B AR
EHFFERE NS - IR R K
T FE i MR A - Sl DL B A AR
AT RLE > DR 5 IR HE R A AR 3t
(9] % -

A 4 ] U A el A B L A
W DUTE #5712 8 £ /KT T REAT 2R
8 3 P R[] e B ECA: A B <R UL P
A A B A 2 B R B 22 [ RS- > SIE
AR ER 5 A A AN SR AT R R

AR 1% R RO E LR A
W o WLRLT 5 - AN SR F I AR 2R
2y B B A RN R B R B
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27. Reserves (continued)

®

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

27. il )

Capital management (continued) (H BEARFH ()
During 2008, the Group’s strategy, which was BTN AR 2 R
unchanged from 2007, was to maintain the net debt-to ELFERG > T F A EEE LR
capital ratio at the lower end of the range from 45% FEIR 45% B 55% #E 2 TR o Bl
to 55%. To achieve this end, the Group may adjust B > A5 [E ] GE 3 4 m B RE R A A
the amount of dividends paid to equity holders, issue SCAT IR, ~ BEAT T I 0 B8 A AR S
new shares or raise new debt financing. il & o
The Group
A4
2008 2007
“REB\E S e
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥TT NRHTIT
Current liabilities: T B A 1
— Loans and borrowings — BEREE 24 559,329 297,000
559,329 297,000
Non-current liabilities: B E e
— Loans and borrowings — BRLEE 24 — 80,000
Total debt {55 HEAE 559,329 377,000
Add: Proposed dividends y//y 1135 11 20,900 —
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & @ ¥4 KB &%5EY 22 (214,905) (146,411)
Pledged deposits CHH AR 21 (36,646) (32,422)
Net debt B 328,678 198,167
Total equity HE 25 AR 663,762 435,328
Less: Proposed dividends o AR 11 (20,900) —
Adjusted capital PRSI SN 642,862 435,328
Net debt-to-capital ratio FAMERE LR 51% 46%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

B RSP SR PR A D

A A B K 2 R REAS 32 AP S E AR B E R

e
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28. Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December

not provided for in the financial statements were as

follows:

28. 7R
(a) HEARYE

At A =t E s R R R
B RBEITEAREMT

2008 2007
ZRBEZNE TRLAAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIL N RIETIr
Purchase of property, plant HE Y - WA
and equipment &4
— Authorised and — EHbE &
contracted for EFT4) 76,389 40,883

(b) Operating lease commitments

At 31 December, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

payable as follows:

(b) HBRLRWE

BT HA=+—H R AR
B R A JE A B0 R o e (R AL < AR AR A
T

2008 2007

“RF)NE R

RMB’000 RMB 000

ARW T ANR¥T T

Within 1 year —4ER 2,797 4,355
After one year but within two ~ —4F&Z{H 4N

years 415 —

3,212 4,355
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29. Contingent liabilities 23,

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2008 (2007: financial guarantees of
RMB38,000,000 were issued to external parties).

At 31 December 2008, contingent liabilities of the
Company were as follows:

AR B

REENETF A=+ —H > A4 EH N
ERIGREME(CFTLFE  BMHEERAR
#538,000,000 £\ 24T AN A L) o

ME-EENEFHA=+—H » AREIZE
KRBT

The Company

Al
2008 2007
e 22 91T 2 CRBAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR BT T
Guarantees given to banks by the A/ ] gl 45 T b 8§ 23 7
Company in respect of banking B 2z 817 &
facilities utilised by certain M2 i 2 AR
subsidiaries 444,000 —

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider
it probable that a claim will be made against the Company
under any of the guarantees.

30. Material related party transactions 30.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR )

RAEEH > TR AN TR KA REE AL
LR A 2 R

K BBk 75 58 5

R A FF 5 ik 2 EL A 35 20 P 5 88 1) 22 o R A
S > ARG INMETT LT KB IR S
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30. AR IT RS )

30. Material related party transactions

(continued)

RBE_FEFNET+_A=Z+—HILFEE
HEHRGRAUUT At F R AR ) B

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the directors
are of the view that related parties of the Group include the

following individuals/companies:

Name of related party

i

Relationship with the Group

B 2L 45 BiLAAE 1 B 1%
LUO Su Controlling Shareholder
i 3 PEREROR
LUO Riming Controlling Shareholder
#EH W PERERR
LIAO Yuqing Controlling Shareholder
B & g PERER A

LUO Zhiyong

CHEN Hongzai

BRI

Foshan Leahin Coating Co., Ltd. (“Leahin Coating”)
(i1l 57 BB A BRA R (1)

1l 57 BB IR A R (T2 BERL D) (1)

Xinggao Aluminium

(% L iy B 5 S RN FD) (D) (i)

il R SR R AT (THEEE]) () (v)

Foshan Xinghui Ceramics Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Xinghui”)

(s L iy LA Pl R AT FR A WD) (2)
LT B R B A R AR (TR ) (1)

Foshan Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door & Window Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Curtain Wall”)

(b L T B2 e At P 2 A PR A ]) ()
L TiT B Y B A PR R (TELEER ] ) ()

Hang Fat Aluminium Profiles Co., Ltd. (“Hang Fat™) (ii)

fEE SRR A IR AR (THE3E]) (id)
Xingfa Group (iii)

Bl 4 [ 1)

Xingfa Innovation (iii)

RSB Hi(iii)

Close family member of a
Controlling Shareholder
PEREROR B

Key management personnel
of Xingfa Group
FHBEEN FTEEMAS
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders
H R HE R B A
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders
P PR EOR B R A
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders
H PR HE R B A
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders
P PR EOR B R A
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders
H PR HE R B A
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders
P PR EOR B R A
Effectively owned by the
Controlling Shareholders

P PR R T R A

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30. Material related party transactions

(continued)

M

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The English translation of the company names is for
reference only. The official names of these companies

are in Chinese.

The Controlling Shareholders disposed of their entire
interests in Hang Fat to an independent third party
on 5 March 2008. Hang Fat was no longer a related
party of the Group from that date.

Following the consummation of the transfer of
operations of Aluminium Profiles Business from
the Predecessor Entities to the subsidiaries now
comprising the Group on 28 July 2007, these
Predecessor Entities have become related parties of
the Group from that date.

Upon the completion of acquisition of 100% equity
interest of Xinggao Aluminium by the Group on
26 July 2008, Xinggao Aluminium has become the
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group and was no
longer a related party of the Group from that date.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR )

®

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

30. AR IT RS )

ZENFI ISR AEM R -
N R IE 4 W 2 h SO R o

PR RN —EENFE=ZHHH [ —
0 S5 = 5 B LA 1 8% 2 AR
it o MEEE EE H AT AL 2 B
Iy o

HoEEELFEELH ZTAH BIHA
] 1) A A [ B G T A 2 )
B B S8 AR > W SFRT B A A A H
AL Ry A S [ 2 B 2 7

AL B = FENELA N H
W5 L 5 B 2 2 100% B SE AL AR
AT R AR E 2 2 E KB A A
T B 5 H AT 2 ARG [ 2 BT -
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30. Material related party transactions 30. HKBHEL T A Y 4)
(continued)
(a) Recurring transactions (a) RERY
Particulars of significant transactions between the AL [ B | o B O A AR I HEAT Y TR
Group and the above related parties during the year KEZEGFHFUT -

are as follows:

2008 2007
it 2 JI% 2 LA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANRYTIT
Sales and purchases ==
Sales of goods to SHEL T
Hang Fat K3 — 88,638
Xingfa Curtain Wall L 5 33,412 14,408
Total et 33,412 103,046
Purchases of raw materials from I E AR H
Hang Fat k3 — 36,769
Leahin Coating 37 LT R 12,623 13,631
Xingfa Group HLEELE — 8,946
Xingfa Innovation L% 817 — 18,165
Total et 12,623 77,511
(b) Non-recurring transactions b) FEREEEY
(i) Sales of goods i) HELEY
2008 2007
“ERFNE R EE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥TT
Xinggao Aluminium Bl 4 2 — 2,219
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30. Material related party transactions 30. HKBHEL T Y )
(continued)
(b) Non-recurring transactions (continued) (b) FERRBR S 41)
(ii) Rental income (i) BEWA
2008 2007
“SEENE BB
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTI ANRIETFIT
Leahin Coating 37 B8 R} 80 160
Xingfa Curtain Wall il % 2 85 169
Total i 165 329
(iii) Operating lease arrangements (iii) BRI E LK H
2008 2007
ZRENAE S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT NRHTIT

Operating lease expenses paid to ¢ f+f &8 FH 4 T

— Xingfa Group — Bl gE£E |H] 8,113 3,822
— Xingfa Innovation — BB AT 2,603 1,484
— Xinggao Aluminium” — PR 3,083 1,762
Total HET 13,799 7,068
¢ Included in operating lease expenses paid ’ I TR R G EE
to Xinggao Aluminium were operating 35510 2 A 4 SO B 5 2 A
lease charged up to the completion date T R HE 58 B H A S 2 S A
of acquisition of entire equity interests in 4 o

Xinggao Aluminium by the Group.
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30. Material related party transactions 30. HKBHE TR Y )
(continued)
(b) Non-recurring transactions (continued) (b) FFFERY (4
(iv) Short-term advances to/(from) related parties (iv) BT HERE - ($R0E) g Rt B 3k
2008 2007
N BB
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T AR¥T T
Xinggao Aluminium WL 4 — 24,700
Foshan Xinghui A 1Ly B — 6,000
Xingfa Group 5% 4 [ — 17,424
Total st = 48,124
Xingfa Curtain Wall B 2% e — (9,000)
Xingfa Group BLEE AL E — (5,368)
Hang Fat GRS — (197)
Total e — (14,565)
Annual Report 2008 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 149
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30. Material related party transactions 30. HKBHEL T Y )
(continued)
(b) Non-recurring transactions (continued) (b) FFFERY (4
(v) Financial guarantees ) HMEER
Certain banking facilities utilised by the Group REEH > ARBCEEHAZET
were guaranteed by the following related SRATME B i N A B e AR o

parties as at the balance sheet date.

The Group
AL
2008 2007
ZRBN\E ZRT LA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TIT NRHTIT
LUO Su, LUO Riming, and LIAO  ZE#% ~ % H B
Yuqing J B 259,600 —
Xingfa Group, LUO Su, LUO LS ]~ ZEAR
Riming and LIAO Yuging e H R R B 243,513 —
Xingfa Group, Foshan Xinghui, — SL#E4[E - {1 Wk -
LUO Su, CHEN Hongzai, LUO HERR ~ BT -
Riming and LIAO Yuqing FH OB R B R 7,980 —
Xingfa Group, Leahin Coating, B AR - SRR
Foshan Xinghui, Xinggao il L LR L 6 2
Aluminium, LUO Su, CHEN ARWR - BRULET - ZBH
Hongzai, LUO Riming and iP BN
LIAO Yuging — 190,000
Xingfa Group, LUO Su, CHEN B AEE ] - ZRAR - PR
Hongzai, LUO Riming and T~ B H B R B R R
LIAO Yuqing — 30,000
Xingfa Group, Foshan Xinghui, — SLZE4EE - {11 Wk -
Xinggao Aluminium, LUO Su, BlLS R 2 - RER - PR
CHEN Hongzai, LUO Riming B BHBRBEE
and LIAO Yuging =3 — 70,000
Xingfa Group, Foshan Xinghui,  HLZELE[E ~ {11 HHE -
LUO Su, LUO Riming, CHEN BRRE - BRE U - BRUE
Hongzai and LIAO Yuqing BRBEEE — 50,000
Xingfa Group, Xingfa Innovation, BlL#F£4E[H ~ BLEEAH -
Foshan Xinghui, LUO Su, LUO i [/ L « ZEH% - 2%
Riming and LIAO Yugqing H B K B2 B2 = 30,000
Total Mt 511,093 370,000
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30. AR IT RS )

30. Material related party transactions

(continued)

(b) Non-recurring transactions (continued)

(b) FEFBER Y ()

(7

(vi)

(vii)

Financial guarantees (continued)

The Group did not issue financial guarantees to
banks in respect of banking facilities to either
the related parties or third parties as at 31
December 2008 (2007: RMB48,000,000).

Bank loans secured by assets of the
Predecessor Entities

No bank loans as at 31 December 2008 were
secured by the Predecessor Entities (2007:
RMB190,000,000).

Disposal of assets to Xingfa Curtain Wall

The Group disposed of certain lease
prepayments, property, plant and equipment
and investment property to Xingfa Curtain
Wall at an aggregate consideration of
RMB23,000,000 during the year ended 31
December 2008 (2007: Nil).

(viii) Acquisition of equity interests of Xinggao

Aluminium

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting
held on 25 July 2008, the shareholders approved
the Group to acquire 100% equity interests
in Xinggao Aluminium at a consideration of
RMB142,698,000 from LUO Zhiyong, LUO
Riming and LIAO Yugqing (the “Acquisition”).

The Acquisition was completed on 26 July
2008 and Xinggao Aluminium has become the
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since
that date (Note 16).

)

(vi)

WM EHER (A

REEZNEFT+H=+—H>
AR [ M A TR R AT AR B 1) BR A
SR =TS MBS R (CEFR
L4E AR % 48,000,000 7C) °

YL g 43 2 vl B 7 #CH0 9 BRAT £

WoBEAES A=
o 0 AT K o B
AN EELE: AR
190,000,000 7C) °

(vii) Iy BB R A ] 5 2

BE_ZFZZNET_HA=1+T—H
IEAFE > A8 DL AR AE N R B
23,000,000 76 ( —FE L4« )
I L% O o B 2 TR AT AL A
W - W R G2 -

(viii) I i g 2 IR

WER —ELENFELH TR
H 847 2 B sl K& > ik
A E AL E U RE AR
142,698,000 JC [n] ZF & 5 - &
H OHA Je B R B i s B o 4 2 2
100% FERE (T 1) -

W~ E N\EEH N H
SERL > Bl R H W H R B R
By AN W 27 42 B N 7 (B
16) o
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30. AR IT RS )

30. Material related party transactions

(continued)

L B R 5 W 2

(c) Balances with related parties (c)

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had the TAEEH > A AL 8] BB 2 U7 %) &5 R a0
following balances with related parties: T

152

(i) Trade and other receivables

(i) K5 RHM WK

2008 2007
“EFNE “EREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW¥T NANRIET T
Trade related BL5E 5 A B

Xingfa Curtain Wall B 6,045 —
Hang Fat IER:13 — 6,265
6,045 6,265

Non-trade related BLIE 52 5 A B
Xingfa Innovation BLEE AN - 189
Xingfa Group BgE AL 1,312 4,656
1,312 4,845
7,357 11,110

(ii) Trade and other payables (i) 5 B HAYMEAT I
2008 2007
e 22 91T 2 “ETLE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW T ANR¥TT
Trade related B 5 A B

Leahin Coating 7 B R 3,001 3,138

Non-trade related HLIF5E 7 A B
Hang Fat IER::3 — 747
Xingfa Curtain Wall BB — 700
— 1,447
3,001 4,585

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR A )

Annual Report 2008
20084FBE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 B A B

30. Material related party transactions 30. HKBHE TR Y )
(continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (continued) (c) BLBHME T W &S R (44
(ii) Trade and other payables (continued) (i) 5 BHA WA KT ()
The amounts due from/(to) related parties are JREW (EAST ) [BE 8 Ty 3 T 2 SR 41K
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed P~ Ho L H A [ E 2R ) o

terms of repayment.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, certain amount MR A WR T ARAE S A 2 A
due from/(to) related parties with an aggregate R #172,831,000C K& A R ¥
carrying amount totalling RMB172,831,000 20,355,000 JG A9 %7 T HE Uk (i
and RMB20,355,000 were retained by the A4 ) BE 2 7 3KCIE BT 5 S\ AR
Predecessor Entities and had been reflected as B> e —FFLHE 1+ H
deemed appropriation to equity holders of the =+ —H I ESABRES BT
Company for the year ended 31 December 2007 A w B REREA N ([ 5E 27(e)) o

respectively (Note 27(e)).

(d) Key management personnel compensation d) FEEUAEME
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEE A B 2 4 (R B 5k 8 2
including the amounts paid to the Group’s directors 5 9 43 Al T 45 5 S AT T AN 4R [ S K
as disclosed in Note 8 and the senior management as FREEANBNERE) M

disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

2008 2007
ZRZNAE ZEERLA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT NRHTIT
Short-term employee benefits 4511 {& & & 7 3,832 705
Contribution to retirement BARAE R FT ]
benefit plan ek 39 31
3,871 736
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (Note P <5 B8 EEETE AT B LA | (5T 6(b)) e
6(b)).
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154

31. Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use
of financial instruments:

. market risk

. credit risk

. liquidity risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure
to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Group’s management of capital.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. The Group’s risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group’ activities. The Group, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which
all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(a) Market risk

Increasing market fluctuations may result in
significant cash-flow and profit volatility risk for
the Group. The Group’s income or the values of its
holding of financial instruments are affected by
changes in commodity price of aluminium, foreign
exchange rate and interest rate. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within the acceptable
parameters, while minimising the costs on managing
the risk.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR A )

31. 4xih e Bs 45 BI

7 2 8] R 68 P < R 17 v B DA LB

< TSEER
« FEER
© RBESEE

7 it 5 52 5 A B A 4 1 O T B 2 e
B~ A E O B R B 2 B~ BOR B
TP LA B AR 4 B 8 BRI BORY

R A TR T R AR T Y B
HHZRHE o A 52 BB 1) 2 B e BB SR LA R )
3 B AR 4 [ P T B ) SRR~ R E R JEL B
EBR R A it - B4 E BRI A R TE B R LA
o A 45 T E S0 A e A FE R e R AR
AR T 55K D B A B [ S 5 2 e )y o AR AR
5 A B A R R R B Y > B A
AU ERR R IO BRI > SR A (R BRI R 2
BRRE R HAE: -

(a) T BB

T35 H 45 i B 5 g 2 B4 46 B i By o
R 4 U R 98 8 S B - A 4R
Z WSO BT R 4 A R 1 M (2 S
A B ~ S HERE R A R
T 35 J i e B A B A o i 455 J
B 7E A # Z 19 KSF- > [a] IR 14 JEL B A 2
A R R A o
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

The Group seeks to manage and control the market

risks primarily through its regular operating and

financial activities, and uses derivative instruments

when deemed appropriate. All such transactions are

carried out within the guidelines set by the Board of

Directors.

)

Commodity price risk on aluminium

Aluminium ingots are the major raw materials
of the Group’s products which account for
approximately 80% of total cost of sales.
Fluctuations on commodity price of aluminium
will have a significant impact on the Group’s
earnings, cash flows as well as the value of
the inventories. The Group uses its futures
contracts traded on the Shanghai Futures
Exchange to reduce its risks arising from
fluctuations in aluminium price. The Group
enters futures based on the inventories on
hand, expected usage of aluminium and sales
requirements. The Group considers that it is
not cost effective to maintain a highly effective
hedge on transaction basis.

The outstanding balances of future contracts
entered as at the balance sheet date are
disclosed in Note 19.

Annual Report 2008

20084F 2 i

31. Al B4 Bl )
(a) WM 4

A A ] A — R e BB S )
B P ATT AR TR (s ) 6 B B 42 1
TGk o B A B S 5 AR S
il I 46 5 AT -

()

F1 Y o A% L B

25 BT By A 4R T EE i 1 R
B AL AR A A 80% o #E
o I A% D B 39 A 4 1 10 2 R
HeherEEEAERY
B REMTE LGB Y ITH
BB EH > R AR BB 1
JRB o A EARETF A -
g B S BORIE T R R
Gy o AEEMBR - AT G HE
A7 B Sl ANAF B AR R

& H TR L & A H2Z RF
T &G RN R A B R 19 -
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

()

Commodity price risk on aluminium
(continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following commodity price sensitivity is
calculated based on the outstanding aluminium
future contracts of the Group as at the balance
sheet date, assuming 10% (2007: 10%) shift of
future contract price is as follows:

31. AR BE 4 B )
(a) WiGEBE )

@

5 Y o AU BB ()

I B P i A R T e A R B
REERHZRTAENERL
BRI & & A E R 10% (=
FELE D 10%)5HEBWF ¢

2008 2007
BN —FTHEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARY T
Profit increase as future PRI 1A B A #4455 186 10 1 ek 365 )
contract price increased B 262 —

A 10% (2007: 10%) decrease in future contract
prices of aluminium would have had the equal
but opposite effect on the above aluminium
future contracts to the amounts shown above,
on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AR R G A A B A R O > R
BAELERTE10% (FF L
A 10%) M BRI E A4
AR L 2R BT R M 4R S AR A A I 2

2
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31. AR BE 4 Bl )
(a) WiGEBE )

31. Financial risk management (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

SP B MR B

(ii) Foreign currency risk

(i)

As the Group’s principal activities are carried
out in the PRC, the Group is exposed to
foreign currency risk on sales and purchases
that are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the operations in
the PRC, RMB, to which they relate. The
transactions in foreign currency are primarily
denominated in USD. The Group currently
does not have a policy to exercise fair value
hedges on foreign currency risk as the impact
of foreign currency on the Group’s total cost
of sales is minimal. However, management
monitors foreign currency exposure to ensure
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level and will consider hedging significant
transactions should the need arise. The Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk was as

follows based on notional amounts:

F A A 45 (| A 3 2 SE TS AE v B 3
11 WA B 1 9 B % PR LT F LA
6B R T At v 1 ) ) R RN IR
Wemt M > WO B S B JEUBSE o S
Lo EBLAEITTIE o HRANE
R SR AR R RUAS B R B
B oA G 1 B ST A )
(B3 v A1 6 JEL B 9 BOSRE - SR T
T P AN R B o BRI
B AERr AE T 320K F - 25 TR
T ERFE W E RS - A RE
WA E > AR 2 SRR 40
o

31 December 2008 31 December 2007
“ERNEFCHET-H “ERLEFZAZT-H
Singapore
HKD UsD Euro HKD USD Dollars
’000 000 ’000 000 000 000
Fbr FHL Tz T TET KT
Trade and other 25 At
receivables Tk 1,669 7925 300 — 10,756 -~
Cash and cash Be kB &
equivalents ZE 621 185 — 446 145 41
Pledged deposits REIiibea s — - 90 - - -
Trade and other payables 535 S Al
JEft 50 — @77 (48) (1,489) (841) —
Loans and borrowings & L fE & — (1,671) (1,300 — — —
Gross exposure arising TR &
from recognised AfREA
assets and liabilities 2R AE 2,290 5,962 (958) (1,083) 10,060 4
Notional amounts of wUMNEARHZ
forward foreign VELA
exchange contracts — 1,754 1,387 — — —
Net exposure JEbR 2,290 7,716 429 (1,043) 10,060 41
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

31. Al Be A Bl )
(a) WimmBs 4

Foreign currency risk (continued) (i)  ShHEMR B ()
Sensitivity analysis TR 7T
The following foreign currency sensitivity MR A B2 [ A 45 50 H A 2 251
is calculated based on the major net foreign B g AL ) A1 R R 43 AT an
currency exposure of the Group as at the (BB R W 5L 55 T HE R 5 3
balance sheet date, assuming 6% (2007: 5%) 6% (ZFEEELAE : 5%)) -
shift of RMB against USD is as follows:
2008 2007

BN\ “EFLEF
Decreased profit in RMB’000 i F1|3> \ R ¥F It
USD ESn 2,294 213
The sensitivity analysis has been determined TR E 0 BT T 55 T 2 5 ) 2 A
assuming that the change in foreign exchange o= W= B 2 P Ay A = W EE e
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and T A [H] N F] R A7 IR AR AR 2
had been applied to each of the Group entities’ e T IR fin k4t T H 2 & E
exposure to currency risk for both derivative Moo R R H g E (LR R
and non-derivative financial instruments T %) (R 5 o
in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.
A 6% (2007: 5%) weakening of the RMB (B8 T A Hofh st AR e A 5 > R
against USD at 31 December would have had +-H=+—H AR¥NETE
the equal but opposite effect on the above B 6% (—EE LM : 5%) ¥
currency to the amounts shown above, on the SRR B e 4 g o A 45 R {EFE R
basis that all other variables remain constant. 52 o
Interest rate risk I ES

The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that
over 50% of its exposure to changes in interest
rates on borrowings is on a fixed rate basis.
The Group’s loans and borrowings are mainly
short-term in nature and on fixed rate basis.
The interest rates and terms of repayment of
the Group’s loans and borrowings are disclosed
in Note 24.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 1 2 P A IR A )

5 S 4R B W R 50% 2
i 55 7 5 505 0 L A 1 1D s
o o AS I SRR B LT B
51 % BL I 5 Lo o A R
5652 I SR S BT W 3 24
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31. Financial risk management (continued) 31. b B 45 BE )
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) i MBE 4
(iii) Interest rate risk (continued) (i) FIEB B ()
Sensitivity analysis TR T
A change of 100 basis points in interest rate M 2 18 3 100 1] 5 A< B g 14 0 58
would have increased or decreased profit by W A RS 9 3 R T

RMB as follows:

2008 2007
e 2 2% 2 —FELHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARH¥FT T
Profit decrease as 100 basis A4 100 L A< 2h
points increase T A 345 K1) B 1,367 650
A 100 basis points decrease would have had (B B A HoAth s AR e AN 5 > 3
the equal but opposite effect on the above D100 A B e s &
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the Mk 2 % s A S5 R {ELAE fz 19 B 28 o
basis that all other variables remain constant.
Effective interest rates BT %
In respect of income-earning financial assets BLHRBOL A 2 4 BlVE R s E 4
and interest-bearing financial liabilities, the AEEmNS > FEREHHAEE
following table indicates their average effective HZ FH BB o KA
interest rates at the balance sheet date. Majority TE H i R sk A A a2 o
of these items mature in the next 12 months.
2008 2007
SRR SEFLE
Variable rate instruments FETLE
Cash and cash equivalents BE R EEEY 0.76% 0.77%
Bank loans SRATE K 5.39% 7.05%
Fixed rate instruments ERTH
Pledged deposits S 3.98% 3.13%
Bank loans SRATE N 4.85% 6.45%
Annual Report 2008 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 159
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(iv) Fair value

The carrying amounts of all financial assets

and liabilities approximate their respective

fair values as at the balance sheet date, and the

following methods and assumptions were used

to estimate the fair value for each class of these

financial instruments:

@

(b)

©

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables.

The carrying amounts of these financial
assets and liabilities approximate their
fair value because of the short maturities
of these instruments.

Interest-bearing borrowings

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing
borrowings approximate their fair value
as majority of the borrowings are short-
term in nature.

Derivative financial instruments

Details of the assumptions and methods
used in estimating the fair values of
derivative financial instruments were
disclosed in Note 3.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if

a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument

fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises

principally from the Group’s receivables from

customers and other receivables.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED

B RSP SR PR A D

31. AR BE 4 B )
(a) WiGEBE )

(iv)

(b) £ £ M Bt

AT

REEH > TAEMEE kAR
Z MR E 3 B A5 B AP A
Ao T A A SIS 2 T
B2 N EZ T5E R BT

(a)

(b)

(c)

BekBeEHEY K
AR 28 5 B H A i
I LA e 38 5y Be oAt JE A
A

MR M T R R E
MZEEMEERAMRZ
R T L BN SRR A

Al BT

H 7w B A5 B T A A
B BORH Y 5B A5
2 W T S (AR
firt el TR

st A B RN E

Z AR B R R 2 7 e
TE A B R 3 4%

17 B B 45 v % 5 o Ak TR 52 5 7
A REJBAT & #9 B AT T 25 BOA 4R F A 5
e 1R B > A B JEL B T AR B AR SR
V) R A 2 5 A T B HLA R WA
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Trade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The demographics of the Group’ customer
base, including the default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate, has less of
an influence on credit risk. Approximately 5% to
10% of the Group’s revenue is attributable to sales
transactions with a single customer for the years
ended 31 December 2008 and 2007.

The Group has established a credit policy under
which each new customer is analysed individually
for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard
payment and delivery terms and conditions are
offered. The Group’s review includes external
ratings, where available. Credit limit is established
for each customer which represents the maximum
open amount without requiring approval from
the Board of Directors; these limits are reviewed
annually. Customers that fail to meet the Group’s
benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the
Group on a prepayment basis. The Group chases the
customers to settle the due balances and monitors the
settlement progress on an ongoing basis.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk of
the total trade and other receivables due from the
Group’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors as

31. AR BE 4 Bl )
(b) faEEmBs (4F)

3855 B HEAB KoK I

REENEERE EEZERFTHA
) 1/ 05 28 - AR4E [ K P AR SisT
BB (EBEEFESETERB RN E
A9 JE ) (5 B R AR 2 RS BRI o
BEEZNER -FELET A
=T HIEFRE ALK S% E 10%
Wi sk { B — K F 2 AL »

ALEEE AT AR BBUR R e
A5 3K e B2 A A K B AR A T - AR 23 A
FR R F G B REAR o A F B 2 B
LIRS AR ST AR (I ) - &% F H1E
BIRF SR E F G (HARF
el 09 B e 5 BCRRE o A AL H
fREE R & 5 AT AP A 5
B2 o o AEEEIBEF & E
BRA > A B A R -

AL E N EEBRE S > DT AAE
B e KB N B LRAEH N 238 5 K
Al JRE ORI AR

follows:
2008 2007
RBAK SEFLE
Due from JEYS AR A 3A
— largest debtor — BOREHA 14% 18%
— five largest debtors — A REBA 47% 52%
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20084F B i SFLEE 4 2 P IR PR )




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B 4 o0 Wi i

31. AR BE 4 B )
(b) faEEmBs (4F)

31. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

162

The maximum exposure of credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated balance sheet, including derivative

financial instruments.

In 2008, the Group does not provide guarantees
which would expose the Group to the credit risk.

The Group’s business is managed on a worldwide
basis, but mainly participates in five principal
economic environments. The maximum exposure to
credit risk for trade receivables and bills receivable
on the basis of geographical location of customers

are as follows:

RAERERBAGGEEABENS
TE G fl A E 2 MR (E - B AT AR
TA-

A T A > AR SR [ 30 44 ok B T B
15 S B E P AR o

A A T SE S AR % A A5 M E B AE
T 3 BEAR IR o 5K T PN IE
o 18 53 1) 58 5 B WS T I B A 4
P e K AR E R T

2008 2007

“REB\E e

The PRC s 356,261 373,213

Hong Kong i 44,792 7,206

Europe 51 &l 5,205 13,672

North America JEE 2,540 1,710
Asia Pacific (other than the PRC i &M [ (A A5 H [

and Hong Kong) RAEW) 11,168 4,240

419,966 400,041

Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers. The Group establishes an allowance for
impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade and other receivables.
The main component of this allowance is a specific
loss component established for groups of similar
assets in respect of losses that have been incurred
but not yet identified. The collective loss allowance
is determined based on historical data of payment
statistics for similar financial assets.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
LS 5 2 P A IR A )

AL — A2 P ALY i o
A B A2 By B HLAt BB WG IR 2 il s
s ELAE SRR (B 1B R o FEE A P D
0 % 5 R JUEE /2 AL T A L 1 Rk
7l 2 B AR A Y 4 E s R A - AR
5 M TR A T AR AR () 2 R
AR BAREE E -
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

©

Impairment losses

The movements in the allowance for impairment in

31. AR BE 4 Bl )
(b) faEEmBs (4F)

6 e e 1

T A BE TR A T 58 o o A B W i T

respect of trade and other receivables during the year BB T
are as follows:
2008 2007
— BB\ —EELF
Balance at 1 January —H— H 458 470 2,244
Deemed disposal upon PR A B A I 1 65
Reorganisation = (1,774)
Balance at 31 December Wt A =+—H &5t 470 470

Based on past experience, except for the above
amounts that the customers were unable to repay
the outstanding balance, the Group believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade
and bills receivable not past due. Over 99% of the
total balances relate to customers that have a good
track record with the Group.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

Annual Report 2008
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B RORERERAL A AR AR 2R ek
A B 1 2 28y B o Ath JE Yie K TEL B i (E
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31. bR BE 4 B )
(c) UREhE LB BS (47)

31. Financial risk management (continued)

(¢) Liquidity risk (continued)
TRFEAR AR A AL E WA
RS KB FIH > Ty G KRR
BB & & (G115 5 %0 P 2 5 (AN 7%
B)) IR A B 2 BT AR R AR
WIH) BA L w2 B RH W E

based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and =N

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating,

the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

2008
“EENE

Contractual undiscounted

2007
“23LE

cash out flow/(inflow) Contractual undiscounted
AHAMB cash out flow/(inflow)
B/ (RA) AORNERER L/ (KA)
More More
Balance than | than 2 Balance
Within 1 sheet Within | yearbut  years but sheet
year or on carrying year or on less than less than carrying
demand Total amount demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—HEWK BEAkE AR ER D WER KERME
BEk o Wk Bk ERER BIER gt kel
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARWTE ARBTE ARWFLE  ARETT ARETT ARKTT ARKFT ARKTT
Bank loans i 577,582 577,582 559,329 306,176 43439 46,176 395,791 377,000
Trade and other 25 R
payables FeftaR 19554 195544 195,54 246,770 - — 6T 246770
773,126 773,126 754,873 552,946 43439 46,176 042,561 623,770
Forward foreign EHAMNERH)
exchange contracts (26,030) (26,030 — — — =

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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32. Accounting estimates and judgments

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

The methods, estimates and judgments the directors

used in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a

significant impact on the Group’s financial position and

operating results. Some of the accounting policies require

the Group to apply estimates and judgments, on matters

that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting

judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies are

described below.

(@)

(b)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,

after taking into account the estimated residual

value.

The Group reviews annually the useful life of an

asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation

expense for future years is adjusted if there are

significant changes from previous estimation.

Impairments

(i)

In considering the impairment losses that may
be required for certain property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments, recoverable
amount of these assets needs to be determined.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the
net selling price and the value in use. It is
difficult to precisely estimate selling price
because quoted market prices for these assets
may not be readily available. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of turnover and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all
readily available information in determining
an amount that is reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of items such as turnover and
operating costs.

Annual Report 2008
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32. Accounting estimates and judgments

(continued)
(b) Impairments (continued)

(i1) Impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts are assessed and provided based on the
directors’ regular review of aging analysis and
evaluation of collectibility. A considerable
level of judgment is exercised by the directors
when assessing the credit worthiness and past
collection history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment losses would affect the net profit or
loss in future years.

(iii) Impairment losses for inventories are assessed
and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of market price against inventories
costs. A considerable level of judgment is
exercised by the directors when assessing the
market price.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment losses would affect the net profit or
loss in future years.

33. Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the
accounting year ended 31 December 2008 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements.

166 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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32. EwEHhSE BRI )

(b) R ()
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4D T B85 40 A AR T ol [ R R A A
Tl Al Bt - EHATMHEH
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(i) 7 5 V1 M 4 4 o = o 01 3 T £
BLAF B AR B A HEE AT R A B 43
i o 3 AL FPAN T (E IR AT 6K
=K o

A G A R A AT 3 9 R
BERAAFBE 1 A0 A B R T (H
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33. Possible impact of amendments, new 33. AMREZZEZENETA
standards and interpretations issued but =4 H kAR O B
not yet effective for the year ended 31 PR A 0 5T ~ B R
December 2008 (continued) &%%m%ﬁ%%ﬂ%)
Of these developments, the following relate to matter FERA B o NIMERT ~ BUER R R ]
that may be relevant to the Group’s operations and the e HLAS 42 [B) 19 5008 e A B A TS i A B

consolidated financial statements:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

J#F 5 H Bz %
DR & v 8 300 0D 24 3
Revised TAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2009
I 5% o A B 565 1 9% BABS R R 0 251 “EFNF—-A—H
Revised TAS 23 Borrowing Costs 1 January 2009
B % R I 5 23 R SA “EENEFE—~A—H
Amendments to [AS 27 Consolidated and Separate 1 July 2009
Financial Statements
Brgr st e RIS 27 SRIERT A fer i T AR B 5 e R “EEAFELA—H
IFRS 8 Operating Segments 1 January 2009
W% B s o o ) 8 5% Kot “EENEFE—~A—H
Improvements to IFRSs 1 January 2009 or
1 July 2009
I i o i 2B ) 2 B “EFNF-A—HRE
“ETNEFELA—H
The directors have confirmed that the Group is in the D o AN AR H IF SEAL TE B OO R %A
process of making an assessment of what the impact of 15T ~ HTHE R Sop e BEHA M A B2 28 o 35 4 1
these amendments, new standards and new interpretations 1F > ASEEE R A B AN i AEET ~ e R K
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So T o fak B i 2 K A [ 1) 6 4 2E A T AR
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely W oo
to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
34. Non-adjusting post balance sheet event 34, JE BB H BTN
After the balance sheet date the directors of the Company REEB HAR > AN T 35 A R R 2 K B A
proposed final and special dividends. Further details are AR o dE— R R E 11 B8 -
disclosed in Note 11.
Annual Report 2008 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Four Years Summary

DY 6 22

2008 2007 2006 2005
“FRNE —FTTLFE —FTNF _FTHF

RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARWTLT ARWTLT ARWTT ARKTIL

Assets and liabilities R Kl

Property, plant and equipment UE N STl 351,713 139,007 191,847 202,280

Investment property EVS-LE — — 3,756 3,943

Lease prepayments TEATAH 42 153,661 — 81,484 83,162

Deferred tax assets R S ol T 390 — — 465

Net current assets/(liabilities) TENERE (AR T 157,998 376,321 75,388 (37,899)

Total assets less current FEOF 2 0 R B F s

liabilities 663,762 515,328 352,475 251,951

Non-current liabilities IF I Bl & fik — (80,000) (235) —

Net assets VegiRi (i 663,762 435,328 352,240 251,951

Capital and reserves JBE A B ik Al

Share capital AR 3,731 210,000 225,000 155,041

Reserves G 660,031 225,328 98,101 68,683

Total equity attributable to A2 w) B BERE A A BEA

equity holders of the Company 25 8% 663,762 435,328 323,101 223,724

Minority interests DU AR 4 — — 29,139 28,227

Total equity HE 25 28 % 663,762 435,328 352,240 251,951

Operating results BEEL

Turnover e 2,136,368 2,148,674 1,861,244 1,309,103

Profit from operations BB R 71,465 318,966 88,699 56,957

Net finance costs R A TR (33,448) (28,043) (22,535) (20,080)

Profit before taxation 5% B i 2 A 38,017 290,923 66,164 36,877

Income tax (expenses)/credit fTSRL (B0 K (8,704) 677 (5,875) (11,062)

Profit for the year AR B B A 29,313 291,600 60,289 25,815

Attributable to: B0

Equity holders of the Company AROSFEIRERA N 29,313 291,750 59,377 24,774

Minority interests DR R A — (150) 912 1,041

Profit for the year AR Kk A 29,313 291,600 60,289 25,815

Basic and diluted earnings per 458t 2R B 8 9 2 0

share (RMB yuan) (AR¥0) 0.075 0.937 0.191 0.080

Notes: Wk

(i) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13 September 2007 as an [ S NGRS TP
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of ( JROL L R
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to the Reorganisation, PR ° I A B ) 2
the Company became the holding company of the Group on 29 February 2008. M AT -

(ii) Although the Reorganisation was not completed until 29 February 2008, the Group is (i) B EAR =TT/ H A JUH T4 58 i AR S 0 A 4 R
regarded as a continuing group resulting from the Reorganisation. The consolidated AT 7 A 2 R TR T o 40 BA S ¥R TR AR 8 R 2% 1 — B R AR
financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company has been —H—H (I H = F T T JUH) R A S M 2 P
treated as the holding company of the Group since 1 January 2005, rather than from 29 I T A o R o A AR P % AR ] = H R DA
February 2008. Accordingly, the consolidated results of the Group for the four years S S A T KSR o 0 1 6 R b S5 A 4 IR R T B s ) 1
ended 31 December 2008 have been prepared as if the Aluminium Profile Business had FEFF—]—HRAE  HEBEARZ EMEMA T e —H
been operated by the subsidiaries now comprising the Group and the group structure —Hi#— TE o A B 5 M B2 A0 5 A 0 &Z&%@fﬂﬂ?bﬁTW%@a
immediately after the Reorganisation had been in existence since 1 January 2005. This BT AR - HAR S A A 2 sE O BRI (LK 9 /%
financial summary includes the consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries HE) 7 B AT WA A S AN R pAE T H =+ —H
now comprising the Group with effect from 1 January 2005 or since their respective dates Z4 IR T A N ) B A S T B R EE TS AL 8 A R
of incorporation, whichever is a shorter period. The consolidated balance sheets at 31 i NER ZEELE T A = —H2Z & ARG -
December 2005, 2006, 2007 are the combination of the balance sheets of the Company i FEAE 2 SR S AR PR A R 3 2 AN S A 2 A
and its subsidiaries now comprising the Group at 31 December 2005, 2006 and 2007. In B
the opinion of the directors, the resulting consolidated financial statements give a more
meaningful view of the results and state of affairs of the Group as a whole.

(iii) The calculation of basic earnings per share for the three years ended 31 December 2007 (i) WE TRLE L H =1 —H Ik S E AR 2SR AN AN
is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company and the 311,410,000 ﬁjﬁiﬁ%ﬁ/\ﬁfﬁ?ﬁﬂ&ﬁ@%ﬂﬁ%%H%ﬁ T eA3311,410,000 8 5T

shares in issue as at the date of the Prospectus, as if the shares were outstanding
throughout the entire period.

(iv) The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
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